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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 35" Annual General Meeting of the members of Super Tannery Limited will be held
on Monday the 307 September 2019 at 9:00 a.m. at 187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur-208 010, the registered office of
the Company to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31" March 2019 the
Balance Sheet as on that date and the reports of Directors' and Auditors' thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vegarul Amin, who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself
for re-appointment.

To appoint a Directorin place of Mr. Yogendra Singh Kativar, who retires by rotation and being eligible offers
himself for re-appointment.

To appoint M/s Rajeev Prem & Associates Chartered Accountants as Auditors of the Company and fix their
remuneration.

5. SPECIAL BUSINESS:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

'RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 148, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory medification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, and
subject to approval of Members at the next Annual General Meeting Mr. Iftikharul Amin (holding DIN

00037424), be and is hereby re- appointed as the Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3
years w.e.f30.09.2019 on the terms and conditions as approved by MNomination &Remuneration
committee of the Board and the Board of Directors as mentioned in the draft of the agreement placed
before the meeting duly initialed by the Chairperson for the purpose of identification and on the following
terms and conditions..

1. SALARY:
Rs 2,00,000/- per month with such annual increment as may be decided by the Board subject to
maximum salary of Rs 200,000/- p.m.

2. COMMISSION:
1% of the net profits of the Company for each Financial Year computed in a manner laid down under the
Companies Act, 2013 or 50% of annual salary or Rs 8,00,000/-, whichever is lower,

3. PERQUISITES:
The Managing Director shall be entitled to the following perquisites:

1. Unfumished accommodation, gas, electricity, water, furnishing, leave travel concession for self and
family, medical reimbursement, club fee, medical and personal accidental insurance in accordance with
the rules of the Company.

The aforesaid will be restricted to Rs 5 lacs per annum. The perguisites shall be evaluated, for the
purpose of above ceiling, as per Income Tax Rules, 1962,

. Company's contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or annuity fund will be restricted to the
tax exemption limit and gratuity shall be payable as per the rules of the Company. These shall not be
included in the computation of perquisites.
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3. The Company will provide a car and telephone at his residence. The use of car for the purpose of Company's
business and telephone at residence will not be considered as perguisites.

RESOLVED further that the Board of Director be and is hereby authorized to revise the remuneration of
Mr.Iftikharul Amin, within the limits as specified in Schedule V of the Act in such manner as the Board may
consider proper.

RESOLVED further that where in any financial year closing on or after 31 March 2019, the Company has no
profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company may pay to Mrlftikharul Amin, Managing Director
remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and other allowances not exceeding the ceiling limit as specified
under Schedule ¥V to the Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory madification or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 148, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, and
subject to approval of Members at the next Annual General Meeting Mr. Igbal Ahsan, (holding DIN
00037445), be and is hereby re- appointed as the Joint-Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3
years w.e.f.30.09.2019 on the terms and conditions as approved by Nomination &Remuneration committee
of the Board and the Board of Directors as mentioned in the draft of the agreement placed before the
meeting duly initialed by the Chairperson for the purpose of identification and on the following terms and
conditions.:

1. SALARY:
Rs 200,000/~ per month with such annual increment as may be decided by the Board subject to
maximum salary of Rs 2,00 000/- p.m,

2. COMMISSION:
1% of the net profits of the Company for each Financial Year computed in a manner laid down under the
Companies Act, 2013 or 50% of annual salary or Rs 800, 000/-, whichever is lower.

3. PERQUISITES:
The Joint-Managing Director shall be entitled to the following perquisites:

Unfurnished accommodation, gas, electricity, water, furnishing, leave travel concession for self and family,
medical reimbursement, club fee, medical and personal accidental insurance in accordance with the rules of
the Company.

The aforesaid will be restricted to Rs 5 lacs per annum. The perquisites shallbe  evaluated, for the purpose
of above ceiling, as per Income Tax Rules, 1962.

.Company's contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or annuity fund will be restricted to the tax
exemption limit and gratuity shall be payable as per the rules of the Company. These shall not be included in
the computation of perquisites.

The Company will provide a car and telephone at his residence. The use of car for the purpose of Company’s
business and telephone at residence will not be considered as perquisites.

RESOLVED further that the Board of Director be and is hereby authorized to revise the remuneration of
Mr.Igbal Ahsan, within the limits as specified in Schedule V of the Act in such manner as the Board may
consider proper.

RESOLVED further that where inany financial year closing on or after 31" March 2019, the Company has no
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profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company may pay to Mr.lgbal Ahsan,Joint-Managing Director
remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and other allowances not exceeding the ceiling limit as specified under
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force."

7. Toconsider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Crdinary
Resolution:

‘RESOLVED that Mr.imran Siddigui (DIN 00037552) who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an
Additional Director of the Company with effect from October 1 ,2018 and who hold office up to the date of this
Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of
Association of The Company but who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the Company has
received a notice in writing from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby
appointed as Director of the Company. for a period of 3 years w.e.f.30.09.2019 on the terms and conditions as
approved by Nomination & Remuneration committee of the Board and mentioned in the draft of the agreement
placed before the Board mesting duly initialed by the Chairperson for the purpose of identification and on the
following terms and conditions, Remuneration as mentioned in the explanatory statement annexed hereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to revise the remuneration
of Mr. Imran Siddigui, within the limits as specified in Schedule \V of the Act in such manner as the Board may
consider proper.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year closing on or after 31st March, 2019, the Company
has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company may pay to Mr.mran Siddiqui, Whole time director,
remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and other allowances not exceeding the ceiling limit as specified
under Part Il of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force.”

. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

'"RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule V' to the Companies Act, 2013, and subject to approval of
Members at the next Annual General Meeting Mr. Arshad Khan, (holding DIN 00037655), be and is hereby re-
appointed as the Whole Time Director of the Company for a period of 3years w.e.f.30.09.2019 on the terms and
conditions as approved by Nomination & Remuneration committee of the Board and mentioned in the draft of
the agreement placed before the Board meeting duly initialed by the Chairperson for the purpose of
identification and on the following terms and conditions, Remuneration as mentioned in the explanatory
statement annexed hereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to revise the remuneration
of Mr. Arshad Khan, within the limits as specified in Schedule V of the Act in such manner as the Board may
consider proper.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year closing on or after 31st March, 2018, the Company
has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company may pay to Mr.Arshad Khan, Whole time director,
remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and other allowances not exceeding the ceiling limit as specified
under Part |l of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force.”
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9. Re-. Appointment of Mr.Mohd.Imran, Whole Time Director.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
therecf for the time being in force) read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, and subject to approval of
Members at the next Annual General Meeting Mr. Mohd.lmran, (holding DIM 00037627), be and is hereby re-
appointed as the Whole Time Director of the Company fora period of 3 years w.e.f.30.09.2019 on the terms
and conditions as approved by Momination & Remuneration committee of the Board as mentioned in the draft
of the agreement placed before the Board meeting duly initialed by the Chairperson for the purpose of
identification and on the following terms and conditions, Remuneration as mentioned in the explanatory
statement annexed hereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to revise the remuneration
of Mr. Mohd.lmran, within the limits as specified in Schedule V of the Act in such manner as the Board may
consider proper.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year closing on or after 31st March, 2019, the Company
has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company may pay to Mr.Mohd.lmran, Whole time director,
remuneration by way of salary, perguisites and other allowances not exceeding the ceiling limit as specified
under Part || of Schedule V' to the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force."

10. Re-appointment of Mr.P.K.Sinha, as an Independent Director

To appoint Mr.P.K._Sinha as an Independent Director and in this regard o consider and if thought fit, to pass
with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 148, 152 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("Act) The Companies{Appointment and Qualifications of Directors)Rules 2014, read
with Schedule IV to the act and Regulation 17 and other applicable regulations of the Securities Exchange
Board of India(listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations 2015("SEBI Listing
Regulations")as amended from time to time, Mr .P.K.Sinha (holding DIN 00558872), Director of the Company,
who was appointed as an Independent Director at the Thirtieth Annual General Meeting of the Company and
wha hold office up to 30" September 2018 and who is eligible for re-appointment and who meets the criteria for
Independence as provided in section 149(6)of the Act along with rules framed thereunder and Regulation
16(1)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations and who has submitted a declaration to that effect and in respect of whom
the Company has received a notice in writing from a member under Section 160(1) of the Act, proposing his
candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby re- appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company, not liable to retirement by rotation and to hold office for a second term of five consecutive years
commencing September 30, 20197

11. Re-appointment of Mr.Kumud Behari Seth, as an Independent Director

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

"RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 148, 152 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("Act) The Companies{Appointment and Qualifications of Directors)Rules 2014 read with
Schedule |V to the act and Regulation 17 and other applicable regulations of the Securities Exchange Board of

5
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India(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations 2015("SEBI Listing Regulations”jas amended
from time to time, Mr.K.B.Seth {holding DIN 00982480}, Director of the Company, who was appointed as an
Independent Director at the Thirtieth Annual General Meeting of the Company and who hold office up to 307

September 2019 and who is eligible for re-appointment and who meets the criteria for Independence as provided

in section 143(8)of the Act along with rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1){b) of SEBI Listing

Regulations and who has submitted a declaration to that effect and in respect of whom the Company has received
a notice in writing from a member under Section 160(1) of the Act, proposing his candidature for the office of

Director, be and is hereby re- appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retirement by
rotation and to hold office for a second term of five consecutive years commencing from the conclusion of this
meeting.”

12. Appointment of Mr. Aftab Ahmad as an Independent Director

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED that Mr.Aftab Ahmad (DIN 08415223) who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an Additional
Director of the Company with effect from April 1 .2019 and who hold office up to the date of this Annual General
Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of The
Company but who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing
from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as Director of the
Company.

"RESOLVED FURTHER that pursuant to the provisions of section 149,152 and other applicable provisions, if any
of the Act, the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors)Rules-2014 read with schedule IV to the
Act and Regulation 17 and other applicable regulations of the Securities Exchange Board of India(Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)Regulations 2015("SEBI Listing Regulations™) as amended from time
to time, the appointment of Mr.Aftab Ahmad, who meet the criteria for independence as provided in section 149(8)
of the Act along with the Rules framed thereunder, and Regulation 16{1)(b) of SEEI Listing Regulations and who
has submitted a declaration to that effect, and who is eligible for appointment as an Independent Director of the
Company ,not liable to retire by rotation, for a term of & years commencing September 30, 2019 to September
30,2024, be and is here by approved.

13. Appointment of Mrs.Sadia Kamal, as an Independent Director

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resclution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 148, 152 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act; 2013 ("Act) The Companies{Appointment and Qualifications of Directors)Rules 2014 read with
Schedule IV to the act and Regulation 17 and other applicable regulations of the Securities Exchange Board of
India(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations 2015("SEBI Listing Regulations™)as
amended from time to time, Mrs.Sadia Kamal (holding DINDB958874), Director of the Company, was appointed
as an Independent Director at the Thirtieth Annual General Meeting of the Company and holds office up to 30"
September 2019 and is eligible for re-appointment and meets the criteria for Independence as provided in section
148(6)of the Act along with rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16{1)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations and
has submitted a declaration to that effect and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing
from a member under Section 160(1) of the Act, proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be and is
hereby re- appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retirement by rotation and to hold
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office for a second term of five consecutive years commencing from the conclusion of this meeting.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 181 of the Companies Act, 2013, consent of the members be and is
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to donate to charitable and other funds not directly
related to the business of the Company ar the welfare of its employees up to the extent of Rs. 30.00 lacs
{Rupees thirty lacs only) during the financial year ending 31" March, 2020."

By Order of the Board of Directors

for Super Tannery Limited

Flace : Kanpur R.K. Awasthi
Date : 10" Aug. 2019 Company Secretary
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NOTES:

AMEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND YOTE AT THE MEETING 1S ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.
THE PROXY IN OREDR TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE
COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

Caorporate members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the meeting are requested to send
a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the
meeting.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Special Businesses
is annexed hereto.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from 23rd September to
24" September 2019 (both inclusive date).

Members holding shares in identical order of names in more than one folio are requested to write to the Company,
enclosing the Shares Certificate for consolidation of their holding into one folio.

Members holding Shares in physical form are requested to notify the followings to the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent to facilitate better services.

1. Any change in their address under their signature clearly quoting, their folio numbers, old address along
with the changed address with Pin code.

2. Share certificate(s) held in multiple accounts in identical names or joint accounts in the same order of the
names for consolidation of such shareholding into one account.

3. Members holding shares in electronic form may inform any change in address to their Depository
Participant.

Members holding Shares in electronic form are requested to provide their Client-ID and DP-ID numbers at the
meeting for easy identification.

Members desirous of obtaining any information/clarification conceming the Accounts and Operation of the
Company are requested to address their gueries in writing to the Company Secretary at least seven days before
the annual General Meeting, so that the desired information may be made available at the Annual general
Meeting, ifthe Chairman permits to do so.

The Shares of the Company are compulsorily tradable in demat form. With effect from April 1,2018%except in case
of request received for transmission or transposition of Securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks
associated with physical Shares and for the ease of portfolio Management members holding shares in physical
form are requested to consider converting their holding to dematerialized form. The equity Shares of the
Company have been assigned I1SIN INE460D01020. Members are requested to get their Shares dematerialized
atthe earliest to make them tradable.

Members are requested to note that, dividend if not in cashed for a consecutive period of 7 years from the date of
transfer to unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred to the Investor Education and
protection Fund (“IEPF" The shares in respect of such un claimed dividends are also liable to be transferred to the
demat account of the |[EPF Authority. In view of this Members/claimants are requested to claim their dividends
from the Company, within the stipulated timeline, the dividend unpaid or unclaimed for the Financial Year 2011-12
may be claimed by the shareholders on or before 5th Movember 2019. Thereafter, such amount shall be
transferred to the “Investor Education and Protection Fund”. Kindly note that once the unclaimed or unpaid
Dividend is transferred to "Investor Education and Protection Fund”™ no claim shall lie with the company in respect
thereof. The Members whose unclaimed dividends/shares have been transferred to IEPF, may claim the same by

making an application to the IEPF Authority, in Form No .IEPF 5 available on www.iepf.gov.in.The
Members/claimants can file only one consolidated claim in a Financial Year as per IEPF Rules,
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# Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 shareholders are entitled to make nomination in respect
of share held by them in physical form. Shareholders desirous of making nomination are requested to send their
request in the prescribed Form to the Registrar and Transfer Agents, M/s. Karvy Fintech Pvi. Ltd., Hyderabad.
Members holding shares in electronic mode are reguested to consult/contact with their respective Depository
Participant (DP) for availing nomination facility.

Members are requested to notify immediately change in their address, PIN code. if any to company at its
registered office by guoting their folio number.

Members' proxies are requested to bring attendance slip duly completed for attending the meeting.

Brief Resume of all Directors including those proposed to be appointed, nature of their expertise in specific
functional areas, names of companies in which they hold Directorships and Memberships / Chairmanships and
Relationships between Directors inter—se as stipulated under Regulation27 of the listing agreement with the
Stock Exchangesin India, are provided in the report on Corporate Governance forming part of the Annual Report.

Voting through electronic means:

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rule 2014, the Company is pleased to inform that all the resolutions as stated
in the notice can be transacted by electronic voting system and the company has provided members with facility to
exercise their right to vote at the 35"  Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means through e-voting
services provided by Karvy:

The instructions for e-voting are as under:

In case a Member receives an email from Karvy [for members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/
Depository Participants (s)]:

Launch internet browser by typing the URL: http://evoting karvy.com.

Enter the login credentials (i.e. User ID and password mentioned below). Your Folio No./ DP |D- Client |d will be
your User |D. However, if you are already registered with Karvy for e-voting, you can use your existing User ID
and password for casting your vote.

After entering these details appropriately, click on "LOGIN".

Y¥ou will now reach password change Menu wherein you are required to mandatorily change your password. The
new password shall comprise of minimum 8 characters with at least one upper case (A- Z), one lower case (a-z),
one numeric value (0-9) and a special character (@.#.5, etc.,). The system will prompt you to change your
password and update your contact details like mobile number, email ID etc. on first login. You may also enter a
secrel question and answer of your choice o retrieve your password in case you forget it. It is strongly
recommended that you do not share your password with any other person and that you take utmost care to keep
your password confidential,

You need to login again with the new credentials.
On successful login, the system will prompt you to selectthe "EVENT" |.e., Super Tannery Limited ™.

On the voting page, enter the number of shares (which represents the number of votes) as on the Cut off Date
under "FOR/AGAINST or alternatively, you may partially enter any number in "FOR" and partially "AGAINST" but
the total number in "*FORJAGAINST” taken together not exceeding your total shareholding as mentioned herein
above. You may alsoc choose the option ABSTAIN. If the shareholder does not indicate either “FOR" or
“"AGAINST itwill be treated as "ABSTAIN" and the shares held will not be counted under either head.

Shareholders holding multiple folios/ demat accounts shall choose the voling process separately for each folio/
demat accounts,
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s

Voting has to be done for each item of the notice separately. In case you do not desire to cast your vote on
any specific item it will be treated as abstained.

¥ou may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on “Submit”.

Aconfirmation box will be displayed. Click "OK" to confirm else "CANCEL" to modify. Once you have voted on the
resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. During the voting period, Members can login any number
oftimes till they have voted on the Resolution(s).

Corporate/ Institutional Members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.,) are also required to send scanned
certified true copy (PDF Format) of the Board Resolution/ Authority Letter etc., together with attested specimen
signature(s) of the duly authorised representative(s), to the Scrutinizer at e mall kn.shridhar@gmail.com with a
copy marked to evoting{akarvy.com. The scanned image of the above mentioned documents should be in the
naming format “Super Tannery Limited * 35th Annual General Meeting”.

I. In case a Member receives physical copy of the Notice of AGM [ for members whose email IDs are not registered
with the Company/ Depository Participants (s) can request physical copy].

User |D and initial Password as provided below.

Please follow all steps above, to cast vote.

In case of any queries relating to e-voting please visit Help & FAQ section of hitp://evoting karvy.com (Karvy
Website).

You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may be used for
sending future communication(s).

The e-voting period commences on 27.09.2019 (9.00 AM) and ends on 29.09.2013 (5.00PM).During this
period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as
on the cut-off date 23.09.2019, may cast their vote electronically in the manner and process set out herein
above. The e-voting module shall be disabled for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast
by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. Further the Members who
have casted their vote electronically shall not vote by way of poll, if held at the meeting.

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the
Company as on the cut-off date 23.09.2019.

The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. K.N.Shridhar, Practicing Company Secretary as the Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding three (3) working days from the conclusion of the e-voting
period unblock the votes in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the Company and
make a Scrutinizer's Report of the votes castin favor or against, if any, forth with to the Chairman of the Company.

The Results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company and the resolution will be deemed to be passed
on the AGM date subject to receipt of the requisite number of votes in favour of the Resolution(s).

The results declared along with the Scrutinizer's report shall be placed on the Company's Website:
www.supertannery.com andonthe website of the service provider
(http://evoting karvy.com) within two (2) days of passing of the resolutions at the AGM of the

Company and communicated to the BSE Limited.

EVEN (E Voting Event Number) User ID Password
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

ITEM No.:

05&06: Mr. Iftikharul Amin was re- appointed as Managing Director in terms of resolution passed by the Board of
Directors at its meeting and approved by the shareholders of the company at the Annual General Meeting on
30" September 2016 for a period of 3 years. The present term of office of Mr. “Iftikharul Amin, as a Managing
Director of the company will be expiring on 29.09.2019., Subject to Shareholders approval, and based on
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors, at their meeting held
on 10.08.2018 have approved re-appointmeant of Mr. ‘Iftikharul Amin, as Managing Director for a further period
of 3 years from 30.09.2019.

Mr. lgbal Ahsan, was re-appointed as Joint Managing Director in terms of resolution passed by the Board of
Directors at its meeting and approved by the shareholders of the company at the Annual General Meeting on
30" September 2016 for a period of 3 years. The present term of office of Mr. Igbal Ahsan, as Joint Managing
Director of the company will be expiring on 29.09.2019., Subject to Shareholders approval, and based on
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors, at their meeting held
on 10.08.2019 have approved reappointment of the Joint Managing Director of the company for a further
period of 3 years from 30.09.2019.

The main terms and conditions of re-appointment of Mr. Iftikharul Amin, Managing Director, and Mr. Igbal
Ahsan, the Joint Managing Director of the Company are given in the notice.

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary resolutions set out in item no. 05&08 of the Notice for
approval of the shareholders.

This may also be treated as an abstract of terms of re-appeintment of Mr. Iftikharul Amin, and Mr. Igbal
Ahsan, underthe provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Iftikharul Amin, and Mr. Igbal Ahsan, the Directors seeking re-appointment and being relatives are
interested in the resolutions.

Brief particulars of the Managing Director and Joint Managing Director are being given in the report on
Corporate Governance attached to Directors Report.

ltem No.7.

Based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors appointed
Mr. Imran Siddigui, (DIN NOD0037552) as additional Director and also whole Time Director on 1.10.2018
because previous appointment was expired on 30.09.2018, pursuant to the provisions of section 161(1) ofthe
Act and Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.lmran Siddigui shall hold office up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting ("AGM") and is eligible to be appointed as Whole Time Director of the Company liable to
retire by rotation, for a term of 3 years i.e from 30.09.2019 to 30.08.2022 subject to approval of the Members.
The main terms and conditions of Mr.imran Siddigui, whole time Director of the Company are as under.

SALARY:

Rs 50,000/- per month with such annual increment as may be decided by the Board subject to maximum
salary of Rs 55,000/- per month.

PERQUISITES :

The Whole time director shall be entitled to the following perquisites:
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1. He shall be entitled to earned leave/Privilege leave on full pay and allowance as per rules of the company, but
not more than forty five days leaves for each completed year of services. Bonus as per the rules of the company
will also be available to him.

2. Company's contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund will not be included in the

computation of the ceiling on perguisites to the extent, these either singly or put together, are not taxable
under the Income Tax Act, 1961, Gratuity payable shall not exceed half a month's salary for each
completed year of service.
The Company will provide a car and telephone at his residence, However, provisions of car for the
purpose of Company's business and telephone at residence will not be considered as perquisites.
Personal long distance calls on telephone and use of car for private purpose shall be billed by the
company,

Perquisites will be restricted to an amount equal to annual salary or maximum Rs. 150,000/~ per-annum
whichever is less. The perquisites shall be evaluated, for the purpose of above ceiling, as per Income Tax
Rules; 1962.

The terms and conditions of appointed of aforesaid Whole time Directors may be varied, altered or modified
by the Board from time to time within the maximum limit laid down in Schedule V read with other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 or any amendments made hereinafterin this regard.

Where in any financial year during the currency of the tenure of the Whole time Directors the Company has
no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay remuneration to Whole time Directors by way of
salary and perquisites as specified above as minimum remuneration, subject to compliance of the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V thereto including any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force.

The Board of Directors recommends the resolutions set out in ltem no.9 of the Motice, for approval of the
Shareholders.

This may also be treated as an abstract of terms of re-appointment of Mr.Imran Siddiqui, under the provisions
of Section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Except Mr.lmran Siddigui, none of Directors of the Company is in any way either directly or indirectly
concerned or interested in the resolution except as a shareholder in general.

Brief particulars of Mr. Imran Siddigui are being given in the Report on Corporate Governance attached with
Director's Report.

8. The present term of office of Mr.Arshad Khan, as a whole Time Director of the Company will be expiring on
29.09.2019 hence based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of
Directors atits meeting held on 10.08.2018 have approved the re-appointment of Mr.Arshad Khan, subject to
the approval of the Shareholders of the company, for a further period of 3 years w.e.f. 30.09.2019. The main
terms and conditions of re-appointment of Mr. Arshad Khan, whole time Director of the Company are as
under.

SALARY :

Rs 25,000/~ per month with such annual increment as may be decided by the Board subject to maximum
salary of Rs 35,000/~ per month.

PERQUISITES:

The Whole time director shall be entitied to the following perquisites:

4. Heshall be entitled to earned leave/Privilege leave on full pay and allowance as per rules of the
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company, but not more than forty five days leaves for each completed year of services. Bonus as per the rules of
the company will also be available to him.

5. Company's contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund will not be included in the

computation of the ceiling on perquisites to the extent, these either singly or put together, are nol taxable
under the Income Tax Act, 1961, Gratuity payable shall not exceed half a month's salary for each
completed year of service.
The Company will provide a car and telephone at his residence. However, provisions of car for the
purpose of Company's business and telephone at residence will not be considered as perquisites.
Personal long distance calls on telephone and use of car for private purpose shall be billed by the
company.

Perquisites will be restricted to an amount equal to annual salary or maximum Rs 150,000/~ per annum which
ever is less. The perguisites shall be evaluated, for the purpose of above ceiling, as per Income Tax Rules,
1962.

The terms and conditions of appointed of aforesaid Whole time Directors may be varied, altered or modified
by the Board from time to time within the maximum limit laid down in Schedule V read with other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 or any amendments made hereinafter in this regard.

Where in any financial year during the currency of the tenure of the Whole time Directors the Company has no
profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay remuneration to Whole time Directors by way of
salary and perguisites as specified above as minimum remuneration, subject to compliance of the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V thereto including any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force.

The Board of Directors recommends the resolutions set out in Item no.7 of the Notice, for approval of the
Shareholders.

This may also be treated as an abstract of terms of re-appointment of Mr. Arshad Khan under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Except Mr. Arshad Khan, none of Directors of the Company is in any way either directly or indirectly
concerned or interested in the resolution except as a shareholder in general.

Brief particulars of Mr. Arshad Khan are being given in the Report on Corporate Governance attached with
Director's Report.

The present term of office of Mr.Mohd.lmran, as a whole Time Director of the Company will be expiring on
28.09.2018 hence based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of
Directors at its meeting held on 10.08.2019 have approved the re-appointment of Mr.Mohd.Imran,as a Whole
Time Director subject to the approval of the Shareholders of the company, for afurther period of 3 yearswe f.
30.09.2019. The main terms and conditions of re-appointment of Mr. Mohd.Imran, whole time Director of the
Company are as under.

SALARY :

Rs 30,000/- per month with such annual increment as may be decided by the Board subject to maximum
salary of Rs 40,000/- per month.

PERQUISITES

The Whole time director shall be entitled to the following perquisites:

1. He shall be entitled to earned leave/Privilege leave on full pay and allowance as per rules of the
company, but not more than forty five days leaves for each completed year of services. Bonus as per
the rules of the company will also be available to him.
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2. Company's conlribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund will not be included in the
computation of the ceiling on perguisites to the extent, these either singly or put together, are not taxable under the
Income Tax Act, 1961, Gratuity payable shall not exceed half a month's salary for each completed year of service.
3. The Company will provide a car and telephone at his residence. However, provisions of car for the
purpose of Company's business and telephone at residence will not be considered as perquisites.
Personal long distance calls on telephone and use of car for private purpose shall be billed by the
company.

Perquisites will be restricted to an amount equal to annual salary or “150,000/- per annum whichever is less.
The perquisites shall be evaluated, for the purpose of above ceiling, as per Income Tax Rules, 1962.

The terms and conditions of aforesaid Whole time Directors may be varied, altered or modified by the Board
from time to time within the maximum limit laid down in Schedule V read with other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act. 2013 or any amendments made hereinafter in this regard.

Where in any financial year during the currency of the tenure of the Whole time Directors the Company has no
profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay remuneration to Whole time Directors by way of
salary and perguisites as specified above as minimum remuneration, subject to compliance of the provisions
ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V thereto including any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force.

The Board of Directors recommends the resolutions set out in Item no.8 of the Notice, for approval of the
Shareholders.

This may also-be treated as an abstract of terms of re-appointment of Mr. Mohd. Imran as per the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Except Mr. Mohd. Imran, none of Directors of the Company is in any way either directly or indirectly concerned
orinterested in the resolution except as a shareholder in general,

Brief particulars of Mr. Mohd. Imran are being given in the Report on Corporate Governance attached with
Director's Report.

ITEMMo.:10.

Appointment of Independent Directors (Item no 10to13)

Based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors proposes the
Re-appointment of Mr.P.K.Sinha, (62 Years) is post graduate as Independent Director for a second term of 5
Years from September 30, 2018 not liable to retire by rotation Mr.P.K.Sinha was appuointed as Independent
Director at the 30" Annual General Meeting of the Company and hold office up to September 29,2019.The
Company has, in terms of section 160(1) of the Act received in writing a Notice from a Member proposing his
candidature for the office of Director.

The Board based on the performance evaluation and recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, considers that given his background, experience and contribution, the continued association of
Mr.P.K. Sinha would be beneficial to the Company and it is desirable to continue to avail his services as
Independent Director.

The Company has received a declaration from him to the effect that he meets the criteria of Independence as
provided in section 149(6) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEB! (Listing
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Obligations and Disclosure Requirements )Regulations 2015(SEBI Listing Obligations).In terms of Regulation
25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, he has confirmed that he is not aware of any circumstances or situation which
exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact his ability to discharge his duty.

In the opinion of the Board, he fulfill the conditions specified in the act and SEBI Listing Regulations for
appointment as an Independent Director and is Independent of the Management of the Company, the terms
and conditions of his appointment shall be open for inspection by the Members at the Registered office of the
Company during the normal business hours on any working day({except Saturday) and will also be kept open
atthe venue of the AGM till the conclusion of the AGM.

Mr. Sinhais also Director of Deep Management and Eco Consultants Pvt. Limited. Mr.P.K.Sinha

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resclution in relation to appointment of Mr.P.K.Sinha, as an
Independent Director, for the approval by the share holders of the Company.

Except Mr.P.K._Sinha, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item
MNo10..

Iterm No 11

Based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors proposes
the Re-appointment of Mr.Kumud Behari.Seth, (74 Years) is B.Sc.(Hons) and having a degree of MBA as
Independent Director for a second term of 5 Years from September 30, 2019 not liable to retire by rotation
Mr.Kumud Behari.Seth, was appointed as Independent Director at the 30" Annual General Meeting of the
Company and holds office up to September 29,2018.The Company has, in terms of section 160(1) of the Act
received in writing a Motice from a Member proposing his candidature for the office of Director.

The Board based on the performance evaluation and recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, considers that given his background, experience and contribution, the continued association of
Mr.Kumud Behari .Seth would be beneficial to the Company and itis desirable to continue to avail his services
as Independent Director.

The Company has received a declaration from him to the effect that he meets the criteria of Independence as
provided in section 149(6) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder and Requlation 16{1)(b) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements JRegulations 2015(SEBI Listing Obligations).In terms of
Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, he has confirmed that he is not aware of any circumstances or
situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact his ability to discharge his
duty.

In the opinion of the Board, he fulfill the conditions specified in the act and SEBI Listing Regulations for
appointment as an Independent Director and is Independent of the Management of the Company, the terms
and conditions of his appointment shall be open for inspection by the Membiers at the Registered office of the
Company during the normal business hours on any working day{except Saturday) and will also be kept open
atthe venue of the AGM till the conclusion of the AGM.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Special resolution in relation to appointment of Mr.Kumud Behari
Seth,, as an Independent Director, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.

Except Mr.Kumud Behari Seth, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at
itern No.11.This Explanatory Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under Regulation 17 of the
Listing agreement with the Stock Exchange.
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Mr.Kumud Behari Seth,(74 Years) is B.Sc.(Hons) and having a degree of MBA. was introduced inthe Board of
Directors in March2002 as a Non-Executive Independent Director. Mr. Kumud Behari Seth has vast experience
of 43 years in the field of Marketing and accounts.

The Board considers that his continued association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is
desirable to continue to avail services of Mr.Kumud Behari Seth, as an Independent Director.

temNo 12

Based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors appointed
Mr.Aftab Ahmad,(DIN 08415223)as additional Director of the Company and also Independent Director not
liable to retire by rotation.for a term of 5 years e from September 30, 2019, subject to approval of the
Members.

Pursuant to the provisions of section 161(1) of the Act and Articles of Association of the Company Mr.Aftab
Ahmad,shall hold office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and eligible to be appointed as
Director,. The Company has, in terms of section 160(1) of the Act received in writing a Notice from a Members
proposing his candidature for the office of Director.

The Board based on the performance evaluation and recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, considers that given his background, experience and contribution, the continued association of
Mr.Aftab Ahmad would be beneficial to the Company and it is desirable to continue to avail his services as
Independent Director.

The Company has received a declaration from him to the effect that he meets the criteria of Independence as
provided in section 149(6) ofthe Actand Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements )Regulations 2015(SEBI Listing Obligations).In terms of
Regulation 25{8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, he has confirmed that he is not aware of any circumstances or
situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impairor impact his ability to discharge his
duty.

In the opinion of the Board, he fulfill the conditions specified in the act and SEBI Listing Regulations for
appointment as an Independent Director and is Independent of the Management of the Company, the terms
and conditions of his appointment shall be open for inspection by the Members at the Registered office of the
Company during the normal business hours on any working day(except Saturday) and will also be kept open
atthe venue of the AGM ill the conclusion of the AGM.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Special resolution in relation to appointment of Mr.Aftab Ahmad, as
an Independent Director, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.

Except Mr.Aftab Ahmad, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concerned or interasted, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item
MNo.12.This Explanatory Staternent may also be regarded as a disclosure under Regulation 17 of the Listing
agreement with the Stock Exchange.

Mr.Aftab Ahmad.(74 Years) was introduced in the Board of Directors in April 1,.2019 as a Non-Executive
Independent Director.Mr.Aftab Ahmad has vast experience of 43 years in the field of Marketing and accounts.

The Board considers that his continued association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is
desirable to continue to avail services of Mr.Aftab Ahmad, as an Independent Director,
iterm No 13.
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Based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors proposes the
Re-appointment of Mrs_Sadia Kamal,(53 Years) post graduate  as Independent Director for a second term of 5
Years from September 30, 2019 not liable to retire by rotation Mrs.Sadia Kamal was appointed as Independent
Director at the 30" Annual General Meeting of the Company and hold office up to September 29,2019.The
Company has, in terms of section 160{1) of the Acl received in writing a Notice from a Member proposing her
candidature for the office of Director.

The Board based on the performance evaluation and recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, considers that given her background, experience and contribution, the continued association of
Mrs.Sadia Kamal would be beneficial to the Company and it is desirable to continue to avail her services as
independent Director.

The Company has received a declaration from her to the effect that she meets the criteria of Independence
as provided in section 149(6) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements JRegulations 2015{SEBI Listing Obligations).In terms of
Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, she has confirmed that she is not aware of any circumstances
or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact her ability to discharge
her duty.

In the opinion of the Board, she fulfill the conditions specified in the act and SEBI Listing Regulations for
appointment as an Independent Director and is Independent of the Management of the Company, the terms
and conditions of her appointment shall be open for inspection by the Members at the Registered office of the
Company during the normal business hours on any working day(except Saturday) and will also be kept open
at the venue of the AGM till the conclusion of the AGM.

Mrs. Sadia Kamal is also Director of Amin Tannery Limited

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution in relation to appointment of Mrs.Sadia Kamal, as an
Independent Director, for the approval by the share holders of the Company.

Except Mrs.Sadia Kamal, being an appeintee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out atitem
MNo13..

A brief profile of Mrs.Sadia Kamal is as under:-

Date of Birth and Age July 22,1967-52 Years

Date of Appointment August 13,2014

Qualifications M.A.(English),B.Ed. |
Expertise in specific functional areas Mrs.Sadia Kamal has been a Principal in a |
public School, Unnao(Affiiated to I|CSE
Board, New Delhi)since last 17 years. She
also continues to focus much of her time on
the social initiatives.

Directorships in other Companies(Excluding | Amin Tannery Limited

foreign and section 25 Companies as on
March21.2014

Chairmanship /Membership of specified | Nil
commitiees of the Board of above
Companies as on March 31,2014
Shareholding in the Company
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ITEM NO 14:

it has been the policy of the company to contribute in those charitable funds, which serve the society at large or for the
welfare of its employees, whether such charitable institution are directly related or not with the business of the
Company, the action of the Board is taken keeping in mind the responsibility that the Company owes to society as well
as to full fill the requirement of CSR by way of promoting preventive health care, promoting education, including special
education etc. Sometimes contribution so made exceed the limit prescribed by the section 181 of the Companies Act,
2013. The Board can not do such welfare work, beyond prescribed limit, without the approval of the members. The
aggregate of such contribution during the year ending 31.03.2020 is likely to exceed the limit as prescribe by the Act.
Therefore, your permission is requested.

The Directors recommend the resolution set out in item no 14 of the Nolice for approval of members.

Mone of the Director of the Company in any way whether, directly or indirectly, except as trustee of trust which
receive the fund, is interested or concemed in this resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors

for Super Tannery Limited

Place : Kanpur R.K. Awasthi
Date ;: 10" Aug. 2019 Company Secretary




SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
Dear Shareholder,

The Directars of your Company have pleasure in presenting the 35th Annual Report on the business and operations
of the Company together with Audited Financial Statements for the yearended 31" March 2019:

Year ended Year ended
FINANCIAL RESULTS 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Rs in lacs Rs in lacs

PROFITS:
Profit before Interest, Depreciation & extra-ordinary items 1763.95 1859.44
Less: | Interest 599.21
' Depreciation 569.93
Exchange Fluctuation Loss/(gains) 5712
Bad Debts written off i 1340.71 13.48 1239.74
Profit before tax 423.24 619.70
Provision for current tax 220.00
Provision for deferred tax 16.20
Income Tax relating to earlier Years 210.55 | (23.18) 21304
Profit after tax 212.69 406.66
Profit brought forward from previous year 119486

Other Comprehensive Income : 12.67

I E— I {62142 | _ 1207.53
fPrc:ﬂt available for appropriaticn 1834.11 1614.19

APPROPRIATIONS:

(a) Transfer to General Reserve oo 0000

(b} Proposed Dividend 0000 0000

() Provision for tax on Proposed Dividend oooo 0ooo

(d) Balance carried aver lo next year 183411 1614.19
1834.11 1614, 1%

MOTE : Figures of the previous year have been re-grouped/re-arranged In order to make them comparable.

DIVIDEND:
The Board of Directors of your Company have not recommend dividend for the year ended 31" March, 2019,

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
The extract of Annual Return as provided under sub-section {3)of section 92 of the Companies Act,2013('the Act')in
prescribed form MGT-9 is enclosed as Annexure “A’to this repart.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW:

During the year under review, the income from operation of the company was Rs 18639.44 lacs as againstRs
23497.62 lacs during the last financial year, shows decline the operational income by Rs4850 lacs . Besides
decline the operational income, the company's Gross Profit has being declined due to demerger of one Unit
with Amin Tannery Limited. The company’s overall growth is satisfactory despite recession in the market.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

The Company has six subsidiaries namely: Super Corporation Limited, , Aarifi Tanners Limited, Secure Safety Limited
Super Tannery UAE FZE Super Tannery (UK) Limited and Super ltalia s.rl . The Finacial statement including
Consolidated Fiancial statement and seprate statement in respect of each of its subsidiaries have also been placed on
the website of the CompanyA statement containing sailent feature of the Financial Statement of
subsidiaries/associates companies is forming part of Annual Financial statement. The Annual Accounts of the
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subsidiary companies will be kept open for inspection by any investor at the head office of the Company and the
subsidiary concerned.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:
During the period industrial relations have been extremely cordial. Employees' cooperation and co-ordination had
been an important factor in the growth of the organization.

FIXED DEPOSITS:
The Company has not accepled/renewed any deposit during the year under review, under the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed thereunder.

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT:

Employees are vital to the Company. We have created a favorable work environment that encourages humble
relationship. We have also set up a scalable recruitment and human resources management process, which enables
us to attract and retain high caliber employees. The Company’s also running in collaboration of UP Leather Industries
Association a training centre for recruiting trained labours.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMAN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIEBITION AND REDRESSAL ACT, 2013:

Your Company strongly believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for each and every individual
working for the Company through various intervention and practices. It is the continuous endeavor of the
Management of the Company to create and provide an environment to all its employees that is free from
discrimination and harassment including Sexual harassment.

During the yearended 31 March 2018, no complaint pertaining to sexual harassment was received by the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
Astatement of particulars of employees as specified under the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time, is
set outin the Annexure lInd forming part of Directors’ Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, and FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING &
OUTGO:

The particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption etc. pursuant to Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out in the Annexure forming part of this
Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS:
Mo significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals during the previous year which
may impact the going concern status of the Company's Operation in the future.

WHISTLE ELOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISIM:

To create enduring value for all stakeholders and ensure the highest level of honesty, and ethical behavior in all its
operations, the Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism named as SUPER Whistle Blower Policy’ in addition to
the existing code of conduct that governs the action of its employees. This Whistleblower policy aspires to encourage
all employees to report suspected or actual occurrence(s) of illegal, Unethical or inappropriate events (behaviors' or
practices) that effect Company's interest/image. A copy of the Policy is available on the website of the Company and
may be accessed through the web link www:hipp;//supertannery.com

DIRECTORS & KMP:

In terms of Article 125 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Vegarul Amin and Mr.Y.5.Katiyar, Directors of
the Company retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for their re-
appointments. Brief resume of all the Directors, their expertise in specific functional areas and names of other
companies in which Directorship held and the membership of committee of the Board as stipulated under the listing
Agreement are given in corporate governance annexure, attached to this report.
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DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
The Company has received declaration from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet
with the criteria ofindependence as prescribed under sub-section(6)of section 148 of the Companies Act,2013.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNRATION:

For the purpose of selection of any Director, the Nomination &Remuneration Committee identifies persons of integrity
who posses' relevant expertise, experience and leadership gualities required for the position and also takes into
consideration recommendation, if any received from any member of the Board. The Committee also ensures that the
incumbent fulfills such other criteria with regard to age and other gualifications as laid down under the Companies
Act, 2013 or other applicable laws.

The Board has; on the recommendation of the Nomination &Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection,
appointment and remuneration of Directors &senior Management.

The Remuneration policy of the Company is disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms a part of the
report.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

In compliance with the requirements of Regulation 27 of the listing Agreement, the Company has put in place a
Familiarization Programme for the Independent Directors to familiarize them with the Company, their roles rights
respaonsibilities in the Company, nature of the Company in which Company operates, business model etc,

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
Pursuant to Regulation 27 of the Listing Agreement, a report on Corporate Governance is given in Annexure lind to
this report.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) read with section 134(3)( ¢ ) of the Companies Act, 2013 with
respect to Directors’ Respaonsibility Statement, itis hereby confirmed:

(iY Thatin the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31stMarch 2019, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed alongwith properexplanation relating to material departures;

(i) That the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period,;

(iiiy That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adeguate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) Thatthe Directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2019 on a going concern
basis.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

In accordance with Accounting Standard AS-21 on Consolidated Financial Statements, your Directors have pleasure
in attaching the Consolidated Financial Statements which form part of Annual Reports and Accounts. These
consolidated financial statements include accounts of Super Tannery (U.K.) Limited, Aarifi Tanners Limited, Super
Corporation Limited, Secure Safety Limited, Super Italia s.r.| and Super Tannery UAE (FZE).

AUDITORS: M/s. Rajeev Prem & Associates Chartered Accountants, Kanpur (Registration No 008305C) the
statutory Auditors of the Company are retiring at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, we
recommend their re-appointment. They have furnished a certificate to the effect that their re-appointment if made, will
be in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act,2013.
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COSTAUDITOR:
As requires under the Companies (Cost Accounting Records) Rules 2011, the requirement of Cost Audit report does
not applicable to the Company as per MCA.circular. Hence no report was filed.

SECRETARIALAUDITORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/S K_N. Shridhar, & Associates,

Company secretary Kanpur to undertake the secretarial Audit of the Company.

The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as "Form No. MR- 3"
The Audit Report and the Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2018-19 does not contain any gualification,
reservation or adverse remark by the Auditors.

LOANS, GURANTEES & INVESTMENTS:
The particulars of Loans, guarantees and investments have been disclosed in the financial statements.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is available on the website of the Company
www.supertannery.com.

All contracts/arrangements entered by the Company during the previous financial year with the related parties were in
the ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis. The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors reviewed
the transaction (which are repetitive in nature) and the Audit Committee granted approval for such transactions.

The disclosures as required under AS-18 have been made in notes forming part of the standalone financial statement.
The particulars of contracts or arrangements entered in to by the company with related parties referred to in sub-
section (1) of section 188of the companies Act, 2013 has been disclosed in Form Mo.ADC-2 which is annexed hereto.

AUDITORS' REPORT:
The comments of the Auditors in their Audit Report and reference to "Notes on Accounts” forming part of the Financial
Results are self explanatory and need no further comments.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors would like to express their gratitude and appreciation for the continued support and co-operation
received from State Bank of India, Central & State Government Authorities, Regulatory Bodies, Stock Exchanges and
Shareholders.

Your Directors wish to place their deep sense of appreciation on record for the devoted services of the officers, staff
and workers of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: KANPUR IFTIKHARUL AMIN MOHD.IMRAN
Date: 10.08.2019 Managing Director Whole Time Director
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ANNEXURE | TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Statement as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of the
Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014 .

(a) Conservation of Energy:

(1)  Energy conservation measures taken:Upgradation of power generation and distribution systems for long term
energy savings. Special emphasis has been laid on boiler and steam generation.

Additional investments and proposal, if any, being implemented for reduction of consumption of energy:
Introduction of energy saving devices and systemns in process machines.

Impact of the measures at (1) & (2) above for the reduction of energy consumption and consequent impact on
the cost of production of goods:Energy conservation measures have helped in generation of required quantity
of steam at a minimum cost which resulted in improving efficiencies and reduction in costs.

Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production as per Form A of the Annexure in
respect ofindustries specified in the Schedule thereto:Not Applicable

Technology Absorption: Research and Development (R & D):

Specific area in which R & D carried out by the Company:(a) New product development based on different raw

hides/skins.(b) Apart from production of safely footwear establishing standard products for fashion
shoes/sandals.

Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D:(a) Cost reduction and better unit realization.(b) Better product
acceptance.

Future plan of action:To continue to invest in R & D for faster introduction of new products.

Expenditure on R & D:
2018-19 2017-18
(Rs in lacs (Rs in lacs)

(a) Capital 0000 0000
(b) Recurring 33.18 39.78
(c) Total 33.18 39.78
(d) Total R & D Expenditure as % of turnover 0.18% 0.17%

Technology Absorption, Adoption And Innovation:

Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adoption and innovation: The Company is using
indigenous technology and is developing in house technology and is not dependant on any outside technology
! source.

Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts:  NotApplicable

Incase of imported technology (Imported during the last 5 years reckoned from the beginning of the financial
year):

(a) Technologyimported
b) Yearofimport

(
) Hastechnology been fully absorbed? Not Applicable
(

d} [fnotfully absorbed, areas where not taken place,
reasons therefore and future plan of action
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(1)

{c) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO:

Activities relating to exports, initiative taken to increase exports, development of new export markets or

products and export plans: On Export front, Company's performance is quite satisfactory and it is expected to
be strong in the time to come.

Total foreign exchange earned & used:

(a)
(b)

Foreign exchange used

Foreign exchange eamed (FOB value of exports)

2018-19
(Rsin lacs)

13,502.23
1088.31

2017-18

{Rs in lacs)

16221.18
1816.10

STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS OF MANAGING AND JOINT MANAGING DIRECTORS FORMING PART
OF THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT:

MName

Designation

Gross
Remuneration

Qualification

Experience
(Years)

Date of
Commencament
of employment

Age

(Years)

Farticulars
of previous
employment

Mr.
Iftikharul
Amin

Managing
Director

Rs. 22,00.000

Post
Graduate

34

06.02.1984

61

Promoter

Mr. Igbal
Ahsan

Jt.Managing
Director

Rs. 22,00,000

Graduate

21.12.1588

Promoter

Mr.
WVeqgarul
Amin

Jt.Managing
Director till
31.12.2018

Rs. 16.50,000

Leather
Technologist

01.01,1890

Promoter

Mr. Iftikharul Amin, Mr. lgbal Ahsan and Mr. Vegarul Amin being brothers are related to each other within the
meaning of schedule |Aof Companies Act, 2013.

Remuneration includes salary, commision and perguisites as per rules of the company and recorded under
the Income Tax Act, 1961,

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: KANFUR
Date: 10. 08.2019

IFTIKHARUL AMIN
Managing Director

MOHD.IMRAN
Whole Time Director
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ANNEXURE -1l TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

In accordance with the Regulation 17-to 27of ( LODR) Regulation 2015 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock
Exchanges in India (Regulation27) and some of the best practices followed internationally on Corporate Governance,
the report containing the details of governance system and processes at Super Tannery Limited is as under:

Corporate Governance Philosophy

At Super Tannery Limited it is our belief that as we move closer towards our aspirations of becoming a global
corporation our corporate governance standards must be globally benchmarked. That gives us confidence of having
put in the right building blocks for future growth and ensuring that we achieve our ambitions in a prudent and
sustainable manner.

Shareholders Communications

The Board recognizes the importance of two-way communication with shareholders for giving a balanced report of
results & progress and responds to the guestions and issues raised in a timely and consistent manner. Shareholders
seeking information may contact the Company directly throughout the year. They also have an opportunity to ask
questions in person at the Annual General Meeting. Shareholders can contact the company via dedicated
shareholder contact points as provided with this report or through any of Investor Service Centre of the Company's
RFegistrars and Transfer Agents. The company ensures that queries, complaints and suggestions are responded in a
timely and consistent manner,

Role of Company Secretary in Overall Governance Process

The Company Secretary holds a key role in ensuring that the Board Procedures are followed and regularly reviewed.
The Company Secretary ensures that all relevant information, details and documents are made available to the
directors and senior management for effective decision making at the meeting. The Company Secretary is primarily
responsible to ensure compliance with applicable statutory requirements and is the interface between the
management and regulatory authorities for governance matters. All the Directors of the company have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary.

Observance of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India

The Institute of the Company Secretaries of India (ICSl), one of the premier professional bodies in India, has issued
Secretarial Standards on important aspects like Board Meelings, General Meeting, Payment of Dividend,
Maintenance of Registers and records, Minutes of Meetings, Transmission of Shares and Debentures, Passing of
Resolution By Circulation, Affixing of Common Seal, Forfeiture of Shares and Board's Report although these
standards are recommendatory in nature, the Company substantially adheres to the standards voluntarily.

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

(i} The Board of Directors comprises a Managing Director, and Joint Managing Director five Executive and Six
MNon-Executive Directors. Out of 11 Directors Four directors are Independent and Mon-executive Directors,
Woman director is Independent non-executive and two are non-Independent and non-Executive directors.

{ii) None of the directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of more than &
committees as specified in the regulation across all the Companies in which he/she is a director. Necessary
disclosure about position in other public companies as on 31" March 2018 has been made by the Director.

(iii} The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board meetings held during the
year and the number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanship/Membership held by them in other
companiesis given below. Other directorships do notinclude alternate directorship and directorship of private
limited companies, Chairmanship/Membership of Board Committees included on Audit, Rernuneration and
Shareholder/Investors Grievances committees.

fiv) The present strength of the Board is 11 comprising Five executive and Six non-executive directors. During
the year 2018-19, the Board mel 4 times (as against the minimum requirement of four meetings) on the
following dates: 30" May 2018,11" Aug 2018, 14" November,2018, and 12" Feb 2019, the maximum time gap
between any two board meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty days.

The following table gives details of directors' attendance at the Board meetings and at the last Annual General
Meeting, number of membership held by director in the Board/Committees of various companies:
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Name Category | Attendance Particulars | Number of other Directorships
Committee Member/Chairman
Board Last AGM Director- Other Committee
Meetings ships Committee  |Chairman
Membership

Iftikharul Amin MD 3 Yes 5 1
Igbal Ahsan JMD 2 Yes 5 1
Veqgarul Amin NED 3 Yes 4
Imran Siddiqui ED 4 Yes 2
Arshad Khan ED 4 YES
Mohd. Imran ED 4 YES 2
Yogendra Singh Katiyar NED 3 Yes
Kumud Behari Seth NED-I 1 3 2
P. K. Sinha NED-I 1 1 3 1
Sadia Kamal NED-1 4
Mohsin Sharif NED-I 1 1 2 1

MD-Managing Director; JMD-Joint Managing Director; ED-Executive Director; NED-I-Non-
Executive Director - Independent.

None of the Director is member of more than 10 committees or Chairman of more than 5 committees across all
companies in which he/she is Director. Brief resume of Directors seeking re-appointment, nature of their expertise
in specific functional area, is given here under:

a.

Mr. Iftikharul Amin: Mr. Iftikharul Amin, Managing Director of the Company (61years), is a Post Graduate.
He is named in Article of Association of the Company as First Director of the Company and appointed as
Managing Director in 1989. Mr. Iftikharul Amin has been closely associated with the Company for over 36
years and is involved in the operation of the Company. He is having very good experience of leather and
leather products. His services are required very much to steer the company smoothly. He is also director of
the following companies :-

Super Tannery (UK) Limited

Aarifi Tanners Limited

Amin Tannery Limited

Jajmau Tannery Effluent Traetment Association
Super Corporation Limited

gL

Mr. Igbal Ahsan: Mr. Igbal Ahsan, Joint Managing Director (58 years), is a Graduate. He joined the Board of
Super Tannery Limited as an Executive Director in 1988-89 and appointed as Joint Managing Director in
1993-94. Mr. Igbal Ahsan has been closely associated with the Company for over 32years and is involved in
the operation of the Company. He is having very good experience of leather and leather products. His
services are required very much to steer the company smoothly. He is also director of the following companies

Super Tannery (UK) Limited
Aarifi Tanners Limited

Amin Tannery Limited
Super Corporation Limited

prON=-

Mr. Veqarul Amin: Mr. Veqarul Amin, (56 years), is a Qualified Leather Technologist. He joined the Board of
Super Tannery Limited as Director (Technical) in 1990 and appointed as Joint Managing Director in 2001 and
ceased to be JMD wef. 31.12.2018.

Mr. Vegarul Amin has been closely associated with the Company for over 30 years and involve in the
operation of the Company. He is having very good experience of leather and leather products. His services
are required very much to steer the company smoothly. He is also director of the following companies:-

1. Banthar Industrial Pollution Control Company
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2. Amin Colonizers & Developers Limited
3. Amin Tannery Limited

d. Mr. Imran Siddiqui: Mr. Imran Siddiqui, age about 61 years, is a chemical Engineer. He joined the Board of
directors of the company in 1992-93 as an alternate director. His efficiency and capability enabled the
company to appoint him as a whole time Director in 1998-99. Mr. Siddiqui has been associated with the
company for over 37 years and closely involved in the operations of the company. He is responsible for
Human Resources Development, Legal, Administration, Information & Technology and Vegetable tanned
Sole leather Production. He has vast experience and his services are required by the company to steer it
smoothly. Mr. Imran Siddiqui is also Director in Secure Safety Limited formally known as Super Safetywears
Limited,.

e. Mr. Arshad Khan: Mr. Arshad Khan, Age 55 years is a Graduate and has been associated with the Company
for the last 24 years and closely involve in the export marketing of finished leather of Company. He was
introduced in the Board in the year 2000 as Additional Director and was regularized at the 16" Annual General
Meeting of the Company as a whole time Director. He has vast experience of export of leather and leather
products. He has visited many countries for this purpose and gained rich experience. His service is required
for steering the export of the company. Mr. Khan is not director of any other company.

f. Mr. Mohd. Imran: Mr. Mohd. Imran (52 years) is a Chartered Accountant having experience in export, import,
accounts, excise, customs and foreign trade matters. He is very initiative and closely associated with the
company since long time. Mr. Mohd Imran is also director in Secure Safety Limited and Super Tannery (UK)
Limited.

g. MrAftab Ahmad: age 75 years, is an independent Director of the Company, He is having vast experience in
leather and plays an important role in suggesting the company to increase its production and selling the
product. He also suggests better ways to labors and technicians for handling with complexities during the
production. Mr Aftab Ahmad, is also Director in Amin Tannery Limited. The Company has appointed him as an
Independent Director for a period of 5 years from the date of AGM,not liable to retirement by rotation.

h. Mr. Kumud Behari Seth: Mr. Kumud Behari Seth age 74 years is B.Sc. (Hons.) and having a Degree of
MBA. He was introduced in the Board of Directors of the company in March 2002 as a non Executive Director.
Mr. Kumud Behari Seth has vast experience of 43 years in the field of Marketing and Accounts. His services
are required by the company from time to time to steer it smoothly. Mr. Kumud Behari Seth is also Director in
Aarifi Tanners Limited. The Company has re-appointed him as an Independent Director for a second term of 5
years from the date of AGM,not liable to retirement by roatation.

j- Mr. P. K. Sinha: Mr. P.K. Sinha (61 years) is post graduate and was introduced in the Board of Director of the
company in January 2008 as a Non- Executive Independent Director. Mr. Sinha is also director of Deep
Management and Eco Consultants Pvt.Ltd. The Company has appointed him as an Independent Director not
liable to retire by rotation fora second term of 5 years from the date of AGM.

k. Mrs. Sadia Kamal: Mrs. Sadia Kamal, (52 years) is post graduate and was introduced in the Board of Director
of the company in August 2014 as a Non- Executive Independent Director. Mrs. Sadia Kamal, is also director
in Amin Tannery Limited. The Company has appointed her as an Independent Director not liable to retire by
rotation for a second term of 5 years from the date of AGM.

I. Mr. Yogendra Singh Katiyar Mr. Yogendra Singh Katiyar, (42 years) is M.Sc-l and Administration of Civilians
in EME was introduced in the Board of Director of the company in May 2015 as an additional Director of the
Company. Mr. Y.S.Katiyar, is not a Director in any other Company. On January 1,2019 the Company has
change his status as Non-Executive Non-Independent Director from the Whole Time Director liable to retire
by rotation and being eligible for re-appointment as director.
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da.
b.

4,

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE:
The Audit Committee consists of three Members - Mr. Kumud Behari Seth (Non-Executive Independent Director)
acts as Chairman, Mr. Mohsin Sharif (Mon-Executive Independent Director) member and Mr.P.K. Sinha (Non-
Executive Independent Director) member of the committee. During the year 4 meetings were held one of which
was before finalization of annual accounts. The said meetings were held on 30" May 2018, 117 Aug.2018, 14th
Nov. 2018, 127 February 2019. The meetings of the committee were attended by the members of the committee.
Mr. Kumud Behari Seth has financial and accounting knowledge.

The meetings of Audit Committee were attended by the heads of accounts & finance and other respective
functional heads and statutory auditors as invitees. Members held discussion with the statutory auditors during
the meetings of the Committee and hailf yearly and annual audited financial accounts of the company were
reviewed by the Audit Committee before consideration and approval by the Board. The Committee reviewed the
internal control system also.

The terms of reference specified by the Board to the Audit Committee are contained under Regulation 17-27 of
{LODR) of the Listing Agreement. They are as follows:

Oversight of the company's financial reporting process and the disclosure ofits financial information.

Recommending the appointment and removal of external auditors, fixation of audit fee and also approval for
payment forany other services.

Reviewing with management the annual financial statements before submission to the Board, (i) the going
concemn assumption (i) compliance with accounting standards (i) compliance with stock exchange and legal
requirements concerning financial statements.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit functions.

Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow-up there on.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the Board.

Discussion with external auditors before the audit commences nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

For better compliance of Corporate Governance, the Remuneration Committee of the Company has been
designed to determine Company's policy on specific remuneration package of Executive Directors on the basis of
their performance. The Remuneration and Commission decided by the Committee are paid in accordance with
the Companies Act, 2013. The Composition of Remuneration Committee is as follows:

MName Status
Mr. Mohsin Sharif (Non Executive Director - Independent) Chairman
Mr. Kumud BehariSeth  (Non Executive Director - Independeant) Member
Mr. P.K.Sinha {Non Executive Director - Independent) Member

Details of remuneration paid to Directors are given below: —
Name of Director Salary | Sitting Fees Total
including (Rs’in lacs)
perquisites
Mr. Iftikharul Amin 22.00,000 22.00,000
Mr.igbal Ahsan | 22,00,000 | | 22,00,000
Mr. Vegarul Amin 16,50,000 16,50,000
Mr. Imran Siddigqui 7.07,100 707,100
Mr. Mohd. lmran
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5. SHAREHOLDERS'INVESTORS' GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE:

The Company has constituted Shareholders’ [ Investors' Grievance Committee (the committee), comprising
Mr.P.K Sinha, Chairman, Mr. Iftikharul Amin and Mr. lgbal Ahsan. The Committee, inter-alia, approves issue of
duplicate certificates and reviews all matters connected with the securities transfer. The Committee also looks
into redressing of Shareholders' ! Investors' Complaints like transfer of shares, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-
receipt of dividends etc. Mr R.K. Awasthi, the Company Secretary acts as a Secretary of the Committee as well as
Compliance Officer. Total Mo, of complaints received and replied to the satisfaction of shareholders during the
year was 121. No outstanding complaints were lying unresolved as on 31st March 2018. No investors' grievances
are pending for a period exceeding one month with the Company.

CSRCOMMITTEE:

The Company has constituted CSR. Committee (the committee), comprising Mr.Kumud Behari Seth, Chairman,
Mr. Mohd.Imran, and Mr. Igbal Ahsan. The Committee, inter-alia, approves the CSR activities as run by the
Company through its Amin Weilfare Trust. Besides this it has been the policy of the Company to take up activities
such as healthcare including preventive healthcare, education etc. During the year company has spent more than
2%ofthe average net profit of the Company through its Hospital and Schools.

The basic aim of the Company CSR policy is to improve the lives of the local Community.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

During the last three years, following Annual General Meetings (AGM) & Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM)

were held:

Year Location Date Time

2015-16 (AGM) 187/170 Jajmau, Kanpur 30.09.2016 9.00.a.m.

2018-17 (AGM) 187/170 Jajmau, Kanpur 29.00.2017 9.00a.m

2017-18(AGM) 1871170 Jajmau Kanpur 27.09:2018 9.00A.M

7. DISCLOSURE:
{a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions i.e. transactions of the Company of

material nature, with its promoters, the directors or the management, their subsidiaries or refatives etc.
that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

None of the transactions with any of the relafed parties were in conflict with the interest of the
Company. All the related party transactions are negotiated on arms length basis and are only
intended to safeguard the interest of the company. Wherever necessary, the related party
transactions are disclosed in Notes to the Accounts, forming part of the Annual Report.

Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock
Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last
three years.

There were no instances of non-compliance of any matter related to the capital markets during
the last three years, except penality imposed by the SEBI due to wrong interpretation of Reg. 17 (1)

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:
Cluarterly Results: The quarterly results were published in the "The Financial Express (English), All India editions
and "Jansatta (Hindi), All India editions. The Management Discussion and Analysis (M D & A) is a part of Annual
Report.

9. INSIDERTRADING:
In accordance with Securities & Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation 1992, as
amended in February 2002, the Board of Directors of the company formulated the code of conduct for prevention
of insider trading in shares of the company by its employees.

10. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

10.1 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: Date and Time 30" September 2019at 9:00 a.m.
Venue—187/170, Jajmau, KANPUR-208 010.
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10.2 FINANCIAL CALENDAR (1st April 2019 to 31st March 2020: (Tentative))

BOARD MEETINGS:

Results forthe quarter ending 30.06.2019: 2" week of August 2019

Results for the quarter ending 30.09.2019: 2" week of November 2019

Results for the quarter ending 31.12.2019: 2nd week of February 2019

Results for the gquarter ending 31.03.2020: Last week of May 2020 {as per Listing Agreement.

BOOK CLOSURE DATE/record date: 23" September 2019 to 24" September 2019 (both days inclusive)

Dividend: Your Directors have not recommended dividend for the year ended 31" March 2019.

(a) LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES ON STOCK EXCHANGES AT:
1.The Stock Exchange, Mumbai, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, MUMBAI-400001.

NOTE: Annual Listing Fees for the year 2019-20 as applicable has been paid to the BSE.
(b)DEMAT ISIN NUMBERS IN NSDL & CDSL: Equity Shares INE460D01020

STOCK CODE: Trading in Mumbai Stock Exchange and Stock Code is 523842,

Performance of Company's Equity Share
Company's Equity Share
Months O
April 2018 6.00 4.28
May 2018 4.82 3.84
June 2018 477 3.30
July 2018 420 345
August 2018 4.99 3e2
September 2018 4 55 am
October 2018 3.84 2.75
Movember 2018 394 3.16
December 2018 3.80 2.83
January 2019 3.60 2.83
February 2019 337 2.03
March 2019 278 219

REGISTRARAND TRANSFERAGENT:

KARVY Fintech Pvt. Ltd. (Karvy Consultants Ltd. )

Karvy Selenium Tower B”, Plot Mo 31&32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Gachibowli,
HYDERABAD-500032 Telangana.India

Phone: 40-67162222 33211000 ; Fax: 40-23420814

Email: ussingh@karvy.com; mailmanager@karvy.com

SHARETRANSFER SYSTEM:

In compliance of SEB| Circular No.DECC/FITTC/CIR-15/2002 dated 27th December 2002, your
Company has appointed common agency to shareholders for all the work relating to share registry in
terms of both physical and electronic at single point by our Registrar & Transfer Agent i.e. KARVY Fintech
Put. Ltd. (K.FPL.) Hyderabad. The share transfers, which are received in physical form, are processed
and the share certificates returned within a period of 10 to 15 days from the date of receipt, subject to the
documents being valid and complete in all respect.
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10.9: SHARE HOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31.03.2019
S.

=
o

Description Cases | Shares
BANKS 3| 3000
CLEARING MEMBERS o] I 9874
DIRECTORS AND THEIR RELATIVES 10 | 63461434
HUF 129 2829662
BODIES CORPORATES 3915828
NRI| Mon-Repatriation | 149034
MNOMN RESIDENT INDIAMS 503574
RESIDENT INDIVIDUALS 33414040
| IEPF o 3686914 |
Total: 6657 | 107973360

(o |ea =1 |eh [th B [ [ |=

Distribution Schedule as on 31st March 2019:

Category Mo. of Cases % of
Cases | Total Shares Amount Amount
1- 5000 5727 66.03% 11075559 11075559 10.26 %
5001- 10000 533 8.01% 3807944 3807944 3.53%
10001- 20000 186 2.79% 2678088 2678088 2.48%
20001- 30000 75 1.13% 1896551 1896551 1.76%
30001- 40000 24 0,36% B51099 Be1089 0.79%
40001- 50000 28 0.42% 1324366 1324356 1.23%
50001- 100000 34 0.51% 2345638 2345638 2.17%

100001 & Above 50 0.75% 83994115 83994115
TOTAL 6657 100.00% 1079723360 | 107973360

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY:

The company has entered into agreement with NSDL and CDSL for the dematerialization of its equity
shares, The equity shares of the company are frequently traded onthe BSE, Approximately 91.03% of the
equity shares issued by the Company have been dematerialized up to 31st March 2019

OUTSTANDING GDR/ADR/WARRANTS OR ANY CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS, CONVERSION
DATEAND LIKELY IMPACT ON EQUITY : Nil

PLANTLOCATIONS:
(a) Chrome Tannery : 187170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur-208 010
{b} Sole Tannery : (i) Mona Nagar, Jajmau, Kanpur-208 010,
; (i} 1877170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur— 208 010
() Fashion Shoe Division : 6, Akrampur, Unnao—-209 801
{d) Footwear Division ; 169, Jajmau, Kanpur-208 010,
{e) Safety Shoe Division ; Leather Technology Park, Banthar, Unnao, U.P.

ADDRESS FOR INVESTORS' CORRESPONDENCE:

Shareholders correspondence should be addressed to our Registrar & Transfer Agents at the address
mentioned above. Shareholders may also contact Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the
Company at;

187/170. Jajmau, Kanpur-208010

Phone: 0512-7522000371, 7522000372, 7522000373 Fax: 1152-2460792,

E-mail: share{@supertannery.com; info@supertannery.com
Website: www.supertannery.com

Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all their correspondence to their
respective Depository Participant.
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11. CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Company has a code of conduct applicable to its Directors and senior management personnel.

Declaration as required under the Listing Agreement:

All Directors and senior management of the company have affirmed compliance with company's Code of Conduct for
the financial year ended 31" March 2019,

IFTIKHARULAMIN

Kanpur: 10.08.2019 Managing Director

12. NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:
The company has adopted non-mandatory reguirements to the following extent:

Chairman of the Board — The Company does not have a Chairman. At every Board meeting, a Director is elected
to preside over the meeting. The company has constituted Remuneration committee of the Board.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: KANPUR IFTIKHARUL AMIN MOHD.IMRAN
Date:10.08.2018 Managing Director Whole Time Director




SUPER TANNERY LIMITED
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Industry Structure and Development:

The Indian Leather Industry plays a significant role in the Indian Economy in view of its substantial export earnings,
employment generation and growth opportunities. The export of leather and leather products has decreased over
past few years.

The Company is striving high to capture over Global Market in respect of Leather and Leather Products. The Company
has taken various steps to promote company's products all over the world and it is being done in line with global trends
to enhance scale, global competitiveness and financial flexibility and also to contribute towards achievement of
company's objective and to increase revenue, production volume, market shares and shareholder's returns.

Your company in view of the competitive scenario has taken various steps to meet these challenges and also
capilalize on budding opportunities available. The company is regularly carrying out detailed analysis of leather
industry and has been making all possible efforts to understand the various minutiae of the emerging market scenario.
The company has been investing considerable amount of funds on its Research & Development Programmes in order
toenrich and improve the quality of products.

Opportunities:

The Company has gained reputation and established itself globally as Supplier of quality products. The company has
demonstrated global competitiveness and has achieved international standards for the quality of its products and its
immense capabilities provide massive opportunities in the foreign market. Company's overall strategy is to enhance
shareholder value by receiving better returns through a long-term investment.

Threat:
The company is fully aware of the factors dictating competition and has been investing with the ups and downs

through its various effective measures like cost optimization, competitive pricing, improved production process and
enhanced customer satisfaction.

Even under difficult cperating conditions, due to pollution of issues company has been consistently performing at its
best. It is expected that company's sound policies, competitive cost position will enable the company to lead the
market effectively.

To exist in the competitive market and improve the value of shareholder, company is consistently considering all the
significant factors, which provide sharp edges that enable company to enhance the margin.

Out Look:

Company's maximum operational income is based on the margin on export of leather and leather products. As most of
part of the earning is realized from Export, out lock depends upon the global economic scenario, global demand and
supply and International product prices. Above all the performance of your company largely depends on the Ex-imp
policy of the Union Government. Looking at the overall development of the Indian economy and the efforts of the
Central Government to achieve higher GDP, Board of directors of your company is very much optimistic to the future of
the Company.

Risks and Concerns:

Although Your Company does not perceive any serious threal, still company is taking care against the risk of growing
pressure of prices, foreign exchange rates variation, current and future litigation, working capital management, bad
debts etc. Foreign exchange liabilities / revenues are mainly concerned with the company's operation. Regular
monitoring of movement of foreign exchange rates is carned out and decisions are taken as towhen outstanding are
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to be covered and payments are to be made. Working Capital requirement are to be kept at minimum level in
order to maintain the lowest possible interest rate.

Company has strongly prepared itself to meel cutthroat competition in global market by adhering to international
quality standards of its product.

In addition to above company has overall risk management strategy, follows such practices & policies that are
framework of efficient management to count the risk in advance.

Internal Control System and their Adequacy:

The company has made sufficient arrangement for internal control system and its monitoring for keeping proper
record of the purchase of raw materials, stores, components, plant and machineries, equipments and all other assets
for production and sale of finished leather and leather products. The company has clearly fixed rules and
respansibilities for all management personnel and all operational activities are well controlled. The system ensures
authorization of all transactions, records and the reports correctly and properly through computerized system.

The Audit committee of the Company also re-examines adequacy of internal controls, systems of risk management
policies adopted by the Company:.

Company's Laws and Regulations are also reviewed by the internal Audit Team regularly from time to time and its
report is submitted to the promoters. In order to provide sufficient support for business promotion of the company, the
finance and commercial functions have been properly set. The company takes into account from time to time and
Analysis its progress in accordance with the Laws and Regulations set by the intermnal auditors. In support of best
practices for internal control, standard operating norms and guidelines are being issued. The Company also ensures
all financial operating, and information technology systems are also evaluated from time to time.

Environment and safety:

The Company feels its responsibility and is fully aware of the importance to achieving exhibiting healthy
environmental performance by checking effect of its ‘activities, product or services for the environment. The
environment policy of the company fully complies with the environmental laws and prevention of water, air and noise
pollution and all efforts are made for continual improvement in the environmental performance. The Company has
also initiated focusing its attention on "Charter on Corporate Responsibility” under the policy of the Governmenit of
India. The Company takes all measure to save and minimize the environmental effect on air, water by strictly using and
further sounding its environmental management system to meet its objective. The Company ensures providing safe
work place, machines and safety control measures within the organization and a sense of safety consciousness is
spread amongst all the workmen, employees and supervisors.

Industrial Relations and Human Resources Development:

The Company gives much importance to maintain good relations with its employees ensuring that employees feel
valued and energetic in creating an atmosphere and culture so that they can maximize their contribution in increasing
the growth and further development of the company, and in turn the Company thinks of individual growth of its
employees for their dedicated participation in organizational development.

The company's priority is to reduce the employee's turnover ratio. The company's approach and efforts are to create
congenial work environment for individual growth, which enable the development of whole organization. Relationship
with the employees remains cordial through out the year. The company has a team of over 525 dedicated employees
working towards the company's mission.
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Discussion of Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance:

Effective working management is regularly concentrating to reduce the cost of debt as much as possible. Prudent
cash management endeavor to utilize the optimum Working Capital in order to reduce the interest cost and also to
avoid the bottleneck of company's operation.

Research & Development

The company is committed to continue technological innovation, physical and chemical standardization and
improvement to achieve high standards of product quality and customer satisfaction

Key factors that keep the company one step ahead;

a. Extensiveinteraction with the latest technological developments.

b, Presenceinall major trade fairs, seminars and workshops for optimum knowledge up gradation.
c.  Well gualified and progressive workforce.

d. Fullyequipped Laboratory

The tannery units of the company work under guidance of a well-equipped laboratory conducting physical and
chemical tests. It also has a pilot tannery to conduct trials of new leathers at a small scale before its implementation in
bulk production. The |laboratory has all the requisites to perform tests of leather as per EN, 150 and DIN standards.
The company is amongst few companies which provide certification as per the REACH guidelines of European
Chemicals Agency.

Design Studio: The footwear units of the company conduct their production as per the guidance of a newly built, state
of the art designing cell, lead by well gualified shoe technologists and designers. Due to a rapid change in the product
profile over the past few years, this studio was installed keeping in mind the ever-changing tests and preferences of
the customers, while keeping time frame into consideration.

Quality Assurance: A major factor which keeps the company ahead is its obsession with total quality, which includes
products of the highest standards, quick and efficient customer service, leading to complete customer satisfaction.
Factors like these help the company to retain customers, some of them_ for aslong as 30 years.

Cautionary Statement:

Statements in the Management Discussion & Analysis Report which seek to describe the company's objectives,
projections estimates, expectations and predictions may be considered to be "forward looking statements" and are
stated as required by applicable laws and regulations. Actual results could differ from those expressed or implied.
Many factors including global and domestic demand-supply conditions, prices, raw materials availability,
technological changes, changes in Govermment policies, tax laws and other statues may affect the actual results,
which could be different from what the Directors’ envisage in terms of future performance and out look.




SUPER TANNERY LIMITED
REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Social Responsibility:

Super Tannery Limited (STL) believes in lotal commitment to society. The promoters of the company run an
organization known as AMIN WELFARE TRUST (AWT ) which follows the motto of "Promoting Hope in Life." This trust
has taken up number of social causes in the field of EDUCATION & HEALTHCARE.

STL nurtures relationships across the entire range of stakeholders, which has the Company understand pertinent
issues, develop businesses, enhance shareholder value and manage risks better. 1t is the relationship, trust and
commitment to stake holder's interest and the warm reciprocal of the same by the stakeholders that make STL robust,
resilient and sustainable. STL actively integrates shareholder goals with its own and then pursues them
collaboratively.

STL's commitment towards excellence in Health, Safety and Environment Performance is one of the company's core
values. The company is unwavering and its policy of, "safety of persons overrides all production targets®, which drives
all employees to continuously break new grounds in safety management for the benefit of the people, property,
environment and the communities in which STL operates. This is the Company's responsibility as a global corporate
citizen. The 'pursuit to achieve world class operational excellence’ has been the key focus of the Company.

Healthcare:

AWT operates a hospital known as Chaudhry Ehsan Kareem Hospital, well equipped with the most modern
machinery and infrastructure, in the industrial area of Jajmau, Kanpur City, providing healthcare facilities in a number
of fields including Neurology, Eye Care, Endocrinology, Dentistry and Pre/Past Matemal Care.

STL has a program an initiative to promote healthy workplaces and reduce health and safety risks, has been
instrumental in creative a culture of implementing health, safety and environment project on priority basis,

This performance has also helped the Company to improve Iits performance on the occupational health and safety
front.

Education:

On 26" January 2010, AWT launched a state of art educational institution namely Super International School with
the aim to provide world class education at affordable cost to the middle income group. The school is affiliated with the
C.B.S.E board and is equipped with the latest infrastructure required for a healthy and constructive approach to
education. To know more, please visit www superinternationalschool.com

Environment

When the leather industry enough developed, the pollution of air and water increased and the stage reached where
scientists started thinking on making better use or reuse of material which caused pollution keeping in mind the
economical factor else no industrialist would accept the change.

Special emphasis has been laid on use of low waste technology with minimum possible expenditure and maximum
quality production because it is natural for any industrialists to resist a change unless it is likely to give better quality
production with least expenditure. Pollution is given the last priority by them whereas we give it the first priority.

At STL we are very much cautious about pollution. We have our own water treatment and chrome recovery plant in
which we collect the drain water full of nickel, chromium and many more harmful substances: Our deep interest is in
green and clean environment. The chrome is used in the processing of hides & skins inwhich B5% is consumed during
the process while 35% goes waste. The presence of chrome in the discharged water of tanneries is hazardous for
public health as its excessive use can cause severe skin diseases. To minimize the danger we have water treatment
plant to purify water to its maximum possible level. We believe to contribute in safe and healthy environment, STLis an
eco friendly tannery.

Health, Safety & Environment

We at STL are committed to provide a safe and healthy working environment for our employees by adopting a
proactive approach. It is parl of our work ethic to ensure that safety, health and environment safeguards are in
place right from the inception to the execution stage. We accept the need for constant up gradation of safety &
health standards commensurate with the rapid changing technology in production.
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Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2019
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

[ CIN=- L19131UP1984PLC006421
| Registration Date:- 6™ FEB.1984
Name of the Company: SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

| Category / Sub-Category of the Company Limited by shares
| Company:
| Address of the Registered office and 187/170,Jajmau Road Kanpur-208010
| contact details Ph. 7522000370, 371, 372

| Whether listed company Yes

| Name, Address and Contact details of  |Karvy Fintech Pvt.Ltd.

Registrar and Transfer Agent: Karvy selenium Towers B, Plot No 31,32, Gachibowli
Financial District Nanakramguda, Hyderabad-500032 AP,

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the

company shall be stated:-
Sl. No.| Name and Description NIC Code of % to total

of main products/ the product/ turnover of the
services service company

Finished Leather, Leather 2990 61

Shoes, Shoes Components 2912 39
& Others

III. PARTICI.IL#.RS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

"NAME AND CIN/GLN 'HOLDING/ % of Appllc:able

S.NO| ADDRESS OF THE SUBSIDIARY | shares Section
COMPANY ASSOCIATE | held
1 Super CorporationlLid.|J19112UP2013PL| Subsidiary 52 129
D-403 White House |Cpg1542
Defence

Aarifi Tanners Lid.
Colony,Jajmau
187/170 Jajmau
Kanpur

Secure Safety Ltd. |UP1920UP2007 | gubsidiary
PLC032929

Super Tannery M. A Subsidiary
UK Ltd.

Super Tannery UAE ps
FZE Y MN.A Subsidiary

U18112UP1996P Subsidiary
LCO19255

Super Italia s.r.l.

MN.A Subsidiary
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held atthe MNo. of Shares held at the end of %eChang
Shareholders beginning of the yearlst April the year 31.03.2019 e during

2018 the year

Demat Phys |Total |% of | Dem Phy | Total
ical at sica |

A. Promoter s 636346143 Nil |63461434 | 63461434 Nil |63461434
(1) Indian

g) Individual/ HUF
h) Central
Govt
i) State Gowvt
(s)
J) Bodies
Corp.
k) Banks / Fl
) Any
Other....

Sub-total
(A) (1):- 63461434 il (63461434 | 63461434, Nil [63461434

(2) Foreign
a) NRis -
Individuals b)
Other —
Individuals c)
Bodies Corp.
d) Banks [ Fl &)
Any Other....

Sub-total
{A) (2):-
Total shareholdin

g of Promoter (A)
= (AN1)+(AN2)

3461434 il p3461434 | b3461434 03461434
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B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual

Funds

b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt

d) state Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

&) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture Capital

Funds i) Others
(specify)
Sub-total
(B)(1):-
2. Non- Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian 1047180 (2814000 (6861180 |6. 1110828 (2805000 (3915828
il) Overseas
b} Individuals
i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 2 lakh
ii} Individual 9956916 |Mi 9956916 p 11112356 (Nl 11112356
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 2 lakh
c) Others 636486 636596 7 4349396  |ni 1349396
(specify)
Sub-total (B)}{2):-
Total Public
Shareholding
(B=(B){1)}+ (B)(2) 04301950(13671410107973360 98288310 9685050 (107973360

16199934/10854300 27054234 18254296 6377050 125131346

C.Shares heldby 100 00 00 00 00 00
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total 94301950/13671410 107973360 98179310(9794050 [107973360
(A+B+C)
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(i) Shareholding of Promoters

Sharehold
er's Name

Shareholding at the
beginning of the
year01.04.2018

Share holding at the end of the
year31.03.2019

Mo. of
Shares
the

% of total
Shares of

company

%oaf
Shares
Pledged /
encumbe
red to
total
shares

MNo. of
Shar es

% of total
Shares of
the

company

% chan
gein
share
holding
during
the
year

%of Shares
Pledged /
encumbe
red to total
shares

- VEQARUL AMIN

17883900 | 16.56

7.09

17883900| 16.56

-|IQBAL AHSAN

9142502 | 8.47

8.47

9142502 | 8.47

- |IFTIKHARUL AMIN

9080432 841

8.41

5080432 | 8.41

. |IMUBASHIRUL AMIN

4590000 4.25

oo

4590000 |4.25 00

JUMAIRUL AMIN
.| TANVEERUL AMIN

4590000

4.25

oo

4500000 4.17

~

4.25 00

4.17 00

. |FARHA FATIMA

4500000 | 4.17

00

4.17 00

.|SOPHIA AMIN

3458400 | 3.20

3.05

3.20 3.05

mmum[mpmmu

- |ISMAT IGBAL

3082800 | 2.86

2.86

3082800 | 2.86 2.86

JRUMANA AMIN

2633400 | 244

00

2633400 | 2.44 0o

Total

63461434 | 58.78

20.87

8|8|8|8/8(8|8|8|8|8|8

63461434| 58.78 29.87

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there
is no change) There is no change in Promoters, shareholding during the year.

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year.1.04.2018

Cumulative Shareholding during
the year

MNo. of
shares

8 of total shares
of the company

MNo. of
shares

% of total shares of the
company

of the year

At the beginning

MNa Change

MNa Change

Mo Change MNo Change

Date wise
Increase [/
Decrease in
Promoters
Share holding

specifying the
reasons for
increase

allotment /
transfer /
bonus/ sweat
equity etc):

during the year

/ decrease (e.g.

MNo Change

MNo Change

Mo Change Mo Change

At the End of
the year

Mo Change

Mo Change

Mo Change Mo Change
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than
Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the
beginning of the year vear

No. of 2 of total No. of 2% of total shares of
shares shares of the shares the company
company

Kishore Kumnar 1535160 1.43 1603083 1.45
Patni

Renu Devi Patni 1379699 1.28 1501940 1.40

Subramaniam P 1358890 1.26 1358890 1.26

Mahendra Girdhari | 909881 0.85 909881 0.85
Lal

Updesh Kumar 480000 0.45 480000 0.45
Kaushal

Gaurav Sawhney 441269 0.41 4412659 0.41

ghabbir Nazmuddin | 433833 0.41 433833 0.41
aratha

Gaurav 408565 0.38 408965 0.38
Naresh Jain 377331 0.35 377331 0.38

Bharat Bhushan 74734 0.35 374734 0.35
Sawhney
At the end of the As above As above As above As above
vear
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{v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

5k Shareholding at the
MNa. beginning of the year

Cumulative shareholding

during the year

Mo. of
shares

For Each of
the Directors
and KmP

% of total
shares of the
company

Na. of
shares

% of total shares of the

company

At the beginning 150

of the year

oo

150

oo

Date wise
Increase /
Decrease in
Share holding
during the year
specifying the
reasans for
increase

J decrease
(e.g. allotment
[ transfer /
bonus/ sweat

equity etc):

At the End of
the year

As above

As above

As above

 As above

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment in lacs.

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year

i} Principal Amount
i} Interest due but not paid

iii} Interest accrued but not

due

oo

oo

Total {i+iiiii)

7887.22

Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year

Add ition

Re du ction

841

Net Change

841

Indebtedness at the
end of the finandal year
Amount

Principal

i) Interest due but not paid
iii} Interest accrued but not due

046.22

Total (i+ii+iii)

7046.22
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A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

14
no.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

Iftikharul
Amin, MD

lgbal Ahsan

Vegarul
Amin

Imran
Siddigui

Arshad
Khan

Gross salary 22,00,000

(a) Salary as per
provisions contained
in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act,
1961

(b} Value of
perquisites u,s

17(2) Income-tax Act,
1961

(c) Profits in lieu of
salary under section
17(3) Income- tax Act,
1961

22,00,000

16,50,000

7,07,100

4,327,100

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as% of profit
- oOthers,

Others, please sped‘fﬂ

Total {A) | 22,00,000

22,00,000

16,50,000

4,37,100

76,321,300

Ceiling as per the Act | NA

MA

MA

MA,

MA

B. Remuneration to other directors:

sl

no.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total

3. Independent Directors
- Fee for attending board
committee meetings
- Commi ssion
- Others, please specify

Nil

Total (1)

4. Other Non-Executive
Directors
- Fee for attending board
committee meetings
- Commi ssion
« Others, please specify

Total (2}

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act
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€. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN ME/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
no. Remuneration

Company CFO
Secretary
Gross salary 1,80,000
(a) Salary as per
provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of
perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section
17(3) Income-tax
Act, 1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission

- as % of profit

- others, specify...

Others, please
specify
Total

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority
the Description | Penalty / [RD / NCLT

Companies Punishment/
e Compounding J COURT]
fees imposed

A.COMPANY
Penalty Reg. 17{1)
Punishment
Compounding

B. DIRECTORS N.A
Penalty
Punishment
__Eﬂmpuundir!g_
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
_F‘enal_tv_
Punishment
Compounding
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Form No.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH, 2019.

[Pursuant to section 204(1) ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managenal Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members,

SUPER TANNERY Limited
187/170,JAJAMU KANPUR
UTTAR PRADESH.

We were appointed by the Board of Directors of the Super Tannery Limited (hereinafter called the
Company)to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year ended 31"
March,2019.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Super Tannery Limited. (hereinafter called the
Company).Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.
Based on our verification, the Super Tannery Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit,

We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 Complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute, books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the company for the financial year ended on31st March,2019 according to the
provisions of :

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder:

(i) The Securities contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made thereunder:

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder:

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulation made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings :

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers)regulation, 2011:

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992:

The securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulation, 2009 —Not applicable to the Company for the year under review;
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(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 : Not applicable to the Company for the

year under review;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulation, 2008: Not applicable to the Company for the year under review;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue And Share Transfer
Agents) Regulation, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing With client: Not
applicable to the Company for the year under review;

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Share)
Regulations,2009: Not applicable to the Company for the year under review;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998:
Not applicable to the Company for the year under review;

(vi) (Mention the other laws as may be applicable specifically to theCompany)N.A

we have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The
Company is maintaining Minutes Book as per the norms, but not as Stated in the SS-1
and SS-2, the company has been suggested to comply the standard viz. numbering of
Minutes Book, whether they are Board Minutes, Committee Minutes or General Body
Minutes.

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited(hereinafter called as “Listing Agreement):

During the period the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. Mentioned above, to the exient applicable:

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Woman Director. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to convene the Board Meeting, agenda (detailed notes on
agenda were sent, but sometime at least seven days in advance notice were not adhered), and a
system for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through and recorded as part of the minutes, it was found that most of
the time it was unanimous but the name of proposer and seconder were given in the Minutes book.

We further report that

The adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines to the extent applicable.

We further report that
On the basis of the questionnaire provided to the Company, during the audit period, on the basis of
reply received from the various departments, it was concluded that the company has complied
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For example:
(i) Water (prevention and control of pollution)Act, 1974;
(i) Air(prevention and control of pollution)Act, 1981;
(iii) Environment Protection Act, 1986;
(iv) FactoriesAct,1948;
(v) Industrial DisputesAct, 1947;
(vi) Paymentof WagesAct, 1936;
(vii) The Minimum Wages Act,1948;
(viii) Employees State Insurance Act,1948;
(ix) The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,1952;
(x) The Paymentof Bonus Act,1965;
(xi) The Paymentof Gratuity Act,1972;
(xii) The Sexual Harassment of Women at work place,(Prohibition and Redressal)Act,2013.

Signature:
K.N. Shridhar & Associates
Mame of Company Secretary in Practice/Firm:
FCS No. C P No: 2612
Date:10.08.2019
Place: Kanpur
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Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read
with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement Containing Salient Features of the Financial Statement of
Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures

Part “A": Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars Details

- STUKLTD| SECURE | AARIFI | SUPER |SUPER SUPER

Nama of the Subsidiary SAFETY | TANMERS | CORPOR- |[TALIA TANNERY
LTO. LTD. ATION SRL UAE FZE
LTD.

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerred, if differant from 31.03.2010) 310320190 31.03.2019 | 31.03.2010 | 31032019 | 31032040
the helding company’s reporing period
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the GBP INR INR INR EURD AED
refevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidianas
Share capital Rs.1.52] "'Rs150.00|  Rs14607 Re.5.00 Rz0.75 R&30.11
Raserves & surplus Rs(-) 36672 Rs39.85| Rs{-1583 Fg. 0.09 | Ra{-)1224 Rs.89.13
Total assais - Rs.{-ﬁﬂ.ﬁ#' Rs.18.33) Rs522z Rz 542 RsB7.99 | Rsd47468
Total Liabifities Rs22130| Rs10083  Rediavd Rs0.37 Rs6561 | Rs35774
Invastments HIL MIL Rs:1.73 MIL MIL HIL
Turnover MIL _NIE MIL NIL Rs.85.65 | R5.1,378.18
Profit before taxation RsZ0057| Re{-113.76| Rsi1.30 Rs003 | Rsd-B81 Rs.0.95
18, | Provision for taxation HIL MIL MIL MIL NIL .-HIL
11, | Profit after taxation Rs.200.57| Rsd-)13.76| Rsd-1.30 Re.003 | Rsi{-)B81 Rs.8.95
12, | Proposad Dividand NIL| NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
13. | % of shareholding 100% | 63:20% 82 52% 52% 1004 100%:"

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statemant:
1. Names of subsidiasies which are yet to commence operations
2 Names of subsidiares which have bean fquidated or sold during the year,
Part “B": Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of associates!Jaint Venltures NIL
Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

Shares of AssocialelJoint Ventures hizld by the company on the year end Ng,

Amotnt of Investment in AssociatestJoint Venture
Extend of Helding’

Description of haw there is significant influence

Reason why the associateljoint venture is not consolidated

Net worth atiributable 1o shareholding a5 per latest audited Balance Sheel

ProfitiLass for the year

Considered in Consalidation

Mot Considered in Consolidation

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yst o commence operations.
2. Names of associstes or joint vantures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.
Note; This Form is to be carfified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is fo be certified,
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Form Mo. ADC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8{2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms
length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

(a) NMame(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions:

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

(&) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

iT) Date(s) of approval by the Board:

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section
188:

MNLA

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:
(a) Mame(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:

(b) Mature of contracts/farrangements/transactions:

ic) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions:

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any:
The Details has been given under the head notes to financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Iftikharul Amin Mohd.lmran R.K.Awasthi
M.D Director Finance &CFO Company Secretary
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RAJEEV PREM & ASSOCIATES Off. : 0512 - 2302412

Mob. : 08415051670
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Office - 216, Kalpana Plaza

24/147-B, Birhana Road
Kanpur-208 001
E-mail | carajeevkapoor@gmail com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Tao the members of Super Tannery Limited

We have examined the compllance of conditions of corporate governance by Super Tannery Limited (“the Company"), for
thie year ended on March 31, 2019, as stipulated In regulation 17 to 27 and clause (b) to () of regulation 46(2) and
paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (*SEBI Listing Regulations”).

Management's responsibility

The compliance of conditions of corporate govemnance is the responsibility of management. This responsibility includes the
deslgn, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure compliance with the conditions of
corporate governance stipulated In the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company forensuring
the compliance of the conditions of the corporate governance. Itis neither audit nor expression of opinionon the financial
statements of the Company.

We have examined the books of accounts and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Companyfor the

purpose of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with corporate governance requirements bythe Company.

We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in @ccordance with the Guidance Noteon
Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the [nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI"), theStandards
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies A¢t, 2013, in so far as applicable for thepurpose of this
certificate and as per the Guidance Mote on Reports or Certificates for Special Purpose issued by thelCAl which requires
that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Codeof Ethics issued by the ICAL.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, QualityControl for
Firms that Perform Audils and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance andRelated Services
Engagements.

Opinion

Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanation provided to usand
representations provided by management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions ofcorporate
governance as specified inregulation 17 to 27, clause (b) Lo (i) of regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C, Dand E of Schedule V
ofthe SEB| Listing Regulations, as applicable during the year ended March 31, 2019,

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficlency
oreffectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company:

For Rajeev Prem & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0082805C

Place: Kanpur (Rajeav Kapoor)
Date: May 30, 2018 Partner
M. No. 077827
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Maob. : 09415051670

Office . 216, Kalpana Plaza
24/147-B. Birhana Road
Kanpur-208 001

E-mail . carajeevkapoor@amail com

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Members of Super TanneryLimited
Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Super TanneryLimited (“the Company"), which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31sl March 2019, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of change in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financlal statements, Including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of cur Information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the Information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the

Company as at March 31, 2019, and profit (including other comprehensive income), change in equityand its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilittes under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in sur professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed n the context of our audit of the standalone financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters fo be communicated in our report.

Description of Key Audit Matter

Accuracy of revenue recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures in view of adoption of Ind AS 115 "Revenue from
contract with customers”

Revenue is measured net of rebate & discounts and returns, if any.Due to the Company's presence across differenl marketing
regions within the country and outside, the competitive business environment, the revenue recognition requires certain key
Judgments relating to identification of perfformance obligation, determination of transaction price and appropriateness of the basis
used to measure the revenue.

(refer notes 1 (B)(27) and 22 to the standalone Financial Statements)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Duraudlt approach consisted testing of design and operating effectiveness of intermal controls procedures and included:
Evaluating the design of internal controls relating to implementation of new accounting standard.
Assessing the appropriateness of the revenue recognition accounting policies, including those relating to discounts and
rebates.
Checking of completeness and accuracy of the data used by the management for the purpose of purpose of revenue
recognition including calculation of the discounts, rebates and incentives and for sales returns and checking of its
arithmetical accuracy.
Comparison between the estimates in the past with subsequent actuals and analysis of the natlure of any deviations to
corroborate the effectiveness of the management estimalion process.
FPerfaorming analytical procedures for reasonableness of revenue disclosed.
Considered the adequacy of the Company's disclosures inrespectof revenue.
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Information Other than the standalone Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are résponsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does notinclude the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the ather information and we do nol express any form of assurance
conclusion therean.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information Is materially Inconsistent with the financial statlements or ourknowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to bematerially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,we conclude thal there is a malerial
misstatement of this otherinformation, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothingto report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Actwith respect to the preparation
of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changs in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements. management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative butto do so.
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseesing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free
from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance s a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when |t exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for aur opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for exprassing our opinion on whether the
company has adequateinternal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the approprialeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence oblained, whether a material uncertainly exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubl on
the Company's abllity to continue as a going concern. If we conclude thal & material uncerlainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standaione financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's reporl. However, fulure events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial staterments, including the disclosures,
and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficlencies ininternal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought

to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those: charged with governance, we. determine those matters that were of
mostsignificance In the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when,in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matiershould not be communicated in our report because the
adverseconsequences of doing so would reasonably be expected tooutweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Acl, and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the company
as we considered appropriate and according to information and explanations given to us, we give in the “Annexure A" a
statementon the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable,

1.

As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report thatthe Company has paid remuneration to its directors during the year
Inaccordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

Further to our comments In Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repart that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books;

The standalone balance sheel, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
the standalone statement of change in equity and thestandalone statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report
arein agreementwith the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as ofMarch 31, 2019 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 1684(2)ofthe Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Reportin “Annexure B”,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

s The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements — Refer Naote no. 33 to the financial statements;

the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses; and

therehas been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the |nvestor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

the disclosure requirements relaling to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes were applicable for
the period from November 08, 2016 to December 30, 2016, which are not relevant to these standalone financial
statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Rajeev Prem & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 008805C

{Rajeev Kapoar)
Place: Kanpur Partner
Date: May 30, 2019 M. No. 077827
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ANNEXUREATO THEINDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to In paragraph 1 of our report of even date on the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the
financial year ended March 31, 2019 of Super Tannery Limited)

In terms of the information and explanations given to us and also on the basis of such checks as we considered
appropriate, we state that:

(1) {a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative details
and situation of its fixed assets.

(b) Allthe fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there
is regular program of physical verification, which In our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of fixed assets. Mo material discrepancies have been noticed
in respectof the assets physically verified during the year.

(e} The Company owns immovable properties. Cerlain immovable properties of erstwhile Super Agro-
Tech Limited {SATL) acquired pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation sanctioned by Hon'ble
High Court.of Judicature at Allahabad, included in the books of the company remain in the name of
SATL pending completion of the certain formalities. Further, to aforesaid certain land at Banthar,
Unnao though used for the business purposes of the company is lying registered in the name of one
of director of the company.

The Inventories of the Company have been physically verified by the management at regular interval
during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. As explained to us, the
discrepancies noticed on verification were not material in relation to the operations of the Company.

The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability

Partnerships or other parties listed in the register maintained under Section 188 of the Companies Act,

2013 (the Act) excepting inlerest free unsecured demand loan granted in earlier years to two Wholly

Owned Subsidiaries incorporated outside India,

(a) The terms and conditions of such loan/advance are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the company's
Interest.

(b} Astheloansare in the nature of demand loan, no schedule of repayment of principal and payment
of interest have been specified.

(¢} Thereisnooverdue in respect of such loans and interest thereon as no demand has beenraised by
the company.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Actin respect of grant of
lpans, making investments and providing guarantess and securities, as applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposit during the year within the meaning of Section
73 to Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Rules framed there under. Hence,
paragraph 3{v) of the Order iz nol applicable.

Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business / activities, the maintenance of cost records has
not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Act. Accordingly reporting
under clause (vi) of paragraph 3 ofthe Order is not applicable.

{a) According to the books and records produced and examined by us, the Company is generally
regular in depositing undisputed Statulory dues including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and
Services Tax (GST), Cess and other material statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities
and no undisputed amount payable in respect of aforesaid statutory dues  were outstanding as at March
31.2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable.
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{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duly
of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax and GST which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, except
mentioned as below:

‘Name of the | Nature of | ‘Period to which | Amount*

Statute dues is pending amount relates (Rs. In Lacs)
Thelncome | Demandon | High Court, Allahabad | AY. 2007-08 30.54
Tax Act, 1961 assessment

Income Tax Appellate AY. 2014-15 12.50
Tribunal, Lucknow Bench

Finance Act, Service Tax Asst. Commissioner FY. 2015-16

1994 Service Tax, Kanpur to 2016-17

* Demand net of amount paid under protest

The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution; bank, government or dues to
debenture holders during the year.

The company has not raised any money by way ofinitial public offer or further public offer {including debtinstruments) during
the year. In our opinion, the term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were raised.

Based on the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given to us, no matenal fraud
by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year,

In our opinion, the managernal remuneration paid or provided by the company is in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Acl.

The company is nota "MNidhi Company”; hence paragraph 3(xii) the Orderis not applicable.

In our opinion, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Act where applicable and
the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

The company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year under review. Hence, paragraph 3(xiv) the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

Hence, paragraph 3{xv) the Order is not applicable,
Irnour opinion, the company is not reguired to be registered under Section 45 1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
For Rajeev Prem & Associates,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 008905C

Flace: Kanpur (Rajeev Kapoor)

Date: May 30, 2019 Partner
M. No, 077827
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ANNEXURE B TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) of our report of even date on the standalone Ind AS financial staternents for the financial
year ended March 31, 2019 of Super Tannery Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Super TanneryLimited (“the
Company"} as of March 31, 2019 in canjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on thaldate.

In our opimon, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financlal reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criterla established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audil of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ‘Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals over Financial Reporting |ssued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company's policles, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors. the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemnal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audil.
We conducted our auditin accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note') and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by ICAl Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
overfinancial reporting was established and maintained and If such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our auditinvolves performing procedures to.obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internzal financial controls over financial reporting Included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,; including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe thal the audil evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Acompany's internal financial contral over financial reporting Is'a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) perain to the maintenance of records that, In reascnable detail, acourately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
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permil preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthonsed acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets thal could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Becauses of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper managemenl override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the intermal financial controls over financial reporting to fulure periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become Inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Rajeev Prem & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 008805C

Place: Kanpur {Rajeev Kapoor)

Date: May 30, 2018 Partner
M. Mo. 077827
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Standalone Balance sheet as at March 31, 2015

Partleulars

A at March 31, 2019
s, in Lacs R, in Lics

Asat March 31, 2018

Rs, i Lace Ri. in Lacs

ASSETS

Mon-current assefs
(2) Property, Plant and Egquigment
{b] Capital work-in-prograss
fc] Other intangible assats
(d] Financial Assets
(i} Investments
{ii} Loans
()] Other non-current assats

Current Assets:
[2) Inventories
(b] Finantial Assets
i) Trade receivables
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
[iii} Bank Balances other than (&) above
{iw) Other Financial Assets
[e) Current Tax Assets{Met)
(d] Dther current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQITY
() Equity Share Capital
(b] Oburr Eguity

LIABILITIES
Mon currant fabilities
(&) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings
(b] Deferred tax liabilities {net)
[c) Other non-current liabilities

Current labilities
{2 Financial lizbilities
i) Shoart term borrowings
(i} Trade payables
[iii) Other financial liabilities
(b] Other current liabilitles
{e]  Provisions

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Significant Accounting Policies

Ser sgrcompanying netes to the standalone financial statemaents

As per our attachied repon of even date

For Rajeey Prem & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, DOES0SC

Rapeev Kapoor
Partner
Mt NG, OFTEZT

Place! Kanpur
Date: Kay 30,2019

1

£ L
194 53
243038
35390 4,549.62
122.97
1L,128.89

20,347.22

1,079.73
68519
F. 764,92

£,996 54
3,095.73

579,88 1067215

65690

111.56

20,347.22

For and on behalf of the Board

Mehd Imran itikharul Amin
Managing Director

Director[Finance) & CFO

R K. Awasthi
Company Secretary

5, 255.17
26681
4,19

B.594.07
92.79
209.63

1,333.50 1.230.39

100.50
097,86

21,5009.17

L,079.73
5,465.15

T.826.27
3120017
S928.70 11.875.14
96787
106,24

21,508.17
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Standalone Statemnent of profit and lods for the year ended March 31, 2019

Partitulars

Note Mo,

2018-19
s, in Lacs

Rs. in Lacs

201718
Rz, in Lacs:

A=, in Lacs

INCOME:

Rewvenue from Dperations

(&) Zales/income from operations
(b] Other Operating Revenue
Total Revenue from operations
Other Intame

Total Income

EXPENSE:

Cast of materkals consumed

Purchase of stock-m-trade

Changes In inventories of finlshed goods;
worksin-progress and stock-in-irade
Employes Benefits Expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and Amartization Expenses
Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Prafit before Exceptional items and Tax
Exceptional ftems
Profitbafore Tax
Tik BxpEnGe:
1, Current Tax
2. Deferred Tax
3. Taa adjustimnt rela;ing ro garlier years

17,BB6.33
75385

18,721.08

18,297.82
——

165.00
6930

{#3.75)

16,639.44
2164

10,929.50
1,620.30

165.56
790,70
629.E5
596.32
3,565.59

42336

a423.26

Profit for the perlod

Other comprehensive income
(Il Ibems that will not be reclassified to profit or ioss
{a]  Re-measuroments of the defined benefit plans
(it} Income tEx refated to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Total comprehensive income for the period

Earmings per equity share
[Face Value per Share Rs. 1))
1, Basic
2. Diluted

Significant Accounting Policies
See preompimang notes o the standalone financial statements
As per our attached report of even date

For Rajeev Prem & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstraticn Mo, DDEROSC
Mihd fmran
Director(Finance) & CFO
Rajesv Kaphar
Partner
M, Mo 077827

For and on behalf of the Board

22,216.93
1,280.69

2349762
104 87

23,652.49

15,003 10
1,351,590

01479
BG2.74
580.21
569.53
3771,12

23,072.79
———

220,00
1620
[23.16)

FFtikharul Amin
Managing Director

R, K. Awasthi

Place) Kanpur
Date: May 30, 2019

Company Secretary

B15.70

B19.70
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Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

A, Equity Share Capital
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
N, of Shares  Rs, in Lacs M of Sharey R, b Lics

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up

Equity shares outstanding al the beginning of the year 107,973,360 1,079.73 107,973,360 1,079.73
Equity Shares issued during the year - -
Equity shares outstanding at the and of the year 107,573,360 1,079.73 107,973 360 1,009,735

Total 107,973,360 1.079.73 107973360 1,079.73

B. Other Eqguity

Particulars Reserves and Surplus
Capital Securities General Retainad
Reserve Premium Reserve Earmings

Aatance &5 &t April 01, 2017 17,67 27018 4563.21 1,154,856
Profit for the year - - - AlB.66
her Comprehensive Income = - 1267

Balance as.at March 31, 2018 270:14 161419
Prufit foe the year - - 21271
Cther Comprohensive Income 7.23

Balance a3 ar March 31; 20019 7018 1,634,13

Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying notes 1o the standalone financial statements
As per our attached report of even date For and on behatf od the Board

For Rajeev Prem & Associates
Charterad Accountanis
Firrmn Regiatration No, D08905C
bohd Imran [iikharul Amin
Director|Financa) & CFO Managing Director

Rajeav Kapoor

Partner

M, Mo 077827 R K. P.w?_u.th
Company Secretary

Mace! Kanpur

Date; May 30, 3015
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Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2019

Particulars Note Nea,

2018 -19
Rs. in Lacs

2017-18
A5, in Lacs

A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met Profit before tax
Ad|ustments for |
Depreciation Amortisation
Prafit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments
Loss on 5ale of Property, Plant & Egulpments
Investments written off
Interast income
Finarice Cost
Deferral of income an government grant
Rermeasurement of net defined benefit plans
Derivatives ktoh Provision
Operating profit before working capltal changes
Changes in working capital:
[Increase)’ Decreasa in trade recevables
[Ineredse) Decreass in Inveniomes
(Increaself Decrease in other non current loan
[Increase) Decreasa in other current financial assets
[Ingrease) Decrease in otfer current as6ets
Adjustment for increase/{decrease) n operating labilities
Increase, (Decrease] in trade payables
Incredse [Decreasa] In other financial labllites
Increase/ (Decrease] in other corrent liabilities
Increase, (Decrease] in Provisions
Cash generated from operations
Incorme taxes refunded / (paid), net
Met cash generated from operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of non-current Investmeants
Interest received
Other bank balances [Margin Monay)
Mat cash (used in) /generated from investing activities
CASH FLOW FRONM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds/{repayment} from/fof short-term loans
Repayment of long-term loans
Finance costs paid
Met cash used in financing activities
INCREASE / (DECREASE| IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash & Cash €quivalent transferred pursuant to Scheme {demerger)
Casbr ind cash equialents at the end of the year
(refer Mote No. 8 for break-up)

Significant Accounting Policies 1
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements
As per our attached report ol even date

For Rajesy Prem & Asiociates
Charterad Accountants
Firrn fRegistration No. O0E305C

Riajeey Kapoar
Partner
M. No, 077827

Place: Kanpur
Date: May 30, 2019

413,26

506,33
(1.04}
10.84

{1423
49591
[2.35)
{10,738}
42,55

1,500.21

1.876.10
{795.91)
(4113}

940100
{136.03)

{24.94)
(334.69)
{310.87)

568
2,678,852
{16373}
2,515.00

[1,064.96)
50,83
{29.90)
14,29
{33.30)
{1,063.13)

(29,73}
(24,18}
{49501}
(1,349.82)
102.14
92,79

194.93

Far and on behall ad the Board

|ftikvarul &rmin
Managing Director

Mohd Imran
Director|Finance} & CFO

B, K. Awasthi
Company Secretary

619.70

569.93
{116.80]
282
&65
{15.589]
503.94
{33.38)
[15.38]
23.66
1,539.55

11,583.48)
1,076.88
{4037}
[T42.85]
[167.87)

13554
107,19
11737
3384
465.40
[245.53]
219.47

[484.05]
1511
(6.23)
15.69
[22.19)
{345.07)

433,81
[49.27)
[503.94)
{119.40)
{245.00]
369.11
(31.32)
g92.79
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Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 1:

A.CORPORATE INFORMATION

Super Tannery Limited("the Company”) is a public limited company having its registered office situated at
187M170JAIMAU ROAD JAIMAU KANPUR was incorporated on 06.02. 1884,

The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and exports of Leather and leather footwear.
The Company’s equity shares are listed at the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

The financial statements were approved forissue in accordance with a resolution of the directors onMay 30, 2019,

B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act. In addition, the guidance
notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) are also applied
exceptwhera compliance with other statutory promulgations require a different treatment.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value amount:

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments),

i} Defined benefit plans - plan assets

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods or
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue.

Operating Cycle for current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current according to the Company's
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Act. Based on the nature of products and the time between
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months.

Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its functional currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis.
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6.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the period in which the estimate is revised

if the revision affects only that period; they are recognised in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

i

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which
represent the carrying value of property, plant and equipment recognised at 1" April 2016 measured as per
the previous GAAP. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to
bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts
and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

Assets are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and eguipment when completed and
ready forintended use.

Expenses incurred relating to project, including borrowing cost and net of income eamed during the project
development stage prior to its intended use, are considered as pre - operative expenses and disclosed under
Capital Work -in - Progress.

Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the Company intends to use
these during more than a period of 12 months.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yieldsor for capital appreciation or both, and that isnot occupied by
the Company, is classified asinvestment property. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of
recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represent the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment recognised at 17 April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP. Such cost includes purchase
price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its
intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate
variations attributable to the assets,

An item of property, plant and equipment or any significant part initially recognised of such item of property
plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement
when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated
residual value. Depreciation has been provided on such cost of assets less their residual values on straight
line method on the basis of estimated useful life of assetsas prescribed inSchedule Il of the Act.

Freehold land is not depreciated/amortised.

Assets held under financial leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets or, wherever shorter, the term of relevant lease.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro rata basis except thal, assets costing uptoRs. 5,000 each are fully
depreciated in the year of purchase.

The estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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10, Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less
accumulated amortisation/depletion and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price,
borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate
variations attributable to theintangible assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of
Profitand Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets being computer software is amortised on straight line method over the period of five
years.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangibles assets recognised as
onApril 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of
transition date.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the
end of each reporting period and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless
such expenditure forms partof carrying value of another asset.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing foran assetis required, the Company
estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or
cash-generating unit's{CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

Impairmentloss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds recoverable amount.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there
is anindication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased.

If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed, The reversal is limited so thatthe carrying amount of the asset
does notexceed its recoverable amount, nor exceedthe carrying amount that would have
beendetermined, net of depreciation, had noimpairment loss been recognised for theasset in prior years,

Leases

Leases are recognised as a finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All ather leases are classified as operating leases.

Company as aLessee

Assets used under finance leases are recognised as property, plant and equipment in the Balance Sheet
for an amount that corresponds to the lower of fair value and the present value of minimum lease
payments determined at the inception of the lease and a liability is recognised for an equivalent amount.

The minimum lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease unless the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the |lessor's expected inflationary cost increases, suchincreases are recognised in
the year in which such benefits accrue.

Company as a Lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. Where the Company is a lessor under an operating lease, the asset
is capitalised within property, plant and equipment and depreciated over its useful economic life. Payments
received under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. The basis of determining the cost for
various categories ofinventory are as follows:

(a) Raw materials, Chemicals, Components, stores & spares and Stock in Trade — Cost includes cost of
purchase (Net of recoverable taxes) and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Costis determined on FIFO basis.

(b} Stock in process and finished goods- Direct cost plus appropriate share of overheads.
(c) Saleable Scrap/Waste/By products - At estimated realisable value.

(d) Inter unit gods transfer — transfer price

{d) Import Entittement  Licences — At estimated realisable/Utilisation value

Met realisable value is the estimated sellingprice in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion andthe estimated costs necessary to make thesale.

Foreign Currencies
a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The financial statements are presented in
Indian Rupee (INR/Rupees), whichis the Company's functional and presantation currency.

b) Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded on initial recognition at the exchange rate prevailing on the
date of the transaction.

Any gains or losses arising due to differences in exchange rates at the time of translation or settlement are
accountedfor in the Statement of Profit & Loss eitherunder the head foreign exchange fluctuationor interest
cost, as the case may be, exceptthose relating to long-term foreign currencymonetary items.

Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates
Investment inassociates and other related parties are carried at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.
Fair Value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market which can be accessed by the
Company for the asset or iability.
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The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

*Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices inactive markets for identical assets or liabilities

«Level 2 Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

‘ Lavel 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company

determines whether transfers have occurred between lavels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation

{based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period,

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Allfinancial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subseguent measurement

Subseqguent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial
assets. Based on the business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset, the Company classifies financial assets as subseguently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit and loss.

Debtinstruments atamortised cost

Debt instruments such as trade and other receivables, security deposits and loans given are measured at
the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

« Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assels are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss.

Debt instruments at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
A'debtinstrument’ is classified as at the F\VTOCIH if both of the following criteria are met.
- The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
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financial assets, and
- The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OC1).

Debt instruments at Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments excluding investments in subsidiary and associate
companies. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or
as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

After Initial measurement, any fair value changes including any interestincome, foreign exchange gain and
losses, impairment losses and other net gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

De-recognition
Afinancial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial assel or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's Balance Sheet) when
 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
+ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third parly under a 'pass-
through' arrangement; and either:
- The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
- The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
On de-recognition, any gains or losses on all debt instruments (other than debt instruments measured at
FVOC!) and equity instruments (measured at FVTPL) are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Gains and losses in respect of debt instruments measured at FWVOCI and that are accumulated in OCI are

reclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition. Gains or losses on equity instruments measured at FWVOCI
that are recognised and accumulated in OCl are not reclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment
loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.
b} Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

In case of other assets (listed as a) above), the company determines if there has been a significantincrease
in credit risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased
significantly, anamount equal to 12-month ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance. However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognized as loss
allowance.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
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overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 108 are satisfied. For liabilities designated
as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk is recognized in OCI. These
gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
staterment of profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities classified and measured at amortised cost such as loans and borrowings are initially
recognized at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
aexpires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage the commaodity price risk and exposure
on account of fluctuation in interest rate and foreign exchange rates. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently measured at fair value with changes being recognized in Statement of Profit and
Loss. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities
when the fair value is negative,

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken through profitand loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are Initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any differences between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in Profit or loss over the period of the borrowing using
the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some orall of the facilities will be drawn
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down. Inthis case, the fee is deferred until the drawdown occurs.

The borrowings are removed from the Balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid including any noncash
asset transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability of at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a
material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the
effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the
liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial
statement forissue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying assets, perfaining to the pericd from
commencement of activities relating to construction/development of the gualifying asset upto the date of
capitalisation of such assetis added to the cost of the assets.

Interest income eamed on temporary investment of specific borrowing pending expenditure on qualifying
assetis deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they ocour.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the standalone balance
sheetif there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
o settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company, or the counterparty.

Claims

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts are disclosed after a careful evaluation of the facts
and legal aspects of the matter involved.

Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Capital Commitments

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
abligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Ifthe effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of ime is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent llabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by fulure events not
whiolly within the control of the Company, or present obligations where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed when the inflow of economic benefits is probable. However,
when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, but it is
recognised as an asset.

26. Government Grant

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with.

Agovernment grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses incurred in previous
period(s). Such a grant is recognised in profit or loss of the period in which it becomes receivable.

Government grants shall be recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to assets are presented in the balance sheet as deferred income and s
recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related assets or other
relevant basis.

Government grants by way of financial assistance on the basis of certain qualifying criteria are recognised
as they become receivable.

In the unlikely event that a grant previously recognised is ultimately not received, it is treated as a change
in estimate and the amount cumulatively recognised is expensed in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Revenue Recognition
Sale of Goods and Services

Revenue is recognised upan transfer of control ofpromised goods to customers in an amount thatreflects
the consideration which the Companyexpects to receive in exchange for those goods,

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised atthe point in time when (a) control is transferred to
thecustomer, which is mainly upon delivery in case of domestic sales and on issuance of Shipping Bill in
case of export sales.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods supplied and
services rendered, net of returns, rebates and discounts to customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods includes excise and other duties which the Company pays as a principal
but excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, such as sales Tax/ value added tax/Goods &
Services Tax.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 Revenue fromcontracts with customers, with effect from April
1,2018. Ind AS 115 establishes principles for reportinginformation about the nature, amount, timing
anduncertainty of revenues and cash flows arising fromthe contracts with its customers and replaces Ind
AS518 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using thecumulative effect method whereby the effect ofapplying
this standard is recognised at the date ofinitial application (i.e. April 1, 2018). Accordingly, thecomparative
information in the statement of profitand loss is not restated. There is no impact of the adoptionof the
standard on the financial statements of theCompany.

Interest iIncome

Interest income is accrued on using on a time basis by the effective interest rate with reference to the
principal outstanding.

Dividend Income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has
been established.

Export Incentives
Export Incentives are recognised when certainty of receipt is established.
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Insurance Claim

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the
extent that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate
collection.

Other Income
Other income is accounted for on accrual basis except where the receipt of income is uncertain and in
such casesitis accounted for on receipt basis.

Employee benefits

The Company makes contributions to both defined benefit and defined contribution schemes which are
mainly administered through/by duly constituted and approved Trusts and the Government.

Defined Contribution Scheme

In case of provident fund administered throughRegional Provident Fund Commissioner.the Company
has no obligation, other thanthe contribution payable to the providentfund.

In case of members of constituted and approved trusts, the Company recognises contribution payable to
such trusts as an expense including any shortfall in interest between the amount of interest realised by the
investment and the interest payable to members at the rate declared by the Government of India.

The Company’s contributionspaid / payable during the year to providentfund administered through
Approved Trust, Regional ProvidentFund Commissioner, Superannuation Fundand Employees' State
Insurance Corporationare recognised in the Statement of Profit andLoss as an expense when employees
haverendered services entitling them to contributions.

Defined Benefit Scheme

Gratuity: Cost of providing the Benefit is determined on an actuarial basis at the endof the year and
charged to Statement of Profitand Loss. The cost of providing these benefitsis determined by
independent actuary using the projected unit creditmethod,

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gainsand losses and the effect of the asset ceiling, (excluding
amounts included in net interest onthe net defined benefit liability and return on planassets), are
recognised immediately in the balancesheet with a corresponding debit or credit toretained earnings
through other comprehensiveincome in the period in which they occur. Itisincluded in retained eamingsin
the statement ofchanges in equity and in the balance sheet.

Leave encashment: Leave balance as at the end of the calendar year is encashed and balance leaves
earned thereafter to the extent not availed by the employees are provided in the accounts.

Research and Development Expenditure

Expenditure on research of revenue nature is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss and that of capital
nature is capitalized as fixed assets.

. Taxes onlncome

Current tax is the amount of tax payable determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
Balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are
accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses
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and allowances can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax rates.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set, and presented as net.

Current and deferred taxes relating to items directly recognised in reserves are recognised in reserves and
notin the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in
the form of adjustment to fulure income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an deferred tax
assetinthe Balance Sheet when itis probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the
Company.

Dividend Distribution

Dividends paid (including income tax thereon) is recognised in the period in which the interim dividends are
approved by the Board of Directors, orin respect of the final dividend when approved by shareholders.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows statement is prepared as per the Indirect Method specified in Ind AS 7 on Cash Flows. Cash
and cash equivalents {including bank balances) shown in statement of cash flows exclude item which are
not available for general use on the date of balance sheet.

Earnings pershare

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax {including the post-tax effect of
extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ {loss) after tax {including the post-tax effect of
extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net
of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity
sharas which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease
the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to
be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive
potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair
value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity
shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in consistent manner with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the Company,
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

3 Financial Assets: Investments - Non Current
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As-at March 31, 2018
Na, af Mo, of
Shares Rs. inlacs Shares Rs, inlacs

Equity Shares Unguoted
AL INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
(i} SUPER TANNERY (LK.} LIMITED
Ordinary Shares of GAP 1 each fully paid up 2,100 52 2,100
(i} AARIFI TAMMERS LIMITED
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each fully paid up 1,205,366 1,205,366
{ili]  SUPER CORPORATION LIMITED
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each fully paid up 26,000 h 26,000
{iv) SECURE SAFETY LIMITED
Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each fully paid up 544,300 699,300
(v} SUPER TANNERY [LAE) LTD
Crdinary Shares of DHM 10/~ each fully paid up 15,000 ¢ 15,000
Super alia SRL -
Ordinary Shares of Euro 1/-each fully paid up 990 ga0

Total-A

OTHERS

{i}  SUPERHOUSE QVERSEAS LIMITED
Equity Shares of Rs, 10/-each fully paid

{H) AL-BARR FINANCE HOUSE LIMITED
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ each fully paid

{iii] SVIT PRONEXT MACHINES PRIVATE LIMITED
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ each fully paid

(W] INDUSTRIAL INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED
Equity Shares of Rs, 10/-each fully paid

v KANPUR UNNAO LEATHER CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT CO. LTD.
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
LEATHER CLUJSTER DEVELOPMENT
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
JAIMAL TANNERY EFFLUENT TREATMENT ASSOCIATION
Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each fully paid

Total- B

INVESTMENT I3 PARTNERSHIP/LLP FIRM
(i} BOVINIFRILLSLLP
15%:In the capital of the LLP
Share of Reserves-and Surplus of the LLP

Total-C
Equity Shares Quoted

I} Superhouse Ltd,
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid

Total- DO
Total (A=B+C+D)

Aggregate Book Valve of Quoted investments
Barket Value of Quoted Investments

Ageregate Book Value of Unquoted Investments
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial 5tatements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Details of Farmeg‘ t.aEital and Profit Sharir_li Ratio in LLI

Rs. In Lacs

Profit
Sharing
Name of Partners Ratlo

Capital as on
31.03.2019

Capital as on
31032018

M. Shahthaz Khan 553
Super Tannery Limited 15%
M. Htikharol Amin 15%
M. Igbal Ahsan 15%

4 Financial Assets; Loans - Non Current

P
075
0.75
0,75

275
075
Q.75
0,75

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019
Rs. in Lacs Rs.in Lics

As gt March 31, 2018

B5:in Lack

RiIn Lacs

Loans and Advances
Secured Consldered Good
Unsecured Considered Good
Unsecured which have significant increase In oredit risk
Unsacured credit impaired
(refer Note oo, 47 for advance to Subsldiares and assoclates)

Total

5 Othor Non Current Assets

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019
R, in Lacs Rscin Lacs

As at March 31, 2018

Rs. in Lacs”

Ra.in Lacs

Unseoured Considered Good
Security Deposits

Total

& Inventories (At cost or net realisable value whichever is lower}

Particulars

Asat March 31, 2019
Rs. In Lacs Rs.in Lacs

A at March 31, 2018

Rs. in Lacs

Rs. in'Lacs

Raw Materials

Work in Progress

Finished Goods

finchude Stock at port Rs. NIL (March 2018 NIL)
Chemical, Components and spare parts
Waste & Scrap

Tozal

2.557.80
196395
184718

1,179.1%
32556

7,873,684

{a) Al the Inventories have bean hypothecated as security for varicus wiorking facilities from banks:
(B During the year nothing was recognised as expense towands write-down of imventory,

7 Financial Assets - Current: Trade Receivable

1675.56
267218
1,480.98

1,059.892
245.09

7,177.73

Particulars

Asat March 31, 201%
Re in Lacs Ry in Lacs

Asat March 31, 2018

Rs. in Lacs

Ra-in kacs

Secured Considered Good

Unsecured Considered Good

Unsecured which have significant increase in credit rlsk
Unsdcarad credit impaired

Less: Impatrment koss allowance (ECL)
Total

311097

1721
3,735.18
17.21

3.717.97

1a] Al the Trade Recelvables have been hypothecated as security for warious working facilities from banks.

5.504.07

B.T7

75
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

B Financial Assets - Current: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Partitulars

Az at March 31, 2019
Rs. in Lacs Rs.in Lacs

A5 st March 31, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rz, in Lacs

Balances with banks
o cufrent accounts
on EEFC account

Cheques and Draft on Hand/Remittance in Transit
Cash on hand

Tatal

9 Financial Assets - Current: Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

Ag at March 31, 2019
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lace

As at March 31, 2018
As.in Lacs R, In Lacs

Margin money deposits [restricted, held as Ben against bank guarantees)

Earmarked balances with Banks - undlaimed Dividend

Total

10 Other Currant Financial Assets

22732
15,70

243.02

191,11
1852

205.63

Particulirs

A3 3t March 31, 2019
Rs. In Lacs Rs_in Lacs

Asat March 31, 2018
As.in Lacs Rs.in Lacs

Unsecured Considered Good
Export Incentive Recedvable
Other Claims Receivabie
Balance with Govt/Revenue authorty

Total

11 Other Current Assets

Particulars

As at March 31,2019
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

Asat March 31, 2018
Rz in Lacs R, in Lacs

Unsetcurad Considered Good
Advances to Trade Creditors
Advance recoverabie in cash orkind o for value to be received
Prepaid expenses

Total

12 Equity Share Capital

BEG,&2
11593
16.14

1,126.89

83037
152.00
1059

186

Particulars

As at March 3L, 201%
Mo of
Shares Rs. in Lacs

As gt March 31, 2018
My, of
Shares #s, In Lacs

Authorlsed
Equity Shares of Rupee 1/-each

Issued
Equity Shares of Rupes 1/-each

Subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity Shares of Rupee 1/-each

10, 000000 1,100.00

110,000,000 1,100.00

107,973,360 1,079.73

107,973 360

107,973,360 1,078.73

107,973,360

107,573,360 1,079.73

17,973,360
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

|A) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and share capital
Particulars

Az at March 31, 2019
N, of Shares. R, In Lacs

&5t March 31, 2018
No. of Shares  Rs, InLacs

Subsceibed amnd fully pold-up equity shores

Outstanding at the beginning of tha year
Shares issued dunng the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

103,973.360 107873 107,573,360 107573

1,079.73

1,076.73

107,973 360 107,573,360

18} Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The company has only one dlass of equity shares-hawing a par value of Be, 1 per share. Each hobder of equity shares i entitled to one vote per share. The
coimpany deciares and pays dividends In Indlan Rupees, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors s subject to the appraval of the sharehalders in
the ensuing Annual General Meating.

I the event of liguidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled toreceive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts: The distribution will be in progortion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Details of shareholders hobding more than 5% shares in the company

Sharehnldei's Name

Asat March 31, 20019
Mo of Shares kY

A5 ar March 31, 2018
No.of Shares %

[ab  Mr Vegarl Amin
[b)  Mir. lgbal Ahsan
[c)  Mir. Htikharal Armin

Equity Shares allotted as fully pasd pursuant 1o contract|s] without payment belng
racened in cash during the immediately preceding five yaars

|E] Eguity Shares aliotted as fully paid up Bonus Shares during the Immediately
preceding five years

|F) Equity shares buy-back in immediately preceding five years

15} Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company andfor their subsidiaries/
AssoCiates

{H} During the year ended March 31, 2019, the company has not paid any dividend.

13 Other equity

17,BE3,900 16,56%
9,142,502 BATR
9,080,432 E4l%

2018-19
[Mex, of Shases)

ML

17,823,900
5,142:502
5,080,432

16.56%
EAT%
E4l%

2017-18
[Mex of Shares)

NiL

Farticulars:

As at March 31, 2019
R in Lags

As at March 31, 2018
Rs. in Lads

{a) Capital Reserve
1) Securties Premium
jc} General Resarve
(i) Retained Earnings

Tatal

Capital Reserve

17.67
270,18
4,563.21
1E34.13

5,685,139

1767
247018
4,563,221
1,614,19

6,465,25

It represant the gain of capltal nature which mainky include the excess of value of net assets acquired ower consideration pald by the company for business

eormbiration in earier years.

Securities Premium

Securities premium is uied Lo record the premium on jssue of shares and is utifized in accordance with the provisions of the Act

General Reseni

Thie Company has transferred & portien of the net profit of the Company before declaring dividend 1o general reserve pursuant to the earlier provisions of
Companies Act, 1956, Mandatory transfer to genersl resenve is not required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Retalned Earnings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned tll date; lessany transfers to general reserve, dividends paid or other distributicns out of
reserves Lo sharehaldaes,
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

14 Financial Liabilities - Mon-current: Borrowings
Parthculars As at March 31, 20019 A at March 31, 2018
Rs. In Lacs: Rs. in Lacs As. in Lacs A=, bn Lacs

Secutod
Vehicle Term loans from banks - INR A9.68 5973

Tokal 49,68 59.73
——tway e
[z} The classification of loans between current kabilitias and non -current liabilities continues based on repayment schedule under respective agreements
a5 no loans have been recalled due to non compliance of conditions under any of the loan agreements,

bl Interest rates: Loans availed from banks in INR carry interest rate ranging from £.85% ta 9.1% (March 31, 2018 B,85% to 10.45%| for term loans.

fe]  Schwedubed repayrments: Contractual ropayments in case of loans from banks {including Current maturities disclosed under other Cureent financial
liabiities;.

Particulars Az at March 31, 2019 Az at March 31, 2018
Ra, in Lacs As, i Lacs

Uipto threa years EE.43 71.38
Betweéen three to fve years 15,53 26,75
Duer five years -

Reder notie 400(il] [b) & o) on Interest rate risk and Liquidity Risk respectively,

{d)  Secured by hypothecation of wehicte financed and are repayable in 36 to 60 Equated Monthly Instalments (EMIs)

15 Deferred tax liabifities (Net)
Particulars Ag at March 31, 2009 As at March 31, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. im Lacs A=, in Lacs

Tax effect of items constituting déferred tox liobility
On difference between book balance and tax balance of fixed assets

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax mssets
Expenses allowale on payment basis and other items
Total Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assats
Net Defereed Tax Liahility

16 Other Non-current Liabilities
Particulars A5 at March 31, 2019 A% at March 31, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs.in Lacs Rs_ in Lacs As. i Lacs

Deferred Revenue
Gewvt Grant under |DLS 155,90
ERCG Cibligations 110.45 B.60

Total 66,35 30276
—ri —siaiie,

(a} Government Grant under IDLS, the deferred grant income is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of
asseton which-such grant is received subject to compliance of other terms & conditions of the scheme

[b)  Under EPCE scheme, the Company 15 committed 1o eaport prescribed times of the duty saved on Import of capital goods over a specified period of
time apart from maintaining average export growth. In case such commitments are not met, the Company would be required to pay the duty saved
along with interest to-the regulatory authorities, The:deferred grant income is recognized in-Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the
persods in which the rélated performance obligations are fulfilted,
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Netes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

17 Financial Uabilithes - Current: Short term Borrowings
Particulars

As at March 31, 201%
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

As-at March 31, 2014
Rs. i Lacs R, in Lacs

Secured

Working Capital Loan from banks

{il Cash Cradit

(i} Packing Credit

(iil) Advance against bills sent for coliection

Buyers Credit (Foredgn Currency Laan) fram banks
|a] Ffor Fixed Asset

Total

amount of default as on the Balance Sheet date:
|a} Repayment of boan

b} Interest on Loan

5.9596,54

3BE.5T

210,55

931212
7.620,24

206.03

7.826.27

NiL
IL

A} Security
Working Capital Loans are primarily secured by hypothecation of present and future Current Assets and Actionabie Claims [viz, Inventories, trade
Thiese are further collaterally secured by extension of charge over moveable and immaoveable progeries of the company,
Further securad by personal guarantes of promoter director(s) of the company.

Rate of Interest

IMR working capital credit facilitias.carry interest rates ranging from 8.55% to 11.85%., Fareign Currency working capital demand loam carries interest of
LIBOW, plus 3.25% paa,

Buyers Credit 5 secured by Bank Guarantee lssied within the limit sanctioned to the company and [t carrles interest of variable spread over the' LIBOR
correspending to the period of tenure of the buyer credit feffactive rate ranges from 1.50% to 3.00% p.a:).

18 Financial Uiabilities - Current: Trade Payabl
Pasticulars

As at March 31, 2019
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

As at March 31, 2018
R, in Lacs Rs, in Lacs

3120.17
3.120.17

la] Duesto micro and small enterprsesirefer note below)
|b) Due to parties other than micro and small entarprises
Totak

3,005.73
3,005.73

Note: The company has reguested confirmation from Suppliers regarding thelr registration (filling of Memorandum] wunder the Micro; Small and hMedium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006 [the MASMED Act). According to the information available with the company, the following disclosures has been made in

respect of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises;
Particulars

As at March, 2018
s, in Lacs

A5 at March, 2019
Rs. In Lacs

Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any suppher at the
ond of the year

Principal Amaunt

Interest due on above

Armount of interest pakd by the company in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act,
along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during the year

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making paymaent
{which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act

the armount of interest accried and remaining unpaid at the end of the vear

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succesding
years, until sech date when the interest dues above dre actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of & deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the MSMED Act
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

19 Financial Uabflities - Current: Other Financial Liabilities

Farticulars

As at March 31, 2015
Rs. in Lacs, Rs.in Lacs

A5 at March 31, 2018
Rs.in Lacs Rs.in Lacs

{a) Current maturities of long term borrowings
{b) Interest accruad but not due on borrowings
ic} Book overdraft from banks

[d) Unclalmed Dividend *

(e} Other Liahilities

Total

24.28

2247
1570
517.43

579.88

35.41
Lz
172
18.52
B58.E3

528.70

* Represents dividend amounts either not clzimed or kept in abeyance inaccordance with Section 126 of the Companies Act, 2013

20 Other Current Liabilities

Particukars

A% at March 31, 201%
Rs.in Lacs Rs: in Lacs

fsat March 31, 2018
Rz inLacs A=, in Lacs

{a) Advance from customers

(b} Advance against sale of fixed asseis

e MTM valuation on forward cover
Total

21 Current Liabilities: Provisions

321325
9310

42.55
656,90

b651.11
253,10

23.66
967.87

Particulars

As at March 3%, 2019
Rs.in Lacs Rs.in Lacs

Asat March 31, 2018
R i Lacs Rz, in Lacs

Provision for Gratuity

Tozal

21 Revenue from operations

11156
11196

106,28
106,28

Particulars

2018 -19
Rs. In Lacs R in Lacs

2017 - 18
Rz, in Lacs R, In Lacs

(a) ‘Sales / Income from operations
fi} Sales|{Export]
(i} Exchange Fluctuation on Sabes |Export}
{iii} Sales {Indigenous}
[refer Nate |c) babow for hreak-up]
(b} Other cperating revenue
Export Incentives {refer Note (g) below for break-up}

Revenue from operations

Breakup of Sales

Finished Leather [including Split)
Leather Shoe-and components
Total

13,682,756
15234

405179

17,886,339

753.05

18,639.44
[ ]

1024881

7,637.58
17,B86,3%
e

17.673.45

403,06

414042
2221693

1,280.69
23,437 .62

13523.45
B,653.48
22,216.91

Revenge from operations for periods upto 30th June, 2017 Includes axcise duty, which s discontinued with effect from Ist July, 2017 wpon implementaticn
of Goods and Service Tax [GST) in Indi. In accordance with Ind AS G5T is notncluded in revenve from operations, In view of the aferesaid-restructuring of
indirect taxes, revenue from operations for the year ended March 31, 2018 [being inclusive of excise duty for the period from April 17 to June 17] i not
comparabbe with the current year. However, it has no effect on profits for the year. Amount of such gxcise duty for the current year is Rs. BIL [previous year

As 474 Lacs)
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019

(e} Detailsof gther operating sevenup
Export ncantives
Dury Draw Back
Other expart incentives/licences
Total

23 Other Income

Particulars

18- 19
Rs. in Lacs

2017 - 18
Rs.in Lacs

Interest noome

- from Fiked Deposit with Banks

Profit on Sale of Property Plant & Equiprnents
Miscellaneous Income

Deterrad revenue on EPCG & IDLS Subsidy
Ligbilities/provisions no longer required
Share af profit fram the LLP

Accretion in Investment

Total

24 Cost of material consumed

15.69
116.80
ALF?

3338

6.23

Particulars

2018-19
Ra. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

2017-18
Rs, in Lacs R, in Lacs

Raw W il umead

[a) Haw Hide for soke

[b) Raw Hide for chrome

[c) \Wet Blue Leather Chrome

|d) Upper for satety shoas

[} Finish leather for shoe upper and shoes

{fy Othess

Raw Material consumed

Chemicals consurmed

Stores & Spares consumed
Total

25 Purchase of stock in trade

41933
352268
60.47
141558
1.317.08
50,55

6,614.59

2,909.20

1,205.711

10,928.50

400,70
6,7149:29
14593
1.567.7&
1.402.62
57.76

10,387.06

3,274.34

134170

15,003.10

Particukars

201E- 19
RS, in Lacs

2017 -14
R&, in Lacs

[a} Finshed Leather [Including Split)
[b) Shos Upper

Total

595,00
625.30

1,620,30

B51.64
430.26

1,351.90
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26 Increase/decrease in Inventories

Farticulars

2018-19

Rs.in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

R, in Lacs

Inventores at the commencement of the year

Finished Goods
Waoark in process
Waste & Scrap
TOTAL ‘A

Inventaries at the end of the year
Finkshed Goods
Work in process
Waste & Scrap
TOTAL 'B'

Pecraase[Increase) i Stacks (A-B)

27 Employee benefit expense

1,480,983
267218
240,04

4,136,868
165.56

236184
277871
1E0.49

Particulars

2018 - 19
Rs. in Lacs

2017- 18
Rs.in Lacs

salary and Bonus

Cantribution te Provident and other funds
Contribution o Gratulty Fund

Wiorkmen and 5taff Welfare expenses

Total

28 Flnance cost

668,92
B6.75
3147
23,06

750,70

71933
76,16
3568
48.57

BhZ 74

Particulars

Interast on
- Tarm Loan
=« Others

Bank Charges
Forelgn Bank Charges
Tokal

29. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Particulars

2018 - 19
R inLacs

2017 -14
Ra. In Lacs

bepreciation/Amortisation on Tangible Assets

Amortization of Intangible assets

Total

505,99
0.33

586,332

569.72
021

569.93




SUPER TANNERY LIMITED
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30 Other expenses

Particulars 2018-19
Rs. im Lacs Rs.im Lacs

Rsim Lacs

Manufacturing Expenses
Job Work Charges 109621
Power and Fuel 5d6.37
Exgise Duty on sales :
Pedlution Control Expernses 331,13

Repairs and Maint=nance

- Bullding 2528

- Machinerny 56,46

1.757.50

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Frelght, Handling and Other Sales and Distribution Expenses

Commission on 5ale

Advertisement and Publicity

Bad Debas - Provisionwrite off

Expected credit loss

Establishment Expenses
Rent
Rates and Taxes
Imsurance
E.C.G.C Pramium
Communication cost
Travelling-and Conveyance
Bepairs and Maintenance - Dthers
Printing and Stationery
Legal and Professional Charges
Auditor's Remuneraticn {refer Note (a) below)
Miscellaneous Expenses
Research & Development Expenses
C5R Expend|ture
Subscription and Donation
Investment written off
Less on Sale of Property Plant & Equipments
Exchange Fluctuation
76371

Totai 3,565.5%

{a)  Auditor's remuneration comprises:
Az auditor
Far other services
Tatal

112422
53010
4,24
18.50

14,50
b4.32

791,19

372
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Particulars

31, Earming per share [EPS}

()
(bl

el
(el

Profit for the year (Rs. in Lacs) T 406,66
Weighted average number of equity sharas for the purpose of 107,973,360 107,573,360
of calculation of Basic and DHuted EP%

Neminal value of equity shares (Rupees) 1.00 1.00
EP5- Basic and diluted {Rupees per shana) 0,20 0.38

32, Capital and other commitments

Estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
sccount (ret of advances)
Other Commitments

33, Contingent llakilitles

il

Contingent Liabilities in respect of:
[a} Letter of Credit openad and outstanding 439,01

[b) The detail of disputed dues [net of amownts paid) as per the clause {w)(b] of Section 227 (44) of the Companies Act, 2013
{Rs. in Lacs)

Period to
Nature of Dues & Forem where dispute s pending whech relates March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
Incorme Tax - ufs 1433} of the Income Tax Act, 1961:
CIT Appeals, Kanpur AN 01314 MIL £R3
High court, Allahabad benich AN, 200T-08 30.54 30,54
Tribunal Lucknow bench AN, 2012-15 12.50 12.50

the Finance Act, 1994 - Sarvice Tax
A, cammissicner sennce tax Kanpur &Y, 2018-15

The Commisshoner [Appeaals) Central Exclee & F¥. 2015-16
Service Tax, Lucknow o 2016-17

Above clamms are Hkely to be decided In favour of the company, hence not provided for.

34 Disclosure pursusnt to Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment"

The company 1% aperating mainly in single segment Le., Loather and leather products; hence no disclosure is required in terms of Ind A5 108

35 Disclosure pursuant to ind A5 19 "Employes Benefits™:
{a] Defined Contribution Plan

Thie employees of the Company are meémbers of a state-managed retirerment benafit plans namely Provident fund and Pension and Ermployee State
Insurance (E51] operated by the Government of india, The Company i required 1o contribute & specified percentage of payrall costs to the retirement
benefit and E5 schemes.

The cnly obligstion of the company with respect to such retirement and ather benetit plan is to make the specified contributions,
The Company has recognized the following amounts in the Incoma Statemant during the year under ‘Contribution ta staff provident and ather funds'
[refdr nate 27}

R, in Lacs

Particulars 201718 |

Employer's contribution to PFand FPF 54,33
Emplover's contribution to E51C 11.83

Total 76.16 |
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Motes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{b) Defined Benefit Plan
The employees Grabwuity Fund Scheme, which is a defined benefit plan, Is managed by the trust maintained with LIC. The present value of obligation is
determingd based on actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service a5 giving rise 1o additional unit of
employes beneflt entithement and measures each unit separately to bulld up the final abligation,
As. bn Lacs
Particulars Gratuity [Funded) Gratuity |Funded]
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

(&) Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation
Obdigations as at beginning of the year 2M.53
Current service cost 3.9
Interest cost 16,98
Curtallment/settlement cost/{cradit)
Current service contribution- employes
Past Service Cost
Remeasurement {or Actuarial {gain}/Losst arsing from
- change In demograghlc assumption .
= eitange in financial assumption 365 |7.22)
- ENPEIENCE varkance (1642} [13.38)
- others - -
Benefits paid 119.01} [30.96]
Present valueof defined benefit obligation as st end of the year 229,02 220,53

Movemenis in the fair value of plan assets

Fairvalue of plan assets &t beginning of the year 114,25 115.00
Investment Income B0 EB.43
Retwurn an plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net Interest expense [1.59} [1.22]
Actual contributions by the employer 15,00 43,00
Actuanal gain/loss on plan assets: - -
Employee contribution - -
Benefits paid [19:01} |3.95]
Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year 117.05 134,25

Amount recognized in the balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obdigation as at end of the year 2ze02 220,53
Falr vatue of plin assets a5 ot and of the year 117.05 11435
Funded status {Ssrplus/(deficit)) 111,97} [106,28]
Uneecognised past senvice cpst -
Met asset/{lizbility) recogmsed in balance sheet (111.97} |206.28)

Net assetf{liability) recognized In balance sheet at beginning of the year (106,28} (10830
Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 3147 3536
Expense recognised in Other Comprehensive income {1075} |15:38]
Actual contributions by the employer 15.00 23.00
Met acguisition/business combination -

Net assetf{liability) recognised In balance sheet at end of the year (121.96) (1906, 24)

Amounts recognized In the statement of prafit and loss

Current service cost 2329 T
Interast cost B.18 B0l
Loss/|gain} on settlement - -
Past service cost - 1,56
Testal 39.36

Amaunts recogrised in other comprahenshve Income

Actuarial (gain) / loss dup to

- change In financial assumption \ [7.22)
- BEPETENCE VBTance [13.38]
- others -
Return on plan assets, excluding amoont recognised in net Interest expense ) 122
Remeasurement {or actuarial (gain)/loss) arising due to asset ceiling

Tastal 1159.33]
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IF}

I}

vl

vi)

wil)

Ctegory of plan assets
Funds managed by Insurer

Sensitivity analysis
CBO on base assumptions
A, Discount Rate
1. Effect due to 1.00% increase In discount rate
2. Effect due to 1.00% decrease in discount rate
B. Salary Escalation Rate
1, Effect due to 1.00% increase in salary escalation rate
2 Effect due 1o 1.00% decrease in salary escalation rate
C. Withdrawal Rate
1. Effact due to 50% increase In withdrawai rate
2. Effect due to 50% decrease in withdrawal rate
0. Mortality Rate
1, Effect due to 10% increase In martality rate
2. Effect due to 10% decrease in mortality rate

Risk Exposure - Asset Volatility

The plan fabdlities are calculated wsing a discount rate set with reference to bond yields, if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit,
Most of the plan asset investments 15 in fixed income securities with high gradesand In government securities:

These aresubject to interest rate risk and the fund manages interest rate risk derivatives to minimize risk to ap acceptable level. A portion of the funds
are invested in equity securities and in-alternative investments Sowhich have low correlation with equity securities

The equity securities are sxpected to earn a retum In excess of the discount rare and contribute to the plan deficit:

Actuarial assumptions
Actuarjal valuation as at the year-end was done in respect of the aforesaid defined benefit plans based on the following assumptions:

General assumptions

- Discount rate {per annum) T.50% 0%
- Withdrawal rate 2.00% 2.00%
- Rate af increase In compensation B.50% B.50%

Mortality rates considered are as per the publishad rates in the India Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08] Ultimate.

Leave encashment: Leave balance as at the end of the calendar year s encashed and balance leaves earned thereafter to the extent not availed by the
employees are provided in the accounts.

The discount rate should be based upon the market vields avallable on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the
lizhilities.

The expected rate of return on plan assets 15 based on markel expectation, at the beginning of the year, for retums over entire lite of the related
ahligation

The assumption of future salary increases, considered in-actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, promation, supply and demand and
ather refevant factors,

Liability on account of long term absences has been actuarially valued as per Projected Unit Cradit Method,

viil] Short term compensated absences have been provided on actual basis,

36 Ditclosure as per clause 34(3) and 53{f) of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations 2015 and Secticn 186 {4) of the Companies
Agn; 2013

&)

Loans to subsidiaries: (A5, Im Lacs)

Mame of the company Ratation Amount Qutstanding as on March 31 Maximum outstanding during the year
-ship 2019 2018 2019 201E

Super Tannery [U.K) Lid Subsidiary 13626 118,80 126.26 T1B:BO
Super Italia SAL Subsldiary BO.B4 322 69,84 3.22

The aforesaid advances has been ghen to meet the working caplital requirements and the same has been utilised for the same purposes,
Investments: refer Note Na. 3 [A) & [B]

Guarantes ghen
Thae company has nat giuen any corporate guarantes, for securing the credit facility.

Security provided:
The company has not provided any other security to/for any of its subsidiaries and associates.

86
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37 Ewpenditure on Corporabe Social Responsibility (C5R)
In pursuance of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and C5A Policy of the Company it is required to spend two percent of the ‘average net profits for
the three immediataly preceding financial years towards CSR activities.

Since the company has earned profits in previous years, gross amount required to be spent by the company towards CSR activities during the year is Rs,
19,70 Lacs.

The amount recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on CSR refated activities 1s Rs. 19.70 Lacs (previous year; Rs. 11,25 Lacs) detailed as
under:

Rz, In Lacs

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

Yabto bo paid Yt tocbe pald Tatal

C5R Expenditure - - 11.25
Total 11.25

Expenditure on Research and Development
Rs. In Lacs

Particulars 0IT-18
Capital Expenditure =
Revenue Expenditure 165
Tatal LGS

Disclosure pursuant to ind A% 17 "Leazes":
(2} Where the company is Lissor
| Operating Lease!
The company has not entered into any non-cancellable Operating Lease.
fi.  Fimance Lease: The Company has not enterad into any finance lease,

(b) Where the company is Lessesa
i Fimance Lease:

The company does not have any finance lease arrangement
I Dperating Lease: The Company hasnot enterad Into any non-cancellable operating leases:

A0 Financial Instruments
(Il Capital Management

The Company's capital management is intended to create value for sharehalders by facilitatiog the meesting of long-term and short-term goals of the
Company.

The Company determines the amount of cagital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term product and other strategic Investmeant
plans: The funding requirements are met through equity and other leng-termyshart-term borrowings: The Company's policy is aimed at combanation of
short-term and long-term

borrowings.

Thee capital structure of the company consists of debt, which' includes the borcowings incluidfing temporary overdrawn balance |, cash and cash
equivalents including short term bank deposits, equity comprising Bssued capltal, reserves and non-controling interests. The gearing ratio for the year
15 as unddier;

{Hs. In Lacs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Debt

Less: Cash and cash equivalent
Net dobt (A)

Total equity |B)

Debt Egulty Ratio (A/B]

7.070.50
194.93
6,875.57
7.764.52
0.89

792441
92.719
7.831.62
7.544.55
104
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Notes farming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(i} Categories of financial instruments
Calculation of Fair Values
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities gre defined as the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an
orderly transaction betwsen market participants at the measurement date, The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values af financial instruments:

a) Thie fair walues of investment n quoted investment in equity shares 5 based on the curnent bid price of respective investrment as at the Balance
Sheet date,

b} The fair walue of the long-term borrowings carrying floating-rate of interest is not impacted due to interest rate changes and will not be significantly
different frorm their carmying amounts a5 there 5 no significant change in the under-lying credit nsk of the Cormpany [since the date of inception of the
loans).

) The fair value of loans from banks and other financial indebtedness as well as other non current financial liakilities is estimated by discounting future
cash flows using rates currently avallable for debt or semdlar terms and remaining maturites.

d) Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables, and other finaneial liabilites hawe fair values that approxmmate
to their carrying amounts due to thelr short-term nature.

{Rs. In Lacs}
Particulars Az at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Carrying value  Fair value Carrying valug Falr value

Fimancial Assits

Fimancial assets measurad at fair value
Irvestrients measurad at

i, Fair value through ether comprehensive income
Il Fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets measured ot amortized cost
Trade Receivables 3Ty 5.504.07
Cash and cash equivalents 194.93 9279
Bank batarces other than cashand cash equivalents 243.02 309,63
Other financial assets 353.90 1,333.50
Total 4,549 82 i 7,.230.39
Fimancial Liabilities

Fingncial liabdlitins meoasured at amortized cost
Borrowings T.070,50 152441
Trade payables 3,095.73 312017
Cither financial liabilities : 575.88 S28.70
Total 10,746.11 1197324

Income, expenses, gains or losses on financizl mstruments As In Lacs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Allowances for doubtful receivables (8.4} |8:77]
Fimancial assers measured at fair vaiue through Profit and Loss 0:18 -
Financial assets meassred al faie value through Other Comprehensive Income

Fair value measurements recognized in the balance sheet;

The following table provides an anabysls of financial instruments that are measured subseguent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped. into Levels 1
to 3 based an the degres to which the fair value'is nbservable.
-Lewal 1 fair value measurements are those derived from guoted prices [unadjusted) in active markets for identical assats-or liabilities:

-Lewal 2 falr value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are obsarvable for the asset or
liahiity, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly [1e. derlved from prices).

Leval 3 fair value measurements are thase derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or Rability that are not based on
observable market data [uncbservable inputs),
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(iv) Financial risk managemant objectives:
The Company's princepal financial llakdlities comprise of loan from banks amd financeal institutions, and trade payables, The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Company’s operations. The Company has variows financial assets such as trade receivables, cash and short
term deposits, which arise directly from |ts operations,
The main risks arising from Company's financlal instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, market risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk, The
Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks.

{a) Credie risk:

Credit risk i5 the risk of financial lossto the Company If & custemer or counterparty 1o a financial Instrument faits to meet its cantractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Company's trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank batances, The maximum exposure to
credit risk in case of afl the financial instruments covered below i restricted to their respective carrying amount,

Trade and Other receivables

Customercredit s managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policies, protedures and contrad relating to custormer.credit
risk management. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generzlly on 90 days credit term. Credit fimits are estzblished forall customers
based on internal rating criterfa. Dutstanding customer recelvables are regularly monitored.,

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend, Industry practices and the buskness environment in
which the entity operates. Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experiance and past trends,

Expected credit loss assessment for customers:
The company is making provisions on trade receivables based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model. The reconciliation of ECL is as foflows:

(Hs. In Lacs}
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Impairment loss as per ECL recognised,f{reversed) B4 8.77
Additional Provision fwrite off 46,13 13.48
Amount debited to Profit and Loss 54,57 id.25

Other financial assets

The Company maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with bonks and derivative tontracts,

Thie Company held cash:ang cash equivalents of As 194:93 Lacs at March 31, 2019 [March 21, 2018: As; 92.79%acs). Cashand cash eguivalents-are held
with reputable and credit-worthy banks,

Ineividual rigk lmits are set for each counter-party based on financial position, credit rating and past experience. Credit imits and concentration of
exposures are actively monitored by the Management of the Company,

Other than trade and other receivablas, the Company has no other financal assets that are past due but not impaired

{b) Barket risk:
Market Risk |s the risk that the Fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctiate because of changes in market prices, Market risk
comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and prica risk.

|1} Foreign currency risk

The Company isexpesad to currency risk on account of its operating and financing activities. The functional currency of the Company is-Indian Rupee.
Company's exposure is mainly denominzted in USD, GBP and Euro. The exchange rates have changed substantially in recent pertods and may continue
1o fluctuate substantially in the future, The Company has put in place a Financial Risk Management Policy to identify the most effective and efficient
ways of managing the cerrency risks. The Company uses derfvative Instruments {mainly foreign exchange forward contracts) to mitigate the risk of
changes in foreign currency exchange rate,

The Company do not use derivative financial Instruments for trading or speculative purposes,

|l}interast rabe risk:

Interest rate risk i measored by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes invariable interest rates. Any movement in the referance rates could have
an Impact on the Company’s cash flows: as well as cests, The Company also uses a mix of interest rate sensitove financeal Instruments 1o manage the
liquidity and fund requirements for its day to day operations kike short-term loans,
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
[ntarist rate sensitivity anabysis:
Az at March 31, 2018 interest bearing financial Hability {zecured loan from banks) ‘stood at Rs. 7070.50 Lacs, was subject to variable interest rates.
Incraase/decrease of S0 Hasis points in interest rates at the balance sheet date would result in decrease/increase in profit before tax of Rs. 35,35 Lacs,

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 50 basis points interest rate. This calculation also assumes that the change ocours at the balance
sheet date and has been caloulated based on risk exposures outstanding as-at that date, The period end balances are not necessarily representative of
the average debt outstanding during the period,

This analysis assumes that all other vanables, in particutar forelgn currency rates, remain constant.

Fair value of financial Instrumants:

All financial assets are Initially recognized at fair value of consideration paid. Subsequently, financial assets are carried at fair value or amortized codt
less impairment, Where non — derivative financial assets are carried at fair vatue, gains and losses on re- measurement are recognized directly in eguity
unkess the financial assets have been designated as being held at-fair value through profit or loss, in which case the gains and fosses are recognized
directly in the standalone statement of profit 2nd loss. Financizl assets are designated as being held at fair value through profit or Ioss when it s
necassary to reduce measurement Inconsistenty for related assets and llabilities, Al financial llabilities other than derivatives are Initially recognized at
fair value of consideration recefved net of transaction costs as appropriate (initial cost) and subsequently carried at amartized cost.

{101} Ligpusidity risk

The Company fellows a Conservative policy of ensuring sufficient liquidity 2t all times through a strategy of profitable growth, efficient Bguidity at all
times through & strategy of profitable growth, efficient working capital management as well-as prudent capital expénditure. The Company has-2
overdraft facility with banks to support any temporary funding reguirerents.

The Company believes that current cash and cash equivalents, tied up borrowing lines and cash Tlow that Is generated Trom operathons |s sufficient to
meet requirements: Accordingly, liguidity risk is perceived tobe law.

Liguidity tabie:
Liquidity tables drawn up based on the cash flows of financial llabilities based on the-eariest date on which the Company can be required to pay i
disciosed at:Note no. 51,

(V) Other price risk:
The Company i not exposed 1o amy significant equity price risks ansing from equity investments, as-on 31st March 2019, Equity investments-are hald
for strategic rather than trading purposes, The Company does not actively trade these Investments,

(Vi) Equity price sensttivity analysis:
Thiere is no exposure o equity price rsks as at the reporting date oras at the prévious reporting date,

41 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 27 "Separate Financial Statements”
Investments in following subsidiaries and associates & sccounted at cost:

Name of Subsidiary company / Principal A5 at Wanch 312019 Az at March 31, 2018
. Associate Company place of Effecting EFfecting Effiective Effnctive
business|  proportionol propomion of peoportion of propertien of
eamiership wting power amership yoting pawer
Inferast (% Inzerest (% Interast (% Interest (%

Wholly Dwned Subsidiaries (Foreign)
Stpar Tannery (LG Ltd 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100,00
Super Tannery UAE FZE 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Super Italia SRL 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100,00%

Subsidearies {India)
Aarifi Tanners Limited 82.52%
Super Corporation Limited 52.00%
Secure Safety Limited =

hssociate Company
Secure Safety Limited
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Motes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

42 There is no amount due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education & Protection Fund as at March 31, 2019,

43 Disclosure purseant to Ind A5 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabillties and Contingent assets";

The campany has recognised contingent llabilities: as disclosed in Note 33 above and as such no provision i required to be made. Ne provision was

outstanding as at the beglnning and at the end of the year,

44 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 105 "Ran-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations™;
There are e such asset held for sale-and discontinued operations on 31 March 2019

45 Tax Expenses
13l Amounts recognized in profit and loss

[Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars 201819

2017-13

Current tax expense
Current year 165,00
Changes In estirmates relating to prior years 123.75)

Deferrad tax expensa
Crigination-and reversal of temporary difterences

Recognition of previously unrecognized taxes

Taw expense recognired in the income statermeant

220.00
{23.16)

Amouwnts recognized in other comprehensive incoms

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars

2017-138

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Rermeasurements of the defined benefit plans
Tax Expiense/Benefit]

19,38
571

MNetof Tax

12.67

{I] Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assatis recognized in the balance sheet
(i} Unrecognised deductible temporary differences for which no deferred tax asset is recognised in balance sheet

Components of deferred tax [assets] and Habitithes recognised in Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit or Loss:

NIL
NEL

Particulars Balance Sheet as at
31.03.19 11.03.18

Staterment of Prafit & Loss
2018-19 2017-18

bifference between book balance and tax balance of fized assets 86774 689.14
Provision for gratuity -142.98 -36.78
Cthers - -
Mt Deferred Tax {asset) labiilty 72526 G652.41
Deférred Tax expense/lincorme)

- Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss

- Recognised in Other Comprehensve Inoome

178.55 47,21
-105.70 -24.30

Reconciliation of deferred Tax |Asset] Liability

Particulars

2017-13

Dpening Balanges

Ty {incogme lfexpense during the period recognised in:

- Sraterment of Profit and Loss in Profit or Loss secthon

- Staternent of Profit and Loss an Profit or Loss section relating to earlier years
-Staterment of Profit and Loss under OCI section

Closing Balances

628,50

59.30 16.20

356 671
J25.27 B52.41

46 Financial Statements of the subsidiary compapiesand related detailed information will be made available to.the investors, of the company and subsidiary
companies, seaking such information, The financial statements of the subsidiary cormpankes are slso kept at Registered Office of the company and that of

subsidiary companies for Inspection of investors of the compamyand subsidiary companies,
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Motes larming part of the 5 dabari Financial 52

b5 fior the yaas ended March 31, 2019

&7 Disclosure of related p:ruﬁfrg]md party transactions/hatances pursuant ta ind A% 24 "Related Party Disclosures®

1

Warme of Related Parties and natuie ol eelatonship
Hedatad partiis awar which controlexist (Subsdiaries)
1 Buper Tarnery (UK | Led.

bl Supsr Tonnery UAE F2E

£

¥ Gmiper ltallin'SRL

lalnt Ventures

il Eay Managamant Parsanned (KMPL& Relatives

al Mr, [Ftikharul Amin =Managing Directar

by ®Ar. Igbat Ahsan — Director

ci Mr. Yequasul Amin- It Managing Director
di Mr, imran Siddigol — Whale time Dirdctor
e ¥Ar,-Arshiad Khan — Whole e Director

§i #Ar, Mahd Imran — Whols time Deeciar

Aarifi Tanners Lid
Super Corporatson Limited
Secirs Safaty Lid

e 7K. Awasthl - Company Secratary

Mr: ¥ 5 Katiyar - Deretar

. Mubashine fmin (Samof Mr. igbed Shsan)

Mr: Tanweserul Amin [Son of Mr, ftikharul &min|

Mr. Khsilid Sayeed (Brotherof M. imran Siddigui)
0 Nde. Umalrul Smin (500 of Mre. lgbal Ahsen)

% Orhare: Enterarise ovarwhich KMP ar rolatives of KBAP are able 1o axercies significant influence:

8]

) Supar Shoes 1id
) Amén Tannery L1d
£) Amén Colonizers & Deviopors Lid

d| Banthar Industrial Pallution Controd Comaany
el Industrial frastructure Sorvicoes {1} Lid

fl  Bouinl Frills L1P

§I) Dzl rions of related packy transsctions distmg the pear (in ordinary taurse ol Business a1 grm Saghth price) Summaryg

Tramsacikang

Suabwiliaries
s at [ For the yesr endesd
110319

31.03,.18

Associales
Az 1 f far the pear ended
L0318

mber related parties ENRAP gl R atives
Aot/ or bhe ypear endied s 98 for the year endod

3140318 3143.19 119418 31.03.39 - 31.03.38

Merchates of matariass § finished goods
Salg of matarials /f finished goods

Hent pasd

Aent received

Hemurerationfsdnng tee

Arceivables [Aes)

Payehles |Trade payable & othar llabfiees)
Loans and Advanies

tinyEs refer Note No. 3

30107
335.09

aFrIi

208.58

4T.ER
16,04
3.E0

13.53 0328 -
39375 159.58
oz
g% 11642

1576 2434

i) DRtad al melated pamy transactions during the year |In eadinary courss of bodness A arm lenghin pece|

Mame af relasad pany & Transacions

Subsidlaries

31018

Asspciates
asat / tor the year ended. As at f for the year ended. &% at f for the year endod

IL03.24 31.03:19

KNP and Rilatives
&s at { far the year ended
31:03.19 31.03.18

Db redated partios

314318 3110319 310318

fusnchazes of matenat f finished goads
Lupershoes Lid

HAenin Tannery Lid

Super Tannery UAE F2E

Sl o matacial | Finshed poods
Adnan Tannery L

Sapser [Ealia SR

Supor Tanngry UAE FTE

B Frills LLP '

He=nt. pasd
Azrifi Tanners Limited

Hent received
Benvini Frilly LLP

R ralisrsiTing Tea
MAr, Ifiharul Amin
WAr, |gbal Ahsan

8Ar: Imran Siddiguie
Mr. Arshiad Khan

8, Mahd Imran

Wr, Yequarul &min
Wir; Mubashiral &min
mr. Tarvveecul Amin
BAr, Ehailid Sepeed
MAF, Liimairul Amin
W R Alwanthi
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Breakug of Directors Remuneration
Salary, Bonus and Leave &ncashment
Contributsan ta PF

Cammission

Outstanding balances with related parties:
Eeceivables (Ret

Super Tannery LUAE FZE

Siper Tannery UK Lid

Super Halia SAL

Aarifi Tannerss Lid

Securg safety Limited

Armin Tannery Lid

Bpdird Frills LLP

Fayables (Trade hile & athes Eahilities
Amin Tannery LTD
Superihoes Lid

e Mitikksarul Benin
Mr. igbal Ahsan

Me_ imiran Siddigue
Mr. drahad Khan

Ilr. Mchd dmean

e Wamaarll &min
Me. Muliashirud dmin
Mr: Tanvesrd Armin
Tdr. Khailid Sayeed
e, Umairul Amin
e A K Awiasthi

Loans and Advances
Sigper Hafs SAL %34 =Tk ]
Super Tannery UK 12676 11880

19610 12783

e armount has bean watten off fback or pravided as doubtiul debrs during the year in respect of related panties;
Koy Managenial Parsonnel are entited (o post-emplayment benefits and other long term emplayee benelits recognized as per Ind AS 19 - ‘Employes Bepalins’ n the
financial statements As these emaloyes benefits are lump sum amounts provided on the basis of actuasial valuation, the sme is not included aboie

4% (a) Foreign Curvency Exposire bedged and un-hedged a5 at the balance sheat date & as under;
|Fareign Currenty amsaunt in Lacs)

PARTRCLILARS L&k I ELIRG GEF
200819 01718 1818 101714 1519 01718
Debtors a4 46,495 14,73 10,63 1.26 1.4
Cradrtars HE 016 1.n 033
Gther Payables .06 a2 - [ef 1]
AfhETES - - - 0.0
Cash & Bank Balance L (PR E] : Q.05
Lattar of Credit .05 150 - 165
* represent bass tham 0,01 Lacs
Gerivative Instrument Cartstanding {Forward Cantract for hedgng) [Fareign Carrengy amaunt in Lacs)
PAHTMLILARS LS6 / INR EURD ( INH

1819 H017-148 201819 21718
AgRinGE exparts 24,58 186 1,10
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43 pisclosure purssant 1o Ind A5 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements"

{al  Current liakiities and borrowings expected to be recovered within twelve months and after twetve months from the reporting date:

Particulars Nota Asg at March 31,2019 As at March 31, 2018
N, Within After Total Within Afrer Total
twoelve twelve tweelve twelhe

months months months mionths

Barrowings ¥.020.82 4968 707050 7 EGL.GE 53.73 792441
Trade and arher payables 3,095.73 3085.73 3,120.17 - 3120017
Other financial liabilities 555.60 - 555.60 B90.29 - 890,29

Current assets expected to be settied within twehe months and after twelve months from the reporting date:

Particulars Mote As at March 31, 2019 A5 al March 31, 2018
Mo, Within After Total Within After Total

twelve taelve bwelve twehme
manths manths manths manths
Impentories 7.973.64 - 1.973.64 L177.73 - 117773
Trade Receivable 3,717.87 - 3,717.97 5.594.07 - 5.594.07
Other Financial Assets 303.50 . 353.80 1,333.50 . 1,333,890
Other Current Assets 1,128:89 - 1,128.89 S92 .8a - aZ.86

50 Figures of the:previous.year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever required In order to make them comparable with those of current
year. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupeesin lacs

As per our attached report of even date

For Rajeev Prem & Associates
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Beard
Firm Registration No. 008305C

Rajeey Kapoor
Partner Mohd Imran [ftikharul Amin
M. No. 077827 Director{Finance) & CFO Managing Director

Place: Kanpur
Date: May 30, 2019 R. K. Awasthi
Company Secretary
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RAJEEV PREM & ASSOCIATES Off. ; 0512 - 2302412

Maob. : 09415051670

Office ; 216, Kalpana Plaza
24/147-B, Birhana Road
Kanpur-Z08 001

E-mail - carajesvkapoor@amail.com

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To The Members of Super Tannery Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

Wﬁ have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements ofSuper TanneryLimited (the “HoldingCompany™) and its subsidianes
(Holding Company and itssubsidiaries together referred o as “the Group”), which comprise the consoclidated balance sheet as athMarch 31, 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit and lossiincluding other comprehensive income), conzolidated statementof changes in equity and
consolidated staterment of cagh flowsfor the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financialstatements, including a summary of significant
accounting policiesand other explanatory information {hereinafier referred to as “theconsofidated financial statements”),

In our opinion-and to the best of cur information and accordingto the explanations given to us, and based on the considerationof reports of other
auditors on separata financial statements ofsuch subsidiaries as were audited by the otherauditors, as referred to below in other maiters paragraph,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give theinformation required by the CompaniesAct, 2013 ("Act”) in themannar so required and give
a true and fair view in conformitywith the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of theconsolidated state of affairs of the Group as
atMarch 31, 2019, of itz conzolidated profit and other comprehensiveincome, consclidated changes in equity and consolidated cashilows for tha
year than ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standardzon Auditing (SAs) specified under Secton 143{10) of the Act. Cur responsibilities under
those SAs are further described inthe Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the ConsolidatedFinancial Statemenis section of our report. We are
independent ofthe Group and its associate companies in accordance with theCode of Ethics issued by the [nstitute of Chanered Accountantsof
India, and we have fulfilled our other athical responsibilities inaccordance with the provisions of the Act. We believe that theaudit avidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate toprovide a basis for our epinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters ara those matiers that, inour professionaljudgment, were of most significance in our awdit of the consolidatedfinancial statements
of the current period. These matters weareaddressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financialstatements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion therecn. andwe do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Description of Key Audit Matter

Accuracy of revenue recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures in view of adoption of Ind AS 113 "Revenue from contract with
customars”

Revenue is measured net of rebate & discounts and returns, if any.Due to the Group's presenca acfoss different marketing regions within the
country and outside, the compatitive businass environmant, the revenue recognition requires certain key judgments relating to identification of
performance obligation, determination of frangaction price and appropriateness of the basis used to measure the revenue.

(refer notes 1(B)(27) and 22 to the consolidated Financial Statements)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Dur audit approach consigted testing of design and operating effectivenass of internal conirols procedures and incleded:
Evaluating the design of intermal controls relating to implementation of new-accounting standard.
Assassing the appropriateness of the revenue recognition accounting policies, including those relating to discounts and rebates:
Checking of completeness and accuracy of the dafa used by the management for the purpose of purpose of revenue recognition
including calculation of the discounts, rebates and incentives and for sales returns and checking of its arithmetical accuracy.
Comparison betwean the astimates in the past with subsequent actuals and analysis of the nature of any deviations to corroborate tha
effectiveness of the management estimation process.
Performing analytical procedures for reasonableness of revenue disclosed.
Considerad the adequacy of the Company's disclosures in respect of revenua.

Information Other than the Consolidated FinancialStatements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Hoiding Company's management and Board of Directorsare responsibla for the other information. The other informationcomprizes the
informatien included in the Holding Company'sannual report, but does notinclude the financial statements andour auditors report thereon.

Cur apinion on the consolidatad financial statements does notcover the othér information and we do not express any form ofassurance conclusion
theraon.

Inconnection with our audit of the consolidated financialstatements. our respoensibility is to read the other information and. in doing 5o, consider
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whether the other information is materallyinconsistent with the consolidated financlal statements or curknowladge obtained in the audit or otherwize
appears to bematerially misstated. If, based on the work we have performedand based on the work done/audit reports of other auditors, we conclude
that there is a material mizstatement of this otherinformation, we are reguired to report that fact.

We have nothinglo reportin this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and ThoseCharged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directorsare responsible for the preparation and presentation of theseconsolidated financial
statements in terms of the requirementsof the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated staiecf affairs, conzolidated profit and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidatedcash flows of the Group in accordancewith the accounting
principles generally. accepted in India,including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specifiedunder Section 133 of the Act, The respective
Board of Directorsof the companies included in the Groupare responzible for maintenance of adequate accounting recordsin accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguardingthe assets of each company and for preventing and detectingfrauds and other irreguiarities; the selaction and
application ofappropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimatesthat are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementationand
maintenance of adequate internal financial confrols, that werecperating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completenassof the accounting
records, relevant fo the preparation andpresentation of the consolidated financial statements that givea true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for thepurpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statementsby the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statemeants, the respectivemanagement and Board of Directors of the companies Includedin the Group are
responsible for assessingthe ability of each company to confinue as a going concem,disclosing, as applicable, matters related 10 going concearn
andusing the going concem basis of accounting unless managementezither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, orhas no
realistic aiternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies inciuded in theGroup is responsible for overseaing thefinancial reporting process of each
company.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of theConsolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives. d@re o obtain reasonable assurance about whetherthe consolidated financial statements as a whole ara free frommaterial

misstatement, whether due o fravd or ermor, and oissue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonableassurance is a high level of

assurance, butis not a guarantae thatan audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always. detact amaterial misstatement when it exists.

Misstaternants can arisefrom fraud or error and are considered matarial if, individualty orin the aggregate, they could reasonably be expaciad to

infiuencethe economic decisions of users taken on the basis of theseconsolidated financial statements.

As partof an auditin accordance with SAs, we exercize professionaljudgment and maintain professional skepticlsm throughout theaudit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of matenial misstatement of theconsolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud orerror, design and
pedorm audit procedures responsive tothose risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient andappropriate to provide-a basis for our
apinion. The nsk of notdetecting a material misstaterment resulting from fraud ishighier than for one resuiting from emror, as fraud may

involvecoliusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the overide of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control refevant tothe auditin order to design audit proceduras that areappropriate in the circumstances.
Under section 143{3){f} ofthe Act, we are alsc responsible for expressing our opinionon whether the Holding Company and such
companiesincorporated in India which are its subsidiary companieshave adequate internal financial controls with reference tofinancial

statements in place and the operating effectivenessof such controls,

Evaluate the approprateness of accounting policies usedand the reasonableness of accounting estimates and relateddisclosures made by

mmanagemeant

Conclude-on the appropnatenass of management's use ofthe going concern basis of accounting in preparation: ofconsolidated financial

statements and, based on the auditevidence obtained, whether a material unceriainty existsralated to events or conditions that may cast

significant doubton the appropriateness of this assumption. If we concludethat a material uncertainty exists, we are required to drawattention

in our auditor's report to the related disclosures inthe consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosuresare inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions-arebased on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of curauditors reporl. However, future events or conditions

maycause the Group (Company and its subsidiaries) as well as iisaccociates fo cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaiuate the overall presentation, structure and content of theconsolidated financial statements, including the disclosures and whether the

consolidated financial statements representthe underying transactions and events in a manner thatachieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding thefinancial information of such entities or business activitieswithin the Group to

axpress an opinionon the consolidated financial statements. Wi are responsiblefor the direction, supervisionand performance of theauditof
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« financial information of such entities included inthe consolidated financial statements of which we are theindependent auditors. For the othar
antities included in theconsolidated financial statements, which have been auditedby other auditors, such other auditors remain responsiblefor
the direction, supervision and performance of the auditscarried out by them. We remain solely responsible for ouraudit opinion. Our
responsibilities in this regard are furtherdescribed in para (a) of the section titled "Other Matters’ inthis audit report, We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us along withthe consideration of audit reports of the other auditors referredto in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other
Matters paragraph below, issufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinionon the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance ofthe Holding Company and such other enfities included in theconsolidated financial
statements of which we ara the independentauditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope andliming of the audit and significant
auditfindings. including anysignificant deficiencies in internal control that we identify duringour audit.

We alzo provide those charged with governance with @ statementthat we have complied with relevant ethical requirementsregarding
independence, and to communicate with themall relationships-and other matiers that may reasonably bethought to bear on our independence,
and whera applicable related safequards.

From the matters communicated with those charged withgovernance, we detarming those matters that were of mostsignificance inthe awdit of
the consolidated financial statementsof the current period and are therefore the key audit mattars.

We describe these matiers In our auditors’ report unless law orregulation precludes public dizclosure about the matter or when,in extremely rare
circumatances, we determing that a maitershould not be communicated in cur report because the adverseconsequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected tooutweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. '

Other Mattors

{a) We did not-audit the financial statements of threesubsidiares whose financial statements (before eliminating inter-company balances)
reflect iotal assets of Rs. 365.00 Lacs as at March 31, 2013, total revenues (before efiminating inter company ransactions) of Rs. .68
Lacsand net cash out flows amounting to Rs. 2.57 Lacs for theyear ended on that date, as considered in the consolidatedfinancial
statements. These financialztatements have been audited by other auditors whosereports have been furnished to us by the Holding
Company'smanagement and our opinion on the conzolidated financialstatements, in so far as it relates to the amounts anddisclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) ofSection 143 of the Act, in 50 far as it relates to the
aforesaidsubsidiaries is bazed solely on the auditreports of other auditors.

Ve did niot audit the financial statements/financial information of three subsidiaries, whose financial statements (before aliminating inter-
company balances) reflect fotal assets of Rs. 1,046.57 Lacs as at March 31, 2019, total revenuas (before eliminating inter- company
transactions) of Rs. 1,670.64 Lacs and nat cash flows amounting to Rs. 8448 Lacs for the year ended on that date; as considered in the
consofidated financial statements. These unaudited financial statements have bean furnishedio us by tha Holding Company's Managemant
and ouropinion on the consolidated financial staterments, in sofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures includedin respect of thase
subsidiares and our report in termsof sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as itrelates to the aforesaid subsidianes, is based
solaly onsuch unaudited financial statements. In our opinion andaccording o the information and explanations given to usby the Holding

Company's Management, theze financialstatements are not materialto the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and ourreport on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below.is not modified in
respect of the above mattars with respectto our refiance on the work done and the reports of the otherauditors and the financial

statementsffinancial informationcerified by the Holding Company's Managemant.

Report on Other Legal and RegulatoryRequirements

1. Asrequired by Section 197(16) of thie Act, based on our audit and on consideration of the repont of the statutory auditors of such subsidianes
incorporated in India not audited by us, the remuneration paid during the current year by holding company, its subsidiaries iz in accordance
with the provisions of and limits kaid down under Section 197 ofthe Act.

Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our auditand on the consideration of reports of the other auditorson separate financial
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statementsof such subsidiaries as were audited by other auditors, as notedin the "Other Matters' paragraph, wa report, to the extentapplicable,

that:

a)

We have sought and obtained all the information andexplanations which to the best of our knowledge andbelief were necessary for

the purposes of our audit ofthe aforesaid consclidated financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required bylaw relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidatedfinancial statements

have bean kept so far as it appearsfrom our examination of those books and the reports ofthe other auditors:

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidatedstatement of profit and loss (including othercomprehensive income), the
consolidated statementof changes inequity and the consolidated statementof cash flows dealt with by this Report are inagreement

with the relevant books of accountmaintained for the purpose of praparation of theconzolidated financial stataments.
Inour opinion, the aforesaid conzolidated financialstatements comply with the Ind AS specified underSection 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations receivedfrom the directors of the Holding Company as ofMarch 31, 2019 taken on
record by the Board of Directors ofthe Holding Company and the reports of the statutoryauditors of its subsidiary
companiesincorporated inlndia, none of the directors of the Group companiesincorporated in India is disqualified as on March
31,2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164{2) of the Act.

With respect to the-adequacy of the internal financialcontrots with reference to financial statementsof the Holding Company and its
subsidiarycompanies Incorporatad in India and the operatingeffectiveness of such controls, refer to our separateReport In

Annexura A’

With respect to the other matters to be included in theAuditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies(Audit and

Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to thebest of cur information and according to the explanationsgiven to us and based on

the consideration of the reportsof the other auditors on separate financial statements of thesubsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other

Matters'paragraph:

The consolidated financial statements disclose theimpact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2018 onthe consolidated

financial position of the Group. Refer Note 32 {o the consolidatedfinancial statements.

The Group companies incorporated in India. did not have any material foreseeabla losses on fong-term contracts including

derivative contracts.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts to thalnvestor Education and Protection Fund by the HoldingCompany orits
subsidiary companies incorporated inindia during the year ended March 31, 2019,

thia disclosure reguiraments relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank noles wera applicable for the pariod
from Movember 08, 2016 to Decambar 30, 2016, which are not relevant to these consolidated financial statemants. Hence;

reporing under this clause is not applicable.

For Rajeev Prem & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. D08905C

{Rajeev Kapoor)

Place: Kanpur Partner
Date: May 30, 2018 M. No. 07727
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ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2{flunder "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement section’ of our report of even date on the consolidated
financial statemants of Super TannanyLimitad (the Holding Company Jfar the financial year ended March 31, 2019}

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financialstatements of Super TanneryLimited (*the Holding Company”™) as of and for the year ended
March 31,2019, we have audited the internal financial controls with referenceto consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company andsuch
companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 which are iis subsidiary companies, as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companiesincorporated in India whick are its subsidiary companies have,in all matenal respects;
adequate intermnal financial controls withreference to consolidated financial statements and such intemalfinancial controls were operating
effectively as at March 31,2019, based on the internal financial controls with reference toconsolidated financial statements criteria established by
suchcompanies considering the essential components of such intemalcontrols stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Intemal FinanclialControls
Ovyer Financial Reporting issued by the Institute ofChariered Accountanis of India (the "Guidance Note™).

Management's Responsibility for InternalFinancial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and itssubsidiary companies which ara companies incorporated in India,are responsible
for establishing and maintaining internal financialcontrols with reference to consolidated financial statementsbased on the criteria established by
the respective companiezconsidering the essential components of internal control statedin the Guidance Note. These responsibiliies includa the
design implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financialcontrols that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderyand efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence tothe respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracyand completeness of the accounting records; and the timely

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under theCompanias Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”),

Auditors’ Responsibility

Dur responsibility is-to express an opinion on the internal financialcontrols with reference to consolidated financial statements basedon our audit.
Wa conducted our audit in accordance with theGuidance Maote and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed undersection 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit ofinternal financial controls with referance to consolidated financialstatemeants. Those Standards and the Guidance
MNote require thatwe comply with ‘ethical requirements and plan-and perform theaudit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequateinternal financial controls with reference to consolidated financialstatements were established and maintained and if such
controdsoperated effectively inall matenal respacts.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain auditevidence about the adegquacy of the intemal financial controlswith reference to
consolidated financial statements and thetroperating effectiveness. Cur audit of internal financial controlswith reference to conzolidated financial
statemeants includedobtaining an understanding of internal financial conirols withreference to consolidated financial statements, assassing therisk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluatingthe design and operating effectiveness of the internal conirolsbased on the assessad
risk. The procedures selected depend onthe avditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks ofmatarial misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, wheather due tofraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence wa hava obtained and the auditevidence obtained by the other auditors of the relevant subsidiarycompanies
incorporated in India in terms of their reports referred toin the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriateto provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financialcentrols with referance to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls withReference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Acompany's internal financial controls with reference toconsolidated financial statements is a process designed toprovide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financialreporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemalpurposes inaccordance with generally accepted
accountingprinciples. A company's intemal financial controls with referenceto consolidated financial statements includes those policies
andproceduras that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that.in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactionsand dispositions
of the assets of the company, (2} provideraasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessaryto permil preparation of financial
statements in accordance withgenerally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts andexpenditures of the company are baing made only in
accordancewith authorzations of anagement and directors of the company,and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevéntion orimedy
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or dispesitionof the company's assets that could have a material effect on thefinancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financlalcontrols with Reference to consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controlswith reference to consolidated financial statements, includingthe possibility of
coflusion or improper managemant overrideof controls, material misstatements due to eror or fraud mayoccur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluationof the internal financial controls with reference to consolidatedfinancial statements fo future periods are subject o the
risk thatthe internal financial controls with reference o consolidatedfinancial statemeants may become inadequate because of changesin
conditions; or that the degree of compliance with the policies orprocedures may deteriorata.
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Other Matters
Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on theadequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financialcontrols with
reference to consolidated financial statementsinsofar as it relates to subsidiaries companigsincorporated in India, is based on the

corresponding reports of theauditors of such companigs. Dur opinion is not modified'in respect of this matter.

For Rajeev Prem & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 008305C

Rajeev Kapoor)
Place: Kanpur Lar{ﬂﬂr i

Date: May 30, 2019 M. No. O7TB27
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Consofidated Balance sheat as at March 31, 2019 .
Particutars As at March 31, 2019 Asat March 31, 2018
R in Lacs Rs.in Lacs Az in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

ASSETS
Non-furrent asdets
ta) Property, Plant and Eguipment
b Capital work-m-progress
fc| Goodwill
td] Other Intangible assets
(&) Financial Assets
1) investments
i) Loans
{f] Other non-curment assets

Current Assets
{a] Irventores
|B) Financial Assets

(i} Trade receivables 597567

i} Cashand cash eguivalents 144 B8

(i8] Bank Balances other tham (i} above 209:63

{iv) Dther Finonclal fssets 4,793, 14 1,339.13 766531
[e) Current Tax Assets (Net) 12301 100,54
id] Cther current assets 117374 111599

TOTAL ASSETS 20,856.54 21,877.39
EQLITY AMD LIABILITIES

EQLITY

fa) Equity Share Capital 1,079.73

{b] Other Equity 3 595437

Equity attributable to the owners of the company 7,457.32

Hon Controlling Interest 654.52

TOTAL EQUITY 1,521.84

LIABILITIES
Mon current liabilities
ta) Financial liabifities
(i) Borowings
(B) Deferred tax labilithes {net)
le] Othear non-current labklities

Current liabilitias
{a) Financial lizbitities

(i) Borrowings ¥ T.826.47

{il) Trade payahles 3,959.96

{isi] Cther financial liabilites 11,317,653 940,54 12,727,137
bl Other current liabifities 16273 Q6857
il Provisions 111.56 106,30

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 20,856.54 21,877.32

Significant Accounting Policies |
See accompanying notes tothe consolidated financial statements
A5 per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For Rajeev Prem B Associates
Charterad Accountants.
Firm Registration Mo, 0083050
ntahd. Imean Iftikharul Amin
Director (Finance] & CFO Managing Directar

Rajeev Kapoor
Partner
B Mo, OTTRET

R K. Awvasthi
Place: Kanpur Company Secretary
Date: May 30,2019
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Ce lidated Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

Particulars

Note Mo,

2DIE-19
Rs. In Lacs Rs_in Lacs

2017 - 18

Rs. in Lacs He. in Lacs

INCOME:

R fromm Operations

(a] Saled [/ income lrom operations
[b} Other Operating Revenus

Total Revenue from operatons
Other income

Total Incame

EXPENSE:

Caost of materlals consunmed

Purchase of stock-in-irade

Changes in imventories of finlshed goods,
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Employee Benefits Exponses

Femante costs

Depreciation and Amartization Expenses
Other Expenses

Tatal Expenses

Profit before Exceptional tems and Tax
Exgephional ltoms
Priafit before Tax
Tax expense:
1. Current Tax
2. Deferrad Tax

3. Tax adjustmant relating to_earfler years

Prosfit for the period

Profit/(Loss) rransfer to Minority Interest

Other comprehensive incomea

[i) Iltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measuremants of the detined benefit plans.

[} Irvcame tax related to items that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss

Total comprehensive iIncome for the period

Earnings par equity shara
[Face Malue per Share R 1))
1. Basic
2 Diluted

Significant Accounting Policles

Sanaccompanying notes ta the consolidated financial statements

A5 per aur attached repart of even date

For Rajeay Prem & Associates
Chartered Acoountants
Firm Registration Mo, 0083050

Rajeew Kapoor
Partner
M. Mo OF7RIT

Place: Kanpur
Date: May 30,2019

1501513
T53.05
19,768.18
12387

19,692,05

12 IE9:71
1,620.30

(157.07}
BODG,37
634,09
60311

3 4E260

19,282.11

609,94

B05.54

155.00
63.30

123.75)

Far and on behallod the Board

Mahd, Imran
Director (Finance) & CFO

R, K, Awasthi

Company Secretary

23,796.25

1,2E0.69

220,00
2291

[25.87]

Iftikbarul Amin

Managing Hrector

24,576.04
20034

24,779.28

15,978.57
1,351.80

911.29
376.58
E00.95
57118
395268
24,243.15
536:13

536,13
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity fior the year ended March 31, 2019

A, Equity Share Capital
Particulars 201819 2007 -18
Mool Shards R In Lacs Mo af Shares Ry i Lacs

fssued, Subseribed ity poi-ug Equliy shades

Equlty shares outstanding at the baginning of the year 107,573,360 1.079.73 107,973, 560 1,079.73
Shares sswed duringthe year - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 107 FLIED 1075873 17T, 1,079.73

B. Dher Equity
Particulars Resaryes and Surgdus
Segurities General Retained
Bramium Resgmnve Earnings
Batance &4 at Agril 01, 2047 270,18 4,563.21 71354
Prafi for the year - - - 326,15
Daner Compsahansive noems . 1267
Adpustmaent in respact of Subsidiary ceased 44,11
Adpustment pursaarit to the scheme of amalgamation - - E
|Refer Hote 33)
Shase of profitlass) {after tan) of asssciates - (5.48}

Balance &5.a% March 31, 2018 1.091.3%
Profd for the yaar 416032
her Comprehonsive Income = = = 7.23
Adpustment in respect of Subsidiary ceased

Shaee of profit fafter tax) of assocetes

Balance as at March 31, 2019 1,514,564

Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying netes to the consolidated financial stataments
A per our attached report of even date Far and on behalf of the Board

For Rajeav Prem & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, DDES0DSC

M. Tnran Iftikharul Armin
Director (Finance) & CFO Managing Director
Rajeey Kapoor
Partrer
M. No. 077837

Place: Kanpur R. K. Awasthi
Date: May 30,2019 Company Secretary
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2019

Partitulars

2018-19
Bs. in Lacs

2017 - 1B
Re. inLacs

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit bafore tax
Adjustments for -
Depreciation, Armortisation
Profit/[Loss) on Sale-of Property, Plant & Equipments
Interest incame
Finance Cost
Remeasuremant of net defined berefit plans
Share of profit from firm
Bad Debts provided fwritten off

Dperating profit before working capital changes
Changesin working capital:
Adjustment for {increase)/decrease in operating assets
[Increase)y Decreasa in trade receivables
[Increase]/ Decrease in inventories
[Inerease)/ Decrease in other non current loans
[Increpae)/ Decrease in ather currant financial assets
[Increasa)/ Decrease ln other @zsets

Ad|ustment for increase/|decrease] In operating labilities

Increasa) (Decrease) in trade payables
Increase/ {Decrease) in other financial liabilities
Incresss) {Decrease) in other labilities
Increase) |Decregse) in Provisions

Cash generated fram aperations
Income taxes refunded / (pald], net

Met cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOW FRONM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property Plant & Equiprments
Praceeds from sale of PPE
Ad|ustment on consolidation
Interest receved
Other bank balances {Margin Monay & othars)
Net eash (used in] £ generated from investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds fram long-term loans
Proceeds/(repayment) from/of working capital loans
Finance costs paid

Mt cash used in Bnancing activities

INCREASE / (DECREASE] IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash & Cash Equivalent transferred purswant to Scheme (demerger)

Cash dnd cash equivalents at the end of tha year
[refer Mote Mo, B for break-up)

Significant Accounting Policles

Sae accompanying notes to the consolidated financial stataments
&5 por our attached report, of even date

For Rajeav Prem & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. D0305C

Rajeey Kapoor
Partner
M. No. 07 7az?

Place; Kanpur
Date: May 30,7018

B0S.94

603,11
(10,64}
(1495}
634,09
(10,75}
(2.10)
46,13
1,854,79

2,114,458
{1.118.23}
(81.13}

041,33
(4639}

(22333}
(342,35}
(147 65}
566
2,062.25
(163.75}
2,758.50

11.I:IBE.?£'II
44.09

(it 25}
14,95
(4251}
{1,127.57)

(2418}
{829,73}
(634,09}

{1,488.00)

182.93
144 .88

327,81

Far and on behalf od the Board

Mihd, Imran
Director {Finance) & CFO

R. K. Awasthi

Company Secretary

536,13

57118
{e3.07)
[16.05)
£00.95
(19:38)
[6.23]
3225
1,625.78

(1,896.73)
1,151.17
18:88
[{7a7.88)
[B.48)

324.51
[62.72)
[35.62)

17 86
401.77
(238,33

162.55

{424,05)
219.14
4368
15.05
[22.19)
[177.26)

{44.27)
A33.82
{600.95)
{216.40)

(231.21)
741
131.32)
144 88

Iftikharul Amin
Managing Director
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Note 1:
A. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The consolidated financial staternents comprise financial statements of Super Tannery Limited (the company/parent
company) and itssubsidiaries (collectively, "the Group") for the year ended March 31, 2019. Group is primarily
engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of Leather and Leather Goods.

The Companyis a public limited company having its registered office situated at 187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur —
208010 (UP). The Company's equity shares are listed at the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on May 30,2019,

B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act. In addition, the guidance notes/announcements
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) are also applied except where compliance with
other statutory promulgations require a different treatment.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value amount:

] Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments),
ii)  Defined benefit plans - plan assets

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods or
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue.

Consolidation procedure

(i)  The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries. For this purpose, an entity which is, directly or indirectly, controlled by the Parent Company is
treated as subsidiary. The Parent Company together with its subsidiaries constitute the Group. Control
exists when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, has power over the investee, is exposed to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to use its power to affectits returns.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, obtains control over
the subsidiary andceases when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, loses control of the subsidiary.
Income and expenses of a subsidiaryacquired or disposed off during the year are included in the
consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss from the date theParent Company, directly or indirectly, gains
control until the date when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, ceases tocontrol the subsidiary.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group combines financial statements of the Parent Company
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and its subsidiariesline-by-line by adding together the like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. All
intra-group assets, liabilities income, expenses and except unrealised profits/losses on intra-group transactions
are eliminated on consolidation. The accountingpolicies of subsidiaries have been harmonized, to the extent
possible, to ensure the consistency with the policies adopted by the Parent Company. The consolidated financial
statements have been presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as Parent Company'sstandalone
financial statements.

(iv)

(v)

Non-controlling interest represents that part of the total comprehensive income and net assets of
subsidiaries attributable tointerests which are not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Parent Company.

In case of foreign subsidiaries, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the
year. All assets (except fixed assets and share capital) and liabilities are converted at the rates prevailing at
the end of the year. Exchange differences arising on consolidation is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Lass.Investments in 100% foreign subsidiaries have been eliminated with the corresponding Share
Capital and Share Premium, if any, of the subsidiary company.

In case of associates, where the company directly or indirectly through subsidiaries holds more than 20% of
equity (i.e. where the Group has significant influence), investments are accounted for using equity method
except where the associate operates under severe long-term restrictions that significantly impair its ability
to transfer funds to the parent Company.

The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiary/associates, over the net assets of the
subsidiary/associates is recognized in the consolidated financial statements as goodwill or capital reserve,
as the case may be.

An investment in associate is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group's
share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of associate.

As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for
like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as the
Company's separate financial statements.

Operating Cycle for current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current according to the Company's operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Act. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of
assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as twelve maonths.

Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its functional currency.Figures have been
rounded off to the nearest rupees in lacs.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
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¥

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the period in which the estimate is

revised if the revision affects only that penod; they are recognised in the peried of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

8.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which
represent the carrying value of property, plant and equipment recognised at 1" April 2016 measured as per the
previous GAAF. Such costincludes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing
the assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and
adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as
appropriate, only when itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity
and the cost can be measured reliably.

Assets are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use.

Expenses incurred relating to project, including borrowing cost and net of income eamed during the project
development stage prior to its intended use, are considered as pre - operative expenses and disclosed under
CapitalWork - in - Progress.

Spare paris are capitalized whean they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the Company intends to use these
during more than a period of 12 months.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental vieldsor for capital appreciation or both, and that isnot occupied by the
Company, is classified asinvestment property. Property, plant and eguipment are stated at cost, net of
recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any,
For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represent the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment recognised at 1" April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP. Such cost includes purchase price,
borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended
use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations
attributable to the assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment or any significant part initially recognised of such item of property plant
and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is
derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated
residual value. Depreciation has been provided on such cost of assets less their residual values on straight line
method on the basis of estimated useful life of assetsas prescribed inSchedule |l of the Act. However, in case of
foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS) the depreciation (including on Investment property) or amortisation is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant statute / applicable accounting standard of the country.

Freehold land is not depreciated/amortised.

Assets held under financial leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets or, wherever shorter, the term of relevant lease.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro rata basis excepl that, assels costing uptoRs. 5,000 each are fully
depreciated in the year of purchase.
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The estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at

each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

11

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less
accumulated amortisation/depletion and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing
costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, net
charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the
intangible assets.

Subseguent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost
can be measured reliably.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairmentlosses, ifany.

(Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets being computer software is amortised on straight line method over the period of five years.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangibles assets recognised as on April
1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of transition date.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of
each reporting period and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statemeant of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another assel.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an assel is required, the Company estimates the
asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating
unit's(CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds recoverable amount.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased.

If such indication exists, the Company estimates the assef's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed. The reversal is limited so thatthe carrying amount of the asset does
notexceed its recoverable amount, nor exceedthe carrying amount that would have beendetermined, net of
depreciation, had noimpairment loss been recognised for theassetin prior years.

Leases

Leases are recognised as a finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Company as a Lessee

Assets used under finance leases are recognised as property, plant and equipment in the Balance Sheet for an
amount that corresponds to the lower of fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments determined
atthe inception of the lease and a liability is recognised for an equivalent amount.

The minimum lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in
the Statement of Profitand Loss.
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Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease unless the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with
axpected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases, suchincreases are
recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue.

Company as a Lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. Where the Company is a lessor under an operating lease, the asset is
capitalised within property, plant and equipment and depreciated over its useful economic life. Payments
received under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over
thetermofthe lease.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. The basis of determining the cost for
various categories ofinventory are as follows:

(a) Raw materials, Chemicals, Components, stores & spares and Stock in Trade — Cost includes cost of
purchase (Net of recoverable taxes) and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Costis determined on FIFO basis,

b} Stockinprocess and finished goods- Direct cost plus appropriate share of overheads.
c) Saleable Scrap/Waste/By products - Atestimated realisable value.

d) Interunit gods transfer—transfer price

e} Import Entitlement/ Licences — At estimated realisable/Utilisation value

(
(
(
(

MNet realisable value is the estimated sellingprice in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion andthe estimated costs necessary to make thesale,

Foreign Currencies
a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee
(INR/Rupees), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

b) Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded on initial recognition at the exchange rate prevailing on the date
ofthe transaction.

Any gains or losses arising due to differences in exchange rates at the time of translation or settlement are
accountedfor in the Statement of Profit & Loss eitherunder the head foreign exchange fluctuationor interest cost,
as the case may be, exceptthose relating to long-term foreign currencymonetary items.

(i) Exchange differences pertaining to longterm foreign currency loans obtained on or before March 31, 2017:

{a) relatingto acquisition of depreciable assets - areadjusted to the carrying cost of the assetsand depreciated
overthe balance useful lifeof the assets.

(b} Others - carried forward and amortise over the remaining period of such asset or liability since the company
had opted to carry forward the same in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2011.

(i) Exchange differences pertaining to longterm foreign currency loans obtained on or after April 1, 2017 is
charged off or credited to profit & loss account.

i} Investmentinoverseas Wholly Owned Subsidiaries are carried in Balance Sheet at the rates prevailing on the
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16.

17

Fair Value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market which can be accessed by the
Company for the asset orliability,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic bestinterest.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input thal is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly orindirectly observable
Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation

(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place {regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset,

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial assets.
Based on the business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of

the financial asset, the Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit and loss.

Debtinstruments at amortised cost
Debt instruments such as trade and other receivables, security deposits and loans given are measured at the
amortised costif both the following conditions are met:
= The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and
= Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance

m




SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debt instruments at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

A'debtinstrument' is classified as atthe FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FWVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Debt instruments at Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments excluding investments in subsidiary and associate
companies. Any deblt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost
oras FVTOCI, is classified as at F\VTPL.

After initial measurement, any fair value changes including any interest income, foreign exchange gain
and losses, impairment losses and other net gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the company decides to
classify the same either as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made oninitial recognition and is irrevocable.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Profit or loss.

De-recognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets)is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's Balance Sheet) when
The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through'
arrangement; and either:
The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
On de-recognition, any gains or losses on all debt instruments (other than debt instruments measured at
FWOCI) and equity instruments {measured at FVTPL) are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
(Gains and losses in respect of debt instruments measured at FWVOCI and that are accumulated in OC| are

reclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition. Gains or losses on equity instruments measured at FVOCI
that are recognised and accumulated in OCl are not reclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition.

18. Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL ) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on
the following financial assets and creditrisk exposure:
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a)

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt

securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

In case of other assets (listed as a) above), the company determines if there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not
increased significantly, an amount equal to 12-month ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance.
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and
recognized as loss allowance.

189. Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
netofdirectly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial iabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL,
fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk is recognized in OCl. These gains/ losses are not
subseqguently transferred to profit or loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities classified and measured at amortised cost such as loans and borrowings are initially
recognized at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage the commaodity price risk and exposure on
account of fluctuation in interest rate and foreign exchange rates. Such derivative financial instruments are
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initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
measured at fair value with changes being recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken through profit and loss.

21. Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any differences between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in Profit or loss over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the drawdown occurs.

The borrowings are removed from tha Balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid including any noncash asset transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability of at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a
long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes
payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed,
after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statement for issue, not to demand payment as
a consequence of the breach.

. Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing
costs,

Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of
activities relating to construction/development of the gualifying asset upto the date of capitalisation of such asset
is added to the costof the assets,

Interest income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowing pending expenditure on qualifying asset
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the standalone balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultanecusly. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company, orthe counter party.

. Claims

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debis are disclosed after a careful evaluation of the facts and
legal aspects of the matter involved.

. Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Capital Commitments

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
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a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that

reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by future events not whaolly
within the control of the Company, or present obligations where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. Information on
contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed when the inflow of economic benefits is probable. However,
when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, butitis
recognised as an asset.

26. Government Grant

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attached conditions will be complied with.

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses incurred in previous
period(s). Such a grantis recognised in profit or loss of the period in which it becomes receivable:

Government grants shall be recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants refated to assets are presented in the balance sheet as deferred income and is recognised
in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related assets or other relevant basis.

Government grants by way of financial assistance on the basis of certain qualifying criteria are recognised as
they become receivable.

In the unlikely event that a grant previously recognised is ultimately not received, it is treated as a change in
estimate and the amount cumulatively recognised is expensed in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

. Revenue Recognition
Sale of Goods and services

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control ofpromised goods to customers in an amount thatreflects the
consideration which the Companyexpects to receive in exchange for those goods.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised atthe point in time when (a) control is transferred to thecustomer,
which is mainly upon delivery in case of domestic sales and on issuance of Shipping Bill in case of export sales.

Revenue is measured al the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods supplied and
services rendered, net of returns, rebates and discounts to customers,

Revenue from the sale of goods includes excise and other duties which the Company pays as a principal but
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, such as Goods & Services Tax.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 Revenue fromcontracts with customers, with effect from April 1,2018. Ind
AS 115 establishes principles for reportinginformation about the nature, amount, timing anduncertainty of
revenues and cash flows arising fromthe contracts with its customers and replaces Ind AS18 Revenue and Ind
AS 11 Construction Contracts.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using thecumulative effect method whereby the effect ofapplying this
standard is recognised at the date ofinitial application (i.e. April 1, 2018). Accordingly, thecomparative
information in the statement of profitand loss is nol restated. There is no impact of the adoptionof the standard
on the financial statements of theCompany.

Interestincome
Interestincome is accrued on using on a time basis by the effective interest rate with reference to the principal
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outstanding.

30.

Dividend Income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been
established.

Export incentives
Export Incentives are recognised when certainty of receipt is established.
Insurance Claim

Insurance claims are accounted foron the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that
the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and itis reasonable to expect ultimate collection.

Otherincome
Other income is accounted for on accrual basis except where the receipt of income is uncertain ans in such
cases it is accounted for on receipt basis,

. Employee benefits

The Company makes contributions to both defined benefit and defined contribution schemes which are mainly
administered through/by duly constituted and approved Trusts and the Government.

Defined Contribution Scheme

In case of provident fund administered throughRegional Provident Fund Commissioner.the Company has no
obligation, other thanthe contribution payable to the providentfund,

In case of members of constituted and approved trusts, the Company recognises contribution payable to such
trusts as an expense including any shortfall in interest between the amount of interest realised by the investment
and the interest payable to members at the rate declared by the Government of India.

The Company's contributionspaid / payable during the year to providentfund administered through Approved
Trust, Regional ProvidentFund Commissioner, Superannuation Fundand Employees' State Insurance
Corporationare recognised in the Statement of Profit andLoss as an expense when employees haverendered
services entitling them to contributions.

Defined Benefit Scheme

Gratuity: Cost of providing the Benefil is determined on an actuarial basis at the endof the year and charged to
Statement of Profitand Loss. The cost of providing these benefitsis determined by independent actuary using the
projected unit creditmethod.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gainsand losses and the effect of the asset ceiling,(excluding
amounts included in net interest onthe net defined benefit liability and return on planassets), are recognised
immediately in the balancesheet with a corresponding debit or credit toretained earnings through other
comprehensiveincome in the period in which they occur. It isincluded in retained eamings in the statement
ofchanges in equity and in the balance sheet.

Leave encashment: Accrued Leaves are encashed annually at the end of the calendar year and not accurnulated.
Provision for the same is done on the basis of leaves accrued as at the end of the reporting period.

. Research and Development Expenditure

Expenditure on research of revenue nature is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss and that of capital nature is
capitalized as fixed assets.

Taxes on Income

Currenttax is the amount of tax payable determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and provisions of
the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance
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sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using
the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses
and allowances to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be utilised. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax rates. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off
sat, and presented as net.

Current and deferred taxes relating to items directly recognised in reserves are recognised in reserves and not
in the Statement of Profitand Loss,

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the
form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an assetif there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an deferred tax asset in the Balance
Sheetwhenitis probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

. Dividend Distribution

Dividends paid (including income tax thereon) is recognised in the period in which the interim dividends are
approved by the Board of Directors, or in respect of the final dividend when approved by shareholders.

. Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows statement is prepared as per the Indirect Method specified in Ind AS 7 on Cash Flows. Cash and
cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in statement of cash flows exclude item which are not
available for general use on the date of balance sheet,

. Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of
extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of
extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of
any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares
which could have beenissued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the
net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be
converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e.
average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares
are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

. Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in consistent manner with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial staterents for the year ended March 31, 2012

2 |a) Property, plant and equipment {Rs. In lacs)

tand | la ey | PumR | Con] compiter] . T ehicle | Total

Leasehiol | Freehold | bulding | Machinery |0 oy

Gross carmying value
As at March 31, 2018 = 4,160.39 45480 | 648121
Additions - 50754 ; 43.44 913.32
Adjustant/{Deletions) . (8.20 ; [58.02} 43,84
As at March 31, 2019 - 4,749.73 A 440,22 743837
Accumulated Depreciation/Amartisation
As at March 31, 2018 767,58 14108 1,137.77
Dapreciation for the year ERERIBE : 7331 80276
Adjustent/(Deletions) - . 17.786) | {8208} [79.45)
As at March 31, 2019 . - 1,156.83 13222 1,561.08
Net Carrying amount
As at March 31, 2018 - 3,352.81 313.72 5.343.44
As at March 31, 2019 . 3,582.90 308.01 511

b} Goodwill - Goodwill on Consalidation
[Rs. In lacs)

Particulars
Carrying value
As at March 31, 2013
Addition during the year
As at March 31, 2019

(¢} Other Intangible assets

§ PI_I‘HEM

Gross carrying value

As at March 31, 2018
Additions
Adjustment/[Debetions)
Deletions

As at March 31, 2019
Accumulated Depreciation
As at March 31, 2018
Depreciation for the year
Ad{ustment/[Detetions)
As at March 31, 2019
MNet Carrying amount

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2019

(I} Assets glven s security for borrowlings
Al the items of Property, Plant and Equipmant of the Company have been given to kenders as secerity for varigus borrowing facilities,

{ii] The management has carried out #n exercise of idantifying the asset that may have been impaired, during the vear, in respect of each cash generating unit. On the basis of
review carried out by the managament, there was no impairment Joss on fived assets during the year.
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Motes forming part of the Consofidated Fingncial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

3 Financial Assets: Investments - Non Current
Particulars As-at March 31, 2013 Az at March 31, 200138
As, in Lacs Rz in Lacs

Equity Shares Unguoted

INVESTRAENTS IN ASSOCIATES
[l SECURE SAFETY LIMITED
6,99, 300 Equity Shares of R 10/-
each fully paid
Share of post acquisition profit/[loss) (net)

Total - A

OTHERS

[l  SUPERHOUSE OVERSEAS LIMITED
5,000 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/~ each fully paid

lii] AL-BARR FINANCE HOUSE LIMITED
20,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid

(I} SMVIT PROMEXT MACHINES PRIVATE LIMITED
E,500 Equity Shares of Ré, 10/~ each fully paid

[ivl INDUSTARIAL INFRASTRUCTUIRE SERVICES {INDIA| LIMITED
25, 200 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/~ each fully paid

[v] KANPUR UMNAO LEATHER CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT CO. LT
75,000 Equity Shares of Ra, 10/- each Tully paid

[vi] LEATHER CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully pald

[vii} JAIMALI TANMERY EFFLUENT TREATMENT ASSOCIATION
6,200 {NIl) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pakd

Total - B
Equity Shares Quoted

(i} Superhouse Limited
5,200 Equity Shares of Rs: 10/~ each fully paid

Tatal - C
Imvestment in Partnership Firm
Bovini Frills LLP
15% In the capital of the LLP

Share of Reserves and Surplus-of the LLP

Total- O

Total (A+B+C+01)

Aggregate Book Value of Quoted Investments
Market Yabee of Quaoted Investments

FAggregate Book Value of Unguoted Investrents

Dbl al and in My, In Lacs

Capital as on Capital as on

Name of Partners 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
1 Mr. shahbhaz Khan 375 75
2 Super Tannery Limited 0,75 0,75
3. M. Iftikarul Amin 0.75 075
4. Mr.igbal Ahsan 0.75 075
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

4 Financial Assets: Loans - Non Current

Particulars

Asat-hMarch 31,2019
R, in Lacs R i Lacs

A5 at March 31, 2018
Ra. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

Unsecured Considered Good
Loans & hdvances

Total

5 Other Non Current Assets

107,90

107.90

26,77

26,77

Particulars

Az at March 31, 20149
Rs.in Lacs A3, in Lt

As at March 31, 2018
R, in Lacs R in Lacs

Unsecured Considered Good
Praliminary Expenses
Sacurity Boposits

Tatal

6 Inventaries (At cost or net realsable value whichever s lower)

Particilars

As at March 31, 2015
Rs:in Lacs As. in Lacs

As at March 31, 2003
R, in Lacs Rs. i Laics

Raw haterials

Work in Frograss

Finished Goods

{Including stock a1l port MIL (March 2018 MIL|
Waste & Scrap

Chemical, Components, Stores and spares

Tatal

2,557.80
1,963,95
2,27399

L179/15
32556

4,790.45

[al Al the Inventosies hive been hypothecated as security for vanous working Sacilities from banks

[b) Dwring the year nothing was recognised as expenze towards writa-down of immentory,

7 Financial Assets - Current; Trade Receivable

1,675.56
2672.18
148447

243.00
1,099.92

718133

Particulars

Az at March 31, 2019
Rs.in Lacs A= In Lacs

Az at March 21, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Hs. in Lacs

Secured Considerad Good

Unsecured Considered Good

Unsecused which have significant increase in credit risk
Unsecured credit impaired

Less: Impairment loss allowance {ECL}

Taotal

381505

17.21
383225
17.21

3,815.05

[2] Al the Trade Receivables hava been hypothecsted as security for variows working facilities from banks.

5475.67

B.77

B Financial Assets - Current: Cash and Cash Equival

Particulars

Asat March 31, 201%
Rs.in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

&5 at March 31, 2018
Rs.in Lacs Rl inLacs

Balances with banks

On current accounts

on EEFC accounts

on fiked deposit
Chiegques and Draftt on Hand/Remittance in Transit
Cash on hand

Total
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

8 Financial Assets - Current: Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at March 31,2019
Rs. in Lacs Rs. In Lacs

Az ar March 31, 2018,
Rs. in Lacs Ry, in Lacs

Margin money deposits
[restricted, hald as llen aganst bank guarantees/LCs)
Earmarked balances with banks - unclaimed Dividend

Tatal

10 Other Current Financial ssets

2732

2323

25254

Particulars

Az at March 31, 2019
Rs.in Lacs Hs. In Lacs

A5 at March 31, 2018
Rs.in Lacs R in Cacs

Unsecured consderad good

Export Incentive Recenable

Other Claims Receivable

Balance with Govt/Revenue authority

Total

11 Other Current Assets

334.01
78.03
527.09

1,339.13

Particulars.

Az at March 31, 2019
Rs.in Lacs A=, in Lacs

As.at March 31; 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs, in Lacs

Unsecured considered good

Advances to Trade Creditoss

Advance recoverable in cash or Kind or for vilue to be received
Prepald expenses

Total

12 Equity Share Capital

SER.E2
170,83
1614

1,173.79

330,27
7513
10.59

1,115.99

Particulars

AsatMarch 31, 2019
Mo, of
Shares As, In Lacs

A5 an March 31, 2008
Ha, of
Shares R, im Lacs

Authorised
Equity Shares of Re1/- each

Issued
Equity Shares of Re 1/- each

Subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity Shares of Re 1/- each

Total

[#] Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and share capital

110,000,000 1,100:.00

11,000,000 1,100.00

107,873 360 1.079.73

107,973,360 107973

107,973 360 1070973

1079,73

107,973,360 1,079.74

1,073.73

Particulars

Az at March 31, 2019
No. of
Shares Re. I Lacs

Az at March 31, 2013
No. of
Shares R, in Lacs

Sulsctibed and fully pald-up équity shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Shares issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

107,573,360 1,079.73

107,973,360 1079.73

107,573,360 1079373

107,973,360 1,079.73
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED
Motes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(B} Terms and rights attached to equity shares
ThecompanyhasonlyoneclassofequityshareshavingaparvalueofRs.1pershare. Eachholderofequitysharesisentitiedtoone
wotepershare, ThecompanydeclaresandpaysdividendsinindianRupess Thedividend p_rng:q?edb?theﬂg_a'rduﬂ)irectu'rsh
subject ta the approval of the shareholders in the énsuing Annual General Meeting.

Inthesventofiiquidationofthecompany;theholdersofequityshareswillbeentitledtoreceiveremainingassetsofthecompany,
afterdistributionofall preferentialamounts.Thedistributionwillbeinproportiontothenumbercfequitysharesheldbythe
shareholders.

[C) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 A5 at Warch 31, 2018
Mo of Mo, of
Shares o Shares %
M. Vegarul Amin 17,833.000  16.56% 17,883,900 16.56%
Mar, lgbal Ahsan 9,142,502  B4TH 5,142,502 BATH
M. Iftikharsl Amin 9,080,432 H41% 9,080,432 B.81%

2018-19 2017-18
{ha. of Sharaz) {Mo. of Shires)
(D} Equity Shares allotted as fully paid pursuant ta contract]s) without payment

L IL
belng recelved in cash during the immediately preceding five years A N

(E} Equity Shares allotted as fully paid up Bonus Shares durlng the immediately
preceding flve years
() Equity shares buy-back in immediately preceding five years NIL HIL

NIE HiL

(6} Shares hald by holdIng/ultimate halding company and/or their

subsidiaries/ associates NIk L

[H} During the year anded March 31, 2018, the company has not paid any dividend.
13 Other equity

Particulars Asat March 31, 20019 Asat March 31; 2018
Bs. Inbags,  As Inkacs. Rs. i Lacs  Rs, in Lacs

‘Capital Reserve 2959 29.59
Securities Premlum 270,18 270,18
General Aeserve 4.563.21 456331
Retained Earnings 1,514.61 1,691,359
Total " 6,377.59 T Eg8437
{A] Capital Reserve
It represent the gain of capital nature which mainly include the excess of value of net assetz acquired over consideration
paid by the-company for business combination ineardier years.
(B} Securitiés Premium
Securities premium-is used to record the premium:onissue of shares: This reserve is utilized in-accordance with the provisions of the Act.
[C} General Resarve
The Company has transferred a portion of the net profit of the: Company before declaring dividend to general reserve pursuant to the earlier
provislons of Companies Act, 1956, Mandatory transfer to general reserve is not reguired under the Companies Act, 2013,

(0} Retained Eamings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date; less any transfers to general reserve; dividends pald or other
distributions aut of reserves to sharehalders.
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14 Financial Liabilities - Non-current: Borrowings

Parthculers Agat March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs_im Lacs Rs.in Lacs Rs. in' Lacs

Secured
Term loans from banks - INR -
Wehicle Term loans from banks - INR 4563

Tatal 45,68

Amount of default ason the Balance Sheet date:

{al Repayment of loan NIL NIL

{b} Intereston Loan NIL ML

Repayment terms:

[a} The classification of loans between current liabilities and non -curent liabilities continues based on repayment. schedule under respective
agreements as no loans haye Been recalled due to non compliance of condition: under any of the loan agreements,

{b) Scheduled repayments: Contractual repayments in case of leans from banks (incleding Curreat maturities disclosed under other Current financial
liahifities:

Particulars A5 at March 31, 2019 Asat March 31, 2018
Rs. in-lacs Hs. in Lacs

Upto three years LE43 711.3%
Between three to five years 1553 26,75
DOwer five years -

le}  Secured by hypothecation of vehicle financed and are repayabie In 36-to 60 Equated Moathly Instalments [EMIs]

15 Deferred tax Nabilities (Net)
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 A5 at March 31, 2018
Rs.in Lacs Rs.in Lacs Rs. i Lacs R iniLacs

Tax effect of items constituting deferred bax Rabifity
On differance between boak balance and tax balance of fixed assets ERE.83
Total Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability ERB.A3
Tax-effect of ttems constituting deferred tax ossefs
Expenses allowable on-payment basis and other items 142,43
Total Tax effect of items constituting deferred 1ax assets 142.48
Met Deferred Tax Liability 726,35

16 Other Non-current Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 A5 at March 31, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs.in Lacs As.in Lacs

Deferrad Revenue
Govt Grant under IDLS 25590 295.16
EPCG Obligations 110.45 6.60

Testal 366,35 302 76
oo —————————_———lesass

Government Grant under |DLS, the deferred grant income is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on 2 systematic basis over the useful life of
asset an which such grant is recetved subject to compliance of other terms & conditions of the scherne,

Under EPCG scheme, the Company s committed to export prescribed tirmes of the duty saved on import of capital goods over a-specified period of
time apart from maintaining average export growth. In case such commitments are not met, the Company would be required to pay the duty saved
akong with interest to the regulatory authorities, The deferred grant income i recognized In Statement of Profit and Loss on & systematic basis over
the periods in which the related performance obligations are fulfilled.
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Netes forming part of the Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

17 Financial Liakilities - Current; Borrowings

Particulars Asat March 31, 2019 Asat March 31, 2018
Rs.in Lacs Rz in Lacs Rs.in Lacs Rz inLacs

Sacured

Borrowings from banks

(a) Cash Credit

{b) Packing Credit

{c) Advance against bills sent on collection

Buyers Credit {Foreign Currency Loan) from banks
{a) for Flxed Azsats

Total 6,996,54
Amount of default as on the Balance Sheet date;
() Repayment of loan MIL
[b} Interest on Loan NIL

(&) Security
Woarking Capital Loans are primarily secured by hypothocation of present and future Current Assets-and Actionable Claims (vie, Imentories, trade
recaivable / book debts, outstanding manies, receivable clzims, bills and materials in transit),
These are further collateratly secured by extension of charge over moveable and Immoveable properties of the company.
Further secured by personal guarantee of promoter director(s) of the company.

[B) Buwirs Credit i secured by Bank Guarantee issued within the limit sanctioned 1o the company

18 Financial Liabilities - Currant: Trade Payable

Particulars As gt March 31, 20159 Az at March 31, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs:in tacs Rs.inLacs

Dues tir micre and small enterprises - -
Due o partees other than microand small enterpelses 3,736.63 3,959.08

Taotal 3, 73663 3,959.96

Note; The company bas requested confirmation from Suppliers regarding their reglstration (filling of Memorandum) under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Divelopment Act, 2006 (the MEMED Act). According to the information svaitable with thé company, the following disclosures has been made in
respect of dues (o Micro-and Small Enterprises:

Pasticulars Asat March, 2019 A5 at March, 2018
A3 in Lagcs R, in Lacs

Principal amount and interest due thereon rmmaining unpaid to any
supplier at the end of the year

Primcipal Amount

Interest due on above

Amount of interest paid by the company in terms of section 16 of the
MESMED Act, along with the amount of the payment made to the
supplier bayond the appointed day during the year

Amount of Interest due and payable for the penod of delay in making
payment (which have bean pald but beyond the appointed day during
thie year| but without adding the interest specifled under the MEMED
At

the amount of interest accrued and remaining ungaid at the end of the
yaar

the amaount of further interest remaining due and payabie avenin the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues-above are
actually paid to the small enterprize, for the purpose of disallowanca
of a deductible expenditure snder saction 23 of the MSMED Act
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19 Financial Liabilities - Current: Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars

Asat March 31, 2019
Rs.in Lacs As. in Lacs

s at March 31, 2013

Rs..in lacs Rs., in Lacs

(&l Current maturities of long term borrowings
(b} Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
[c) Bookoverdraft from banks
[d}  Unciaimed Dividend®
[e} Diher Liabilities

Tatal

.28
2347
15,70
522,01

5E4.4G

3g.41
1.1
11.7%
18.52
87107
240,84

* Represents dividend amounts either not claimed o kept in abeyantce In dccordance with Section 126 of the Companies Act, 2013

20 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars

Aeat March 31,2015
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs

As at March 31, 2018

Rs. In Lacs Rs. in Lacs

{al Advance from customers

(b} Advance against sale of fixed assets
[c] MTM valuation on forward cover
[d} Rentin Advance

Total

21 Current Liabilities: Provisions

32234
39310
4154
4,75

76373

85211
293.10
23.66

Pastrculars

Asat March 31, 201%
Rs. In Lacs Az, In Lacs

Az at March 31, 2013

Rs. i Lacs R inLacs

Prowvislen for Gratuity

Total

22 Rewenue from operations

111.96

11196

10630

106.30

Particulars

2018 -19
Rs.in Lacs Rz in Lacs

2017-18

Rs.inLacs Rs.in Lacs

[A] Sales  income from operations
Sales (Export & Overseas)
Exchange Fluctuation on Sales (Export)
Sales (indigenous)
frefar Mote [b) belew for break-up}
[B] Other operating revenue
Expart Incentives {refer Note [c) below for break-up)

Revenue from operations [gross)

1334707
152.34

5515.62

19,015.13

753.05

19,768,138
—_—

18,752.77

403,06

414042

23,296.35

1,240.69

24,576.94

{2l Rewvenwe from operations for periods upto 30th June; 2017 includes excise dety, which is discontinued with effect from lst July, 2017 upon
implementation of Goods and Service Tax (G5T) in India. In accordance with Ind A% GST is not included in revenue from operations. In view of the
aforeszid restriscturing of indirect taxes, revenue from operations for the year ended March 31, 2018 |being inclusive of excise duty for the perigd from
Aprit 17 to June 17] Is not comparable with the current year. However, It has no effect on prafits for the year. Amount of such excise duty for the current

yviear is B, MIL [previous year Rs. 4,24 Lacs],
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Parthculars

2018-19
Rs. in Lacs Re, in Lacs

2017 - 18
Rs.in Lacs Rs. im Lacs

(b} Breakup of Sales
Finished Leather
Leather Shoe and components
Others
Tatal

[cj Detzils of othar operating revenue
Export Incentives
Duty Draw Back / ROSL
licences/Entitlamants
Tatal

23 Other Income

5,999.37
7.637.57
1,378.14

19,035,13

13,523.45
877855
994,25
23,296.25

Particulars

A018-10
Rs. In Lacs 5. In Lacs

207-18
Rs. In Lacs He, in Lacs

ImtErest incarne

- from Fxed Deposit with Banks
Cormmission Received

Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments
Deferred revenuse on EPCG & 1DLS Subsidy
Liabilities) provesions no longer required
Exchange Fluchoation
Mizcellaneous Income
Shace of profit from the firm
Accration i Investment

Tatal

24 Cost of material consumed

16.05
1.45
116,80
3338
4,78
2365
623

202.34

Pasticilars

2018-19
Rs:in Lacs R, oy Lacs

17 - 18
R, Lacs s b Lacs

Raw Materizl consumed

(al Raw Hide for sole

(b} Raw Hide for chrome

[c) Wet Blue Leather Chrome

[d} Upger for safety shoes

[ef Fenish beather for shoe upper and shoes
(Fy Others

Raw Matorizl consumed

Chemicals consumed

Stores & Spares consumed

Tatal

25 Purchase of stock in trade

41923
3,187.58
6047
1,415.58
1,740.61

1,351.3%

8.174.80
2.509.20
1.205.71

12.285.71

48070
6,719.29

14893
1,567.76
1,402 62

1,033.23

11,362.53
3,274.34
134170

15,978.57

Particulars

21018- 19
Rs_in Lacs Rs.in Lacs

200718
Rs. in Lacs Rs.inLacs

[a] Finished Leathar (including Split)
[b) Shoe Lpper
Tatal

909500
B25.30

1,620.30
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26 Increase/decrease in Inventories
Particulars 201818 2017 -18
RAs.in Lacs Rz, In Lacs Rs. In Lacs Rs. in Lacs

Inventories at the commencement of the year
Finished Goods 1,480:98 2,361,833
Work in process 267218 2,774.71
Serap 245.09 18049
TOTAL'A' 440225 5,317.03

Invertaories st the end of the year
Finished Goods 2,269 .81 1,484.47
Wark In process 196395 2672.18
Scrap 325.56 245,08
TOTAL'B 4,558.32

Decreasef{increase) in Stocks {A-B) [157.07)

27 Employee benefit expense
Particulars I018-19 2017 -18
Rs.in Lacs Re. in Lacs Rs.inkacs Bs.inLacs

Salary, Wages and Bonas GEE.5S
Cantribution to Provident and other funds B6.25
LContribution to Gratwity Fund 3147
Waorkman and Staff Welfare expenses 23.06

Total 806,37
28 Finance cost

Particulars 2018 -19 2M7-18
Rs. In Lacs R In Lacs Ra. In Lacs Rs. in Lacs

Interest on
- Term Loan
- Others

Bank Charges
Foreign Bank Charges
Tatal
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29 Dther expenses
Particulars 2016-19 2017 -18
Rs.in Lacs As. in Lacs Rs, in Lacs Rs.inLacs

Manufacturing Expenses:
Job Work Charges 1,124.22
Power and Fusl 530,83
Import Expenses . 4,85
Excise Duty on sales 4.24
Effluent Treatment Expanses 1E52
Repairs and Maintenance
- Bullding 16.26
= Machinary Bd4.32
1,763.35
Selling &nd Distribution Expenses
Freight, Handling and Other Sakes and Distribution Expenses
Comimission on Sake
Advertisement and Publicity
Business Promaotion
Expected Credit Loss
Bad Debzs - Provisionfwrite off
1,234.18
Establishment Expenses
Rt
Rates and Taxes
Insurance
E.C.G.C Premium
Communication cost
Travelling 2nd Conveyance
Repairs and Maintenance - Others
Renewzl of Trade License
Priniting and Stationery
Legal and Professional Charges
Apditor's Remuneration {refer Mote |af below]
Misceflaneous Expenses
Fesearch & Development Expenses
Exchange Difference
Charity and Donation
[rvestment written off
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Eqeipments
Corporate Socrat Responsiility Expenses
51813 955.15

Total 3 4E2.60 3,952 .68

{a) Auditor's remuneration comprises:
Az auditar
For other services
Total
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Particul

s 2018+ 19 2017 -18
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs As. in Lacs

30 Earning per share (EPS)

(&) Profitfor the year (Rs. In Lacs) 35539 323.09
{b} Weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of

of calcudation of Basic and Diluted ERS 107,973,350 107,573,360

ik Mominal value of equity shares {Rupees) .00 100
|d} EPS- Baslc and diluted {Rupees pershars| 0.37 0.30

31 Capital and other commitments

| Estimated vahee of contracts remaining to be executad on capital
account [net of advances}
|. Other Commitments

32 Contingent liabilties

]

Contingent Liabilitiesin respect of:
[a] Lettar of Credit opened and outstanding 439,11

|b} The detail of disputed duees {ret of amounts paid) as per the clause 3 {viiHb) of Section 143 (11) of the Companies Act, 2013
{Rs. in Lacs)

Mature af Dues & Forum where dispute is pending
Period to March 31,
which refates 2018 farch 31, 2018

Inceme Tax- ufs 143{3) of the Incoms Tax Act; 1961
ITAT Lucknow bench AN, 2007-08 NIL NIL
CIT Appaals, Kanpur AN 2010-11 NIL ML
CIT Appaals, Kanpur AN 2012-13 MIL ML
CIT Appeals, Kangur ALY, J013-14 NIL ML

High court Allahabad bench AN 2007-08 30,54

Tribunal Lucknow bench A 2014-15 1250

this Finance Act, 1994 - Servics Tax
Asst comimissioner service tax EKanpur A, AT14-15

The Commissioner [Appeaks) Central Excide & F.¥. 2015-16
Servioe Tay, Lucknow to 201617

33 Dischosure pursuant to Ind A5 18 "Employee Benefits”™:

lal

Defined Contribution Plan

The employees of the Company are members of 3 state-managed retirement benefit plans namely Provident fund and Pansion and Employes State
Insurance [ESH operated by the Government of India, The Company is required to contribute a specilied percentage of payroll casts 1o the retirement
benefit and ES| schemes

The only ohligation of the company with respect o such retirement and other banefit plan is to make the specified contributions.

The Company has recognized the following amounts in the Income Statement during the year under "Contribution to staff provident and other funds’

|refer note 27)
R im Lats

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Emgloyear's contribution to PF and Fif 43,98 5433
Emplayer’s contribution to ESIC 33327 2153

Taotal 66.25 76.16

Defined Benefit Plan

The empioyeas Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is a defined benefit plan, Is manaped by the trust maintained with LIC. The present value of obligation is
determined based on actuarial valuation using Projectad Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rite to additional unit
of employee benefit entitiement and measures each unit seporately to build up the final obligation,
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Particulars Gratuity [Fumded) Gratuity {Funded)
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

Mowements in present value of defined benefit obligation

Dbligations as at beginning of the year

Current service cost

Iterest cost

Current service contribation- employes

Past Service Cost

Plan amendrment -
Remeasuremant {or Actuarial (gan}/Loss} arising from -

- charge in financial assurmption 3,65
- eNEariance varance (16.42}
- others -
Benafits paid (1901}
Prasent value of defined benafit obligation as at end of the year 136,02

Mavements In the fair value of plan assets

Falr value of plan assets at beginning of the year 114,25

Imemstrment Income B0 B3
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised In net Interest expense [1.93) [1.22)
Actual contributions by the employer 15.00 23.00
Employee contribution .
Benefits paid {19.01} 130.98)
Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year 117.05 114.25

Amount recognized inthe balance sheat

Present value of defined benefit obfigation as at end of the vear 229,02 22053
Falr value of plan assets as at end of the year 11705 114.25
Funded status {Surplus/{deficit]] (11187} [106.28)
Efect of batance sheet asset limit - :
Unrecognised past service cpst - -
Met asset/|(liability) recognised in balance sheet (111.97) |106.28)

Netasset/[llability) recogmsed In balance sheet at beginning of the year (106,28} (10%.30]
Expense recognised in Statament of Profit and Loss 3147 39.36
Expense récognised in Other Compréhensive Income 10,73} {1928}
Actual contributions by the employer 1500 23.00
Net acquisition/ business combination - -

Met asset![liabillty) recognised In balanee sheet at end of the year {111.96) {106.28)

Amounts recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Current service cost 2329 2779
Interest cost 8.18 20
Lossfigain} on settiement

Past Service Cost 1.56
Total 39.36

Amounts recogrlsed in other comprehensive income

Actuarial [gain] / loss due to

- change in financial assumption (7.22)
- Eyperience variance [13.38)
- others E -
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recogrised In net Interest expense : 112
Rerneasurement (or-actuarial [gain}foss) arising due to asset ceiling -
Total {19.38)
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[F] Category of plan assets
Funds managed by Insurer

|G} Sensitivity analysis
DBC b base assumptions
A Discount Rate
1. Effect due to 1.00% increase in discount rate
2. Effect due to 1,00% decrease in discount rate
B. Salary Escalation Rate
1. Effect due to 1.00% increase in salary escalation rate
A, Effect due to 1.00% decrease in salany escalation rate
C. Withdrawal Rate:
1 Effect due to 50% Incredse in withdrawal rate
2. Effect due to 50% decrease in withdrawal rate
D, Maortality Rate
1, Effect due té 10% increasa in mortality rate
2. Effact due to 0% decrease in mortality rate

Risk Exposure - Asset Volatility

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create 3
deficlt, Most of the plan asset investments is in fixed income securities with high gradesand In government securlties,

Thesz are subject to interest rate risk and the fund manages interest rate risk derivatives to minimize risk to an acceptable fevel. A portion of the
funds ara invastad in equity securities and in alternative imvestmients % which have low correlation with eguity securities.

The equity securities are expected to earn a return in excess of the discount rate and contribute to the plan deficit,

Actuarial assumptons
Actuarial valuation as at the year-end was done in respect of the aforesaid defined benefit plans based on the following assumptions:

I} General assumptions
« Discount rate (per annim) 7.50%
Withdrawal rate 2.00%
- Rate of increase in compensation B 50

it} Mortality rates considared are as per the published rates inthe India Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Witimate.

lii} Leave encashment: Leave balance a5 at the end of the calendar year-|s encashed and balance leaves sarned thereafter 1o the sxtent not availed by
the employees are provided In the accounts,

v} The discount rate should be based upon the market yields avallable on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of
the Liabilities,

¥} The expected rate of return on plan assets B based an mirket expectation, at the beginning of the year, for réturns over entire |ife of the related

obligation,
vi} The assumption of future salary ncreases, considerad in actuarial valuation, takes account of inffation, seniarity, promotion, supply and demand 2nd

athar relevant factors,
vii} Liabifity on accownt of long term absences has been actuarially valued as per Projected Unit Credit Method,
will] Short term compensated absences have been provided on actual basis,

34 Disclosure pursuant to Ind A5 108 "Operating Segment”
The comipany is operating mainly in singke segment |Le.. Leather and leather products; hence no disclosure ks required in terms of Ind AS 108,

35 Expenditure on Research and Development
Rs, In Lacs

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Capital Expenditure

Revanue Expenditure 2.17 1.65
Tatal 2.17 165
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36 Discbosure pursuant to Ind AS 17 "Leases™:

lal

Where the company is Lessor
Operating Leasa:
The company has not entered into any non-cancellable Operating Lease,

i, Finance Lease: The Company has not entered into any finance lease.

‘Where the company s Lessae

i. Finance Lease

The company has not entered into any finance lease arrangement.
Operating Lease: The Comgany has not enterad into any mon-cancellable operating leases.

37 Financial Instruments
\i} Capital Management

The Cormpany’s capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long-term and short-term goais of the'
Companmy
The Company determings the armount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term product and other strategic
investmant plans, The funding requirements are met through equity and other long-termy/short-term borrowings, The Company’s policy {s aimed at
combination of short-term and lang-term
borrowings.
The Company monitess the capital strecture on the basis of total debt to equity ratio and maturity profile: of the oversll debt portfolio.of the
Company.
The capital structure of the company consizts of debt, which includes the borrowings including temporary overdrawn balance | cash and cash
equivalents including short term bank deposits, equity comprising issued capital, reserves and non-controlling interests. The gearing ratio for the
year is a5 under:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Az at March 31, 2019 Asat March 31, 2018

Debt 707050 702441
Less: Cashand cash equivalant 37781 144 88

Met debt (4} 674268 777953
Tatal equity (B) 7,457,332 7.034.10

Debt Equity Ratio |A/8) 0,90 111

{ii} Categories of finzncial instruments

Calculation of Fair Values

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transtfer a liability in an
ordarly transaction betwesn market participants at the measurement date. The following mathods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values of financial instruments:

a] The fair values of Investment in quoted imvestment in equity shares 15 based on the current bid price of respective investment as-at the Balance
Sheat date.

by The fair value of the long-tarm borrowings carmying floating-rate of interest is not impacted due to interest-rate changes and will not be
sgnificantly different from-their carrying amounts as there is no significant change In the under-lying credit risk of the Company (since the date of
inception of the khans),

) The fair value of loans from banks and other financial indebtedness as well as other non current financial liabilities is estimated by discounting
Future cash flows asing rates currently avallable for debt or similer terms and remalning maturities.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

o) Cash and cash squivalents, trade receivables, othor financial assets, trade payables, and other fnancial Habilities have Fair values that Spprokimato
to thelr carrying amounts due to their short-term sature,

[R5, In Lakhs)
Farticulars Az at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Carrying value Fair vakip Carrying valua Fair valus

Financial Assets

Financial sssets measured at fair value
Inwestments measured at

1. Fair valua-through other comprehensive income
ii. Fair value through profit and loss

Financial astets measured at amortized cost
Trade Recelvables 3,815.05 5975.67
Cash and cach equivalents 3271 14488
Bank batances other than cash and cash equivalents 252,54 20863
(Cither financial assets 397.74 133913
Total 4,793:14 i 7,669.31
Fintancial LEabilities

Firancial ialyilities measured at amortized cost
Borrowings 7.070.50 - 7.424.41
Trade payahles 3,736.63 - 3,95%.95
{Other financial liabilities 560.18 902,53
Total 11,367 31 . 12,785.50

Income, expenses, gains or losses on financial instruments s In Lacs
Particulars For the year ended For the year Ended|
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Alowances for doubtful receivables [8.44] 877
Finangial astets measured at Tair vidus through Profit and Loss 018 :
Finangial assets measured a1 fair value through Other Comprebenslva Income -

Fair valug measuraments recognized in the balance sheat:

T following table provides an analyses of financial instruments that are massured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels
1t 3 basad on the degres to which the fair value is obuervable,

-Lewvel 1 far value measurements are those derived from guoted prices (unadjusted) inactive markets for identical assets or labilites.

-Lewel 2 fair value measurements are those derived frorm Inputs other than guotad prices Included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directhy [i.e. as prices) or indirectly (L e. derived from prices).

-Level 3 fabr walue measurements are those derived from valuation technlguees that include inputs for the asset or Nability that are not based on
observabie market data [unocbservabli inputs),
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

|iw] Financiad risk management objectives:
The Compamy's principal financial lakdlities comprese of loan frem banks and finaeclal institutions, and trade payables. The maln purpose of these
financial lizbifities Is to raise finance for the Company's operations. The Company has variows financlal assets such as trade raceivables, cash and
sheort term deposits, which arise directfy fromy its operations,
The main risks arising from Company's financial instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, markat risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk, The
Board of Directoss review' and agree policies for managing each of these risks,

|a] Credit risk:

Cradit rlsk Is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a-customer or counterparty 1o a financial instroment fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Company’s trade and other receivables,.cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances. The masimum exposure
to credit risk in case of all the financial Instruments coverad below is restricted to their respective carmying amoont,

Trade and Gther receivabiles

Custamer credit s managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policies, procedures and control refating 1o customer credit
risk management. Trade receivables are non-nterest bearing and are generally an 90 days credit term, Credit limits are established for all customers
based on internal rating criteria. Dutstanding customer-raceivables are regularly monitored.

Thee Company measures the expected credit loss of trade recetvables based on historical trend, industry practices and the business environment (n
which the entity operates. Loss rates are based onactual credit loss experience and past trends.

Expected credit loss assessment for custormers:
The company is making provisions on trade receivables based oni Expacted Cradit-Loss (ECL) model. The reéconciliation of ECLis as follows:

(M. In Lakhs)
Particulzrs Z201B-15 2017-18
Impairment loss as per ECL recognised{reversad) Bas arr
Additional Pravision / write off 46,13 1348
Amount debited to Profit and Loss 54.57 22.25

Other financial assets

The Company maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks and derivative contracts

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs, 327 81 Lacs at March 31, 2015 (March 31, 2018; Rs, 144 88 Lacs). Cash and cash equivalents are
held with reputable and cradit-worthy banks.

{ndividual risk fimits are set for each counter-party based on financial pasition, credit rating and past experience, Cradit fimits and concentration of
exposures are actively monitored by the Managerment of the Company,
Other than trade and other receivables; the Company has no other financial assets that are past due bt not Impaired

|b} Market risk:
Market Risk 45 the risk that the fair value o future cash flows of a financial Instrurment will fluctuate because of changes in marcket prices, Market rok
comprises thrae typas of risk; currency risk, interast rate risk and prica rish.

{1} Foreign cureency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of its operating and financing activities. The functional currency of the Company is Indizn
Rupes. Company's exposure is mainty denorminated in USD, GER and £uro, The exchange rates have changed substantially in recent periods and may
continue to fluctuate substantially in the futere, The Company has put in place a Financial Risk Management Policy to ldentify the most effective and
efficient ways of managing the currency risks, The Company wses derivative instruments (mainly foreign exchange forward contracts) to mitigate the
risk of changes In forelgn currency exchange rate.

The Company do not use derivative financizl instruments for trading or speculative purposas,

[Ifinterest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variabla interest rates. Any moversent in the reference rates could
have an impact on the Company's cash flows as well as costs. The Company also uses & mix of interast rate sensitive financial instruments to manzae
the liguidity and fund requirements for its day to day operations like short-term koans
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Notes forming part of the Consclidated Financhal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Interest rate sensitivity analysks:
A5 at March 31, 2019 Interest bearing financial llability (secured loan from banks) stood at Rs TOT0.50 Lacs, was subject 1o variable [nterest rates.
Increasadecrease of 50 basis points in intarest rates at the balznce sheet date would resalt in decrease/increase in profit before tax of Rs. 35.35 Lacs.

Thie risk estimates. provided assumiz a paraliel shift of 50 basis points Interest rate, This calculation also assumes that the chasge occurs at the
balance sheat date and has been calculated based on risk exposures cutstanding as at that date: The period end balances are not necessarily
representative of the average debt outstanding during the period,

This analysis assumes that all ather variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remaln constant

Fair value of financiakinstruments:

All financlal assets are initially recognized at fasr value of consideration pald. Subsequently, fimancial assets-are carried at falr value or amotizad cost
less impairment. Whera non = derivative financial assets are carried at fair value, gains and losses on re- measurement are recognized dirsctly in
£quity wnless the financial assets have been designated a3 being held at fair valee through profit or loss, In which case the gains and lotses are
recognized directly in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. Financial assets are designated as being held &t fair value through profit or lass
whien it is necessary to reduce measurement inconsistency for related assets and labilities. All financial liabilities other than derivatives are initislly
recognized at fair value of consideration received net of transaction costs as appropriate (intial cost) and subsequently carried at amortized cost,

[11) Liquidity rick:

The Company follows a Conservative policy of ensuring suffickent Houidity at all trmes through a strategy of profitable geowth, efficlent liguldity a2 all
timas through a strategy of profiiable growth, efficient working capital management as well a5 prudent capital espenditure, The Company has a
overdraft Facility with banks to support any temporary funding requirarments,

Thie Company believes that current cash and cash equivalents, tied up barrowing lines and cash flow that is generated from operations |5 sufficient to
meet requirerments. Accordingly, lquidity riskis percelved tobe low,

Liquidity tabde!

Ligueidity tables drawn up based on the cash flows of financlal labilities based an the eacliest date on which the Company can be required to pay Is
dischosed at Note no, 44,

[V} Other price risk:
The Company is not-exposed to-any sigaificant equity prece resks ansing from eguity imvestrments, as-on-31st March 2019, Eguity investments are held
for stratagic rather than trading purposes, The Company does not actively trade these investments,

[Vi} Equity price sensitivity analysis:
There is no exposure to equity price risks as 3t the reparting date or as at the previous reporting date.

38 Disclosure pursuant to Ind A% 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets":
The company has recognised contingent lizhilities as disclosed in Mote 32 above and as such no provision is required to be made. No provision was
putstanding & at the beginning and at the end of the year.

39 Disclosure pursuant to Ind A% 105 “Nan-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations™:
There ara no such asset held for sale and discontinued operations as on March 31, 2019,
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41 Additional infermation pursuant to Schedule NI to the Act for the year ended March 31, 2019 of anterprises consolidated as subsidiary and associates

Narns of the compary

Het Assets Le total
assats minus total
liakilities

Share in Profit or (Loss)

Share in Other
Comprehensive incama

Share in Total
Camprahensiva Income

A % of
consolidate
d net assers

As 't of
consolitatad
predit or boss

Ammaunt
[R5 in Lacs)

Amound
[Rs.im Lacs]

As%of
ronspidated
other
comprehans
wa income

A% of
eprselidatod
total
comprehens|
e income

Amount
(R In Lacs)

Aot
(Re. In Lacs)

Parent Comaany
Super Tannery Limited
sulbisidiaties - Forelgn
Bapar Tannary (UK.} ad
Super Tannary LAE F2E
Super Hoflis SAL

103.23%

-4BR%
15%%
015

Subsidiaries - Domestic
hewifi Tormers Lidd

Socuing Sadety Lid

tuper Corporation Lmited

100.00% 53.65%
48.93%
243%
1K

AATH
-3.36%
0.02%

Tatal Sibsidiaries

Mo cantrolling Interast inall the subsidiares
CFS Adjustment and elimination
Tt

0.80%
44.40%

42 Disclosure purstant to ind A5 § "Presentation of Financial Statements”.

{a] Current liabdities expected to be settled within twehe manths and after twelve months from the reporting date:

A5 jn Lacs

Particulars Hote

Mo,

Asal March 31, 2019

Ais it March 31, 2018

Within
taelve
manths

ffter
taele
menths

Total

‘Within
twihva
mipning

Aftar
twehie
manths

Tetal

Borrowings

7.020.82 49,68 70050

7 a4 60 5973 702441

Trace and other payables
Other financial Kabiities

3.736.63

56018

3.736.63
SE{.18

3,559,506
50253

3,959.95
3031.53

(b} Current zssets expectad to be recovered within twehve manths and ahtar twelve months from the reporting date:

A5 in Lacs

Particulars Mote

Moy

As at March 31, 2019

As gt March 31, 2018

Wikhin
twelve
mathis

Adter
el
mgnths

Total

Within
ek twelve
months manths

Atter Taotal

Inyentarms

Trade Beoeivable
Othier Financial Assets
Cther Currant Assets

8,260.45
381505

39774
1,173.73

8.299.45
3.815.05

39704
1173.75

718112 -
5,575.67
133913
111559

7,181.22
5,975.67
133913
111594

43 Figures of the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever required in order to make them comparable with those of current year,

Figures have been rounded off to the riearest rupees in lacs,

As per our attached report of even data

For Rajeev Prem & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firrm Reglstration Nao. GORI0OSC

Rajeev Kapoaor
Partner
M. No 077827

Place: Kanpur
Date: May 30,2019

For and on behalf od the Board

Mohd, Imran
Director (Finance) & CFO

|ftikharns| Amin

Managing Director

R. K. Awasthi

Company Secrotary
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED
CIN:L19131UP1984PLCO0B421
Regd. Office :187/170 Jajmau Kanpur-208010

Please complete the attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of Meeting Hall and also bring your copy of the enclosed
Annual Report.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

| hereby record my presence al the 35" Annual General Meeting of the company held on 30th September 2019;

Regd. Folio Mo, OP 1D*

MNo.of shares Client ID*

Mame of the Share holder (in block letters)

Signature of the shareholder or proxy

* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form:

SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

CIN:L19131UP1984PLCO06421
Regd. Office 187170 Jajmau Kanpur-208010

PROXY FORM [ FORM NO:MGT-lI
(Pursuant to section105(6) of the Companies-Act, 2013 and rula 1943} of the Companies
(Management and Adminisiration) Rule, 2014},

e-mail Id:
Name of the member(s) !

Folio No/* Client 1d:
Registered Address

*DF 1d:

IWe, being the member(s) of ; _shares of Super Tannery Limited, hereby appaint:

1. of having e-mail id or falling him

of having e-mail id of falling him

& of having e-mail d

and whose signature(s) are appended bitow as mylour proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for mefus and on my/ our behalf at the

35" Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Monday, September 30 2019 at 09.AM. at 1871170 Jajmau, Kanpur,

208010 and at any adjoumnment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
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** 1 wish my above Proxy o vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:

Resolutions
ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Adoption of Audited Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended
March 31, 2019 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors.

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Vegarul Amin, who relires by rotation and being eligible; offérs himsalf
for re-appointment.

3. Re-appointment-of Mr. Yogendra Singh Kativar, who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers:himseH for re-appointment:

4. Appointment of M/sRejeev Prem & Associates Chanered Accountants

(Registration No (00B305C) as auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration.
| SPECIAL BUSINESS (Ordinary Resolutions)

5.Re-appointment of Mr.iftikharul Amin, as Managing Director for a period of 3 Years.
6.Re-appointment of Mr. Igbal Ahsan, as Joint Managing Director for a period of 3 Years.

7.Re appointment of Mr.Imran Siddiqui as WTD fora period of 3 years.

8.Reappointment of Mr.Arshad Khan, as WTD for a period of 3 years.
9.Re appointment of MrMohd.Imran as WTD for a period of 3-years.

10.Re appointment of MrP.K.Sinha as Independent Director for a period of 5 years:
11.Special Resolution

Re appointment of Mr.K.B.Seth, as Independent Director for a perlod of 5 years

12.5pecial Resolutlon
Appointmentof Mr.Aftab Ahmad, as Independent Director for a period of 5 years
13. Ordinary Resolution

Reappointment of Mrs Sadia Kamal, as Independent Director for & period of 5 years,

14.Donation to charitable and other funds not directly related to the busingss of the Company.

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

Signed day of

Signature of Shareholder

Signature of first proxy holder Signature of second proxy holder Signature of third proxy holder
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NOTE :

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate nol more than 10% of the
tolal share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other
person of shareholder.

This is only optional. Please put a "X'in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. |fyou lzave the "For'
or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled o vote in the manner as helshe thinks
appropriate.

Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes.

In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint holders should be stated.




SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

SUPER TANNERY LIMITED
CIN : L19131 UP 1984 PLC 006421
Registerad Office : 187/170, Jajmau Road, KANPUR. - 208 010.
Phone MNo. : 7522000370, 371, 372 Fax No. : 91-512-2460792
Website : www.supertannery.com E-mail : share{@supertannery.com

BALLOT FORM

Mame and Registered address of the
Sole/First named Shareholder
{In block letters)

Mame of the Joint Holders, if any

Registered Folio No./DP 1D No*
{*Applicable to investors holding Shares in Demat Form)

Mumber of Equity Shares held

I'We hereby exercise my /Our Vote(s) in respect of the following resolutions to be passed at the 35th Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, 30th September, 2019 for the business stated in the
notice dated 10" August, 2019 by sending my/our assent or dissent to the said Resolution by placing the (X) at the
appropriate box below.

Please mention No. of Shares
Resolutions - Eor Against Abstain

'ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Adoption of Audited Balance Sheetand Statement of Profit and Loss for the

year ended March 31, 2019 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors.
2. Re-appointment of Mr. Vegarul Amin, who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment,
3. Re-appointment of Mr. Yogendra Singh Katiyar, who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
4.ﬁppuintmgénl of MisRejeav Pram & Associates Chartered Accountants
(Registration No (008905C) as auditors of the Company and fix their
remuneration.
SPECIAL BUSINESS (Ordinary Resolutions)
5 Re-appointment of Mr.iftikharul Amin, as Managing Director for a period of 3 Years:
6.Re-appointment of Mr. Igbal Ahsan, as Joint Managing Director for a period
of 3 Years:
7.Re appointment of Mr.imran Siddiqui as WTD for a period of 3 years.
8.Reappointment of MrArshad Khan, as WTD for a period of 3 years.
9.Re appointment of Mr.Mohd.Imran as WTD for a pariod of 3 years.
10.Re appointmeant of MrP.K.Sinha as Independent Director for a period of 5 years
11.Special Resolution
Re appointment of Mr K.B_Seth, 85 Independent Director for a period of 5 years
12.5pecial Resolution
Appointment of Mr.Aftab Abmad, as Independent Director for a period of 5 years
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Please mention Mo, of Shares
Resolutions. For -Against Abstain
13. Ordinary Resolution
Re appointment of Mrs Sadia Kamal, as Independent Director for a period
of 5 years..
14.Donation to charitable and other funds not directly related to the business of the-
Company.

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

Place- Kanpur
Date.30.09.2019

Signature of Shareholder

This form should be completed and signed by the members. In case of Joint holding this form should be
completed and signed (as per the specimen signature(s) registered with the Company) by the first named
member and in his absence, by the next named member. Unsigned ballot form will be rejected.

The Vote may be accorded by recording the assent in column 'For' or dissent in column® AGAINST' by placing
an X mark in the appropriate Column.

In case of Shares held by Companies, Trust, Society, etc. the duly completed ballot Form should be
accompanied by a certified copy of Board resolution.

The Scrutinizers decision of the validity of the ballot form shall be final.

The Company is also offering e-voting facility as an alternate, for all the members to enable them to cast their
vote electronically instead of dispatching physical ballot form. The detailed procedure of e-voting is sent to
you along with notice of this Annual General Meeting.

If a member has opted for e-voting, then he/she should not vote by physical ballot also and vice-versa.
However, in case members cast their vote both via physical Ballot and e-voting then voling through e-voting
shall prevail and voting done by physical ballot be treated as invalid.

A member desiring to exercise vote by physical ballot may complete this ballot form and send it to the
Scrutinizer Mr.K.N.Shridhar &Assocites 111&108, Chandralok Complex Birhana Road Kanpur 208001,

Members may please note to bring copy of this ballot form to the meeting hall if they are coming to attend the
Annual General Meeting personally.




BOOK POST

designed by: skadvertisers@amail.com

If Undelivered, Please return to :

SUPER TANNERY LIMITED
187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur-208010
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